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NOTICE

NOTICE is herehpf given that the 28" Annual General Meeting of IKF Finance Limited will be held on
Wednesday, the 4" day of December, 2019, 4.30 PM. at the Registered Office of the Company at # 40-1-44,
Corporate Centre, M G Road, Vijayawada- 520 010 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

To receive, consider, approve and adopt the audited Financial Statements (both Standalone and Consolidated)
for the financial year ended 31" March, 2019 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Gopala Kishan Prasad Vupputuri (DIN: 01817992), who retires by
rodation and, being eligible, offer himsell for re-appointment and in this regard to pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Gopala Kishan Prasad Vuppuoturi (DIN: 01817992), who retires by rotation in
accordance with Section 152 of the Companies, Act, 2013 be and is hereby re-appointed as a director liable to
retire by rotation.”

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs, Vupputuri Indira Devi (DIN: 03161174), who retires by rotation and,
being eligible, offer herselfl for re-appointment and in this regard 1o pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Vupputuri Indira Devi (DIN: 03161174), who retires by rotation in accordance with
Section 152 of the Companies, Act, 201 3 be and is hereby re-appointed as a director liable to retire by rotation.”

Special business:

4,

Re-Appointment of Mr.Satyvanarayana Prasad Kanaparthi (DIN 03598603), as Independent Director
To consider and if thought fit to pass the fellowing resolution as o Special Resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under (including any statutory modilication(sh or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the
members of the Company be and 1s hereby given to the re-appeintment of Mr. Satyanarayana Prasad Kanaparthi
(DIN 03598603). who was appointed as Independent Direclor by the Shareholders as an Independent Director
of the Company on 30" September, 2014, whose term of office expires al this Annval General Meeting of the
Company in terms of Section 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2003 and who has submitied a declaration that
he meets the criteria of the Independent Directorship as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act, in respect ol
whom MNotice has been received from a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his re-appointment as
Independent Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company, to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years upto 33™ Annual General Meeting of the
Company and whose office shall not, henceforth, be liable to retire by rotation.™

Re-Appointment of Mr. Veerabhadra Rao Sunkara (DIN 01180981 ), as Independent Director
To consider and if thoughi fit 1o pass the following resolution as o Special Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions ol
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under (including any statutory modilication(s) or re-enaciment
thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the
members of the Company be and is hereby given (o the re-appointment of Mr. Veerabhadra Rao Sunkara (DIN
01180981 ), who was appointed as Independent Director by the Shareholders as an Independent Director of the
Company on 30" September, 2014, whose term of office expires at this Annual General Meeting of the
Company in terms of Section 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and who has submitted a declaration that
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6.

he meets the criteria of the Independent Directorship as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act, in respect of
whom Notice has been received from a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his re-appointment as
Independent Direclor, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company, o hold office for a term of 5 (live) conseculive years uplo 33" Annual General Meeting of the
Company and whose office shall not, henceforth, be liable o retire by rotation,”

To enhance the Borrowing Powers of the Company from Rs. 3000 Crores to Rs. 4000 Crores

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without medification(s) the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Section 180 (1) (¢) and other applicable provisions, if any,
and the Companies Act. 2013 including any statutory modifications or re-cnactments thereof and in
supersession of all the earlier resolutions passed in this regard, the Board of Directors hereinafier referred 1o as
the Board), including any committee thereof for the time being exercising the powers conferred on them by this
resolution, be and are hereby authorized 10 borrow money, as and when required, from, including without
limitation, any Bank and/or Public Financial Institution as defined under Section 2(72) of the Companies Act,
2013 andfor eligible foreign lender andfor any entity/ entiies andfor authority! authorities and/ or through
suppliers credil, any other securities or instruments, such as floating rate notes. fixed rate notes, syndicated
loans, debentures, commercial papers, short term loans or any other instruments ele. andfor through credit from
official agencies andfor by way of commercial borrowings from the private sector window of multilateral
financial institution, either in rupees or in such other foreign currencies as may be permitted by law from time o
time, as may be deemed appropriate by the Board for an aggregate amowunt not exceeding Rs, 4000 Crores
(Rupees Four Thouwsand Crores Only), notwithstanding that money so bormmowed together with the monies
already borrowed by the Company, if any (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company s bankers in
the ordinary course of business) may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up share capital of the Company and its
free reserves, that is o say. reserves nol sel apart for any specified purpose.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to take such steps as
may be necessary for obtaining approvals, stalutory, contractual or otherwise, in relation (o the above and o
seltle all matters arising oul of and incidental thereto, and (o sign and 0 execule deeds, applications, documents
and writings that may be required, on behalfl of the Company and generally 1o do all such acts. deeds, matters
and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to this resolution.”

To enhance the power of Board of Directors of the Company to lease and mortgage of the property (ies)
of the Company

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or withowr modification(s) the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)a) and other applicable provisions, if any. of
the Companies Act. 2013, as amended from time to ime, consent of the Company be and is hereby given o the
Board of Directors of the company o create charges, morigages and hypothecations in addition 1o the existing
charges, mortgages and hypothecations created by the company, on such assets and properties of the company,
both present and future and in such manner as the Board may direct, in favour of all or any Banks, linancial
institutions. investments institutions and their subsidiaries, any other bodies corporate and any other lenders
(hereinafier collectively referred to “the lending agencies™) andf or Trustees for the holders of debentures/
bonds/ other instruments o secure borrowing of the Company by way of loans/ issue of debentures/ bonds/
other instruments which may be issued for a sum not exceeding Rs. 4000 Crore (Rupees Four Thousand Crore
only) over and above the aggregate of the paid up capital of the company and its free reserves which have been
for propose 1o be obtained from or privalely placed with the lending agencies together with interest there on at
agreed rates, further interest, liquidated damages, premium on prepayment or on redemplion, costs, charges,
expenses, and all other monies payable by the company to the trusties under the trust deeds and/or 10 the lending
agencies under their respective agreements/loan agreements fdebentores trust deeds entered into/to be entered
by the company in respect of said borrowings.”



“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized 1o finalize with the Lending Agencies
f Trustees, the documents for creating the aforesaid morigages, charges and/or hypothecations and to accept any
madiflications to, or 0 modify, aller or vary, the terms and conditions of the aforesaid documents and 1o do all
such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary lor giving effect to this
Resolution.™

8.  Authorization to issue of Non Convertible Debentures (NCD)Tier 11 Debtis)/Commercial
Papers/Bonds on Private Placement Basis,

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a Special

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 42 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Prospecius and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent notified, and as applicable and the Companies
Act, 1956, as amended and in force, in accordance with the memorandum and articles of association, the Board
of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to issve, offer or invitation and allot secured /
unsecured, redeemable, non-convertible, listed / unlisted, senior / subordinated bonds / debentures / Commercial
Paper / Tier 1 Debt! Other debt secunties (“Bonds™) of value aggregating upto Rs. 1200 Cr (Rupees One
Thousand Two Hundred Crores Only) through private placement offer letter(s) in one or more tranches in
conformity and in compliance with the all applicable rules, regulation, directions made in this regard, as
amended from time 1o time to such person or persons, including one or more companies, bodies corporate(s),
slatutory corporations, commercial banks, lending agencies, Mnancial institutions, insurance companies, mutual
funds, alternative investment funds, pension/provident funds and individuals, as the case may be or such other
person/persons as the board of directors may decide so0.”

“RESOLVED FURTEHR THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things
as may be deemed necessary in respect of issue of Bonds/ Debenture including but not limited to number of
issues/ tranches, face value, issue price, issue size, Liming, amount, security, couponfinterest rate(s), vield,
listing, allotment and other terms and conditions of issue Bonds as they may, in their absolute discretion,
deemed necessary o take all necessary steps™

For and on Behalf of the Board

IKF Finance Limited
Place: Vijavawada (Ch Sreenivasa Rao)
Date : 18/10/2019 Company Secrelary

M.No.: ACS14723



NOTES

1. The statements pursuant 10 Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the special business sel oul in
the notice and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (55-2), wherever applicable, are annexed hereto

2. A member entitled 1o attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote on a poll in the meeting instead of such member. The proxy need not be a member of the Company. A
person can acl as a proxy on behall of members not exceeding fifiy (50) members and holding in aggregate not
maore than ten (10) percent of the total share capital of the Company. A member holding more than ten (10)
percent of the total share capital of the Company may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not
act as proxy for any other member or shareholder.

3. A member of a company registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall not be entitled o appoint
any other person as its proxy unless such other person is also a member of such company.

4. The instrumeni appointing the proxy, duly completed, must be deposited at the Company’s regisiered office not
less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy form for this Annual General Meeting is
enclosed,

5. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives 1o attend the meeting are requested 1o send
a certified copy of the Board resolution to the Company, authorizing their represeniative 1o attend and voie on
their behall at the meeting,

6. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending
with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged with the Company
at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days of notice in wriling
is given to the Company by such intending person.

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members of the Company
will remain closed from Wednesday, November 27, 2019 1o Tuesday, December 3, 2019 (both days inclusive).

8. Members are requested o quote their Registered Folio Numbers in all their Correspondence with the Company
and notify change in their registered address, if any.

4. Members/proxies should bring the Atendance slips duly signed to the meeting and hand it over at the entrance.
Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their client ID and DP ID numbers for
casy identification of attendance at the meeting. Xerox copy of attendance slips will not be accepled at the
entrance of the Meeting Hall. Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report o the Meeting.

10. Members / proxies / authorized representatives should bring the duly filled Attendance Slip enclosed herewith Lo
attend the meeting.

11. The 28"™ Annual Report 2018-19 is being sent through electronic mode to the members whose email addresses
are registered with the Company / Depository Participani(s), unless any member has requesied for a physical
copy of the report. For members who have not registered their email addresses, physical copies of the Annual
Report 2018-19 are being sent by the permitted mode.

12. Additional information, Pursuant to Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (58- 2 in respect of the Directors
secking appointment at the Annual General Meeting. forms integral part of the Notice. The Directors have
furnished the requisite declarations for their appointment.

13. With a view to using natural resources responsibly, we request the shareholders to update respective email
addresses with your Depository Participants, if not already done, to enable the Company to send communications
electronically.



14. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members holding shares in physical form may file
nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 and for cancellation / variation in nomination in the prescribed Form
SH-14 with the Company’s RTA. In respect ol shares held in electronic / demat form, the nomination form may
be filed with the respective Depository ParticipanL.

13. In compliance with Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as substitwied by the Companies (Management and
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015, the Company has provided a facility to the members to exercise their
votes electronically through the electronic voting service facility arranged by Central Depository Services (India)
Limited. The facility for voting, through ballot paper, will also be made available at the Annual General Meeting
and the members atlending the Annual General Meeting who have not already cast their voles by remote e-voling
shall be able o exercise their right at the Annual General Meeting through ballot paper. Members who have
casted their votes by remote e-voting prior 1o the Annual General Meeting may attend the Annual General
Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again.

16. Voting through electronic means:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
iManagement and Administration) Rules, 2014 as substituted by Companies {Management and Administration)
Amendment, Rules 2015, the company is pleased to provide members the facility to exercise their right to vote at
the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be (ransacted through e-voting
services provided by Central Depository Services Lid, (CDSL).

A member may exercise histher votes at any General Meeting by electronic means and Company may pass any
resolution by electronic voting system in accordance with the Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 20135,

During the e-voting period, members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or dematerialized
form, as on the cul-off date i.e., Wednesday, November 27, 2019, may cast their voles electronically.

Members who do not have access o e-voling facility may send duly completed Ballot Form so as o reach the
Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr, S.Srikanth, Partner of M/s. B § § &
Associates (Membership No. 22119), Company Secretary in Practice, Company Secretary in Practice, 6-3-626,
Parameswara Appts, 5th Floor, 5A, AnandNagar, Khairtabad, Hyderabad-500004 not later than Tuesday,
December 3, 2019 (5.00 p.m. IST).

Members have the option lo request for physical copy of the Ballot Form by sending an e-mail to
sreenivas@ikffinance.com by mentioning their Folio / DP 1D and Client D No. However, the duly completed
Ballot Form should reach Mr. 5.S5rikanth, Partmer of Mfs. B § § & Associates, (Membership No. 22119),
Company Secrelary in Practice, Company Secretary in Practice, 6-3-626. Parameswara Appts. 5th Floor,
5A AnandNagar Khairtabad Hyderabad-500004 not later than Tuesday, December 3, 2019 (5.00 p.m. IST).

Ballot Form received after this date will be wreated as invalid. A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e.
either through e-voling or by Ballot. If a Member casts voles by both modes, then voting done through e-voling
shall prevail and Ballot shall be treated as invalid.

The instructions for shareholders voling electronically are as under:

i. The voting period begins on Sunday, December 1, 2019 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Tuesday, December 3, 2019 ai
500 pm. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) i.e. Wednesday, November 27, 2019, may cast their vole
electronically. The e-voling module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

il. The shareholders should log on the e-voting website www.evolingindia.com during the voting period

iii. Click on “Shareholders” tab.

iv. Now, select the “Company Name: IKF Finance Limited™ from the drop down menu and click on “SUBMIT™

v. Now Enter your User 1D,



a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
¢. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company,
vi. Next enter the Image Verilication Code as displayved and Click on Login.
vili. I you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www . evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier
voling of any company. then your existing password is to be vsed,
viii. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in DEMAT Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for
both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

% Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number
in the PAN Field.

In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of ('s before
the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letiers. Eg. If your name
15 Suresh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter SAQO000001 in the PAN held.

X

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the said
demat account or folio i ddfmmdyyyy formal.

Dividend Bank | Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demal account or in the company records

Details for the said demat account or folio,

@ Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the details are not
recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id / folic number in the
Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction “v™.

ix. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT™ tab,

x. Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.

However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach “Password Creation” menu wherein they are
required 1o mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to
be also used by the demat holders for voling for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible 1w
vole, provided that company opis for e-voling through CDSL platform. Tt is strongly recommended not 1o share
your password with any other person and take utmost care 1o keep your password confidential.

xi. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

xii. Click on the EVSN for the relevant <IKF Finance Limited> EVSN Reference No: 191108006 on which you
choose 1o vole.,

xiii. On the voling page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option “YES/ NO”
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

xiv. Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

av. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be
displayed. Il you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”. else 1o change your vote, click on “CANCEL" and
accordingly modify your vole.

avi. Once you “CONFIRM" your vole on the resolution, you will not be allowed o modify your vote.

xvii. You can also take out print of the voling done by you by clicking on “Click here 1o print”™ option on the Voting
page.

aviil. If Demat account holder has forgotien the same password then Enter the User 1D and the image verification
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

xix. Note for Institutional Shareholders
" Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required o log on 1o
https:fwww.evotingindia.co.in and register themselves as Corporates.

“ A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed o
|pdesk.evoling @ cdslindia.com

* After receiving the login details they have to create compliance user should be created using the admin login

and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vole on.

? The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk evoti :dslindia.c and on approval of the accoums they

would be able 1o cast their vote.
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2 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attomey (POA) which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verily the same,

xx. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voling, vou may refer the Frequently Asked GQuestions
("FAQs™) and e-voling manual available at www.evolingindia.co. in under help section or wrile an email to
helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.com.

xxi. You are advised to cast your vote only through E-voting or through Poll at the AGM. In case you cast your
voles through both the modes, votes cast through e-voting shall only be considered and votes cast at the meeting
through Poll would be rejected

Other Instructions:

i} The e-voling period commence on Sunday, December 1, 2019 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Tuesday, December 3,
2019 at 5.00 pom. During this period, member of the company holding share either in physical form or in
dematerialize form as on Wednesday, November 27, 2019 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voling
module shall be disabling by CDSL for voting Thereafter. Once the vote on resolution is cast by the member, he
shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

ii) The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the
company as on November 27, 2019,

iii} Mr. 8.Srikanth, Company Secretary in Practice has been appointed as the scrutinizer 1o scrutinize the e-voting
process (including the Ballot Form received from the Members who do not have access 1o the e-voling process)
and in a Fair and transpare nl manner.

iv) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the voles cast at the
meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voling in the presence of at least two (2)
witnesses not in the employment of the company and make, not later than three days of conclusion of the
meeting. a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total voles cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or
a person authorized by the Chairman, who shall declare the result of the voting forthwith.

v} The results declared along with the scrutinizers report shall be placed on the company website
www.ikffinance.com and with the website of CDSL within two days of passing of resolutions at the 28™ AGM
of the company on December 4, 2019,

vi) Members may also note that the Notice of the 28" Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report 2018-2019 is
available on the Company’s website, www.ikifinance.com Members who require physical copies may wrile (o
us al sreenivas @ikiMnance.com

vii} All documents referred 1o in this Notice are available for inspection at the Company's registered office during
normal business hours on working days up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

viii) Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report to the Meeting,
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STATEMENT SETTING OUT THE MATERIAL FACTS CONCERNING AND RELATING TO THE
SPECIAL BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED AT THE MEETING PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (*“THE ACT™)

Item No:d

The Members are informed lhnl Mr, Satvanarayana Prasad Kanaparthi was appointed by the Shareholders as an
Independent Director at the 23" Annual General Meeting on 30.09.2014, upto the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeling

Mr. Satyanarayana Prasad Kanaparithi aged about 68 years is BE (Civil), MIGS. He is a Civil Engineer by
prolession, has more than three decades of enormous experience in the field of Civil Engineering. He is having
candid experience in designing and execution of Projects and project management related issues. He served the
Government of Andhra Pradesh for over two and halfl decades al various capacities and was instrumental in
planning. designing and execution of various prestigious projects in the state of Andhra Pradesh and has gained rich
and diversified experience in the areas related to his profession. Mr. Satyanarayana Prasad Kanaparthi does not hold
any share(s) in the Company. He does not have any relationship with other Directors, Managers and other Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company. In the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
Board, the appointment of Mr. Satyanarayana Prasad Kanaparthi on the Board of the Company would be beneficial
to the Company considering his vast experience. Mr. Satyanarayvana Prasad Kanaparthi fulfils the criteria of
independence as specified in the Companies Act, 2013, The Company has also received notice from a Member
under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his reappointment as a Director, The Board recommends
the Resolution as set out in the notice [or the approval of shareholders of the Company.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives. except Mr. Satyanarayana Prasad Kanaparthi,
to whom the resolution relates, is in any way, concerned or interested in the proposed resolution as set oul in the
Nodice,

ltem No:S

The Members are informed l.hai Mr. Veerabhadra Rao Sunkara was appoinied by the Shareholders as an
Independent Director al the 23" ' Annual General Meeting on 30.09.2014, upto the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting

Mr. Veerabhadra Rao Sunkara aged about 73 years and Post Graduate in Science and a veteran in Finance business
in Andhra Pradesh with Three decades of rich experience in the Leld of Vehicle Finance and Management. He
served as President of Krishna District Auto Financiers Association and also served as the Member of the Governing
Council of Federation of Indian Hire Purchase Associations for two consecutive terms. He is the Managing Director
of SVR Finance & Leasing (P) Limited.

Mr. Veerabhadra Rao Sunkara does nid hold any share(s) in the Company. He does not have any relationship with
other Directors, Managers and other Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. In the opinion of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and the Board, the appointment of Mr. Veerabhadra Rao Sunkara on the Board of the
Company would be beneficial to the Company considering his vast experience. Mr. Veerabhadra Rao Sunkara fulfils
the criteria of independence as specified in the Companies Act. 20113, The Company has also received notice [rom a
Member under Section 160 of the Companies Act. 2013 proposing his reappointment as a Director. The Board
recommends the Resolution as set out in the notice for the approval of shareholders of the Company.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, except Mr. Veerabhadra Rao Sunkara, to

whom the resolution relates, is in any way, concerned or interested in the proposed resolution as set out in the
Niice,
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Item no.6

As per Section 180 (1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, borrowings (apart from temporary loans obmined (rom the
Company's bankers in ordinary course of business) by the Company beyond the aggregate of the paid up capital of
the company and ils free reserve requires approval [rom the shareholders of the Company,

With a view to meet the funds requirements of the Company for both short term as well as long lerm, the Company
may require o borrow from time to time by way of loans andfor issue of Bonds, Debentures or other securities and
the existing approved limit may likely to be exhauvsted in near future and it is therefore recommended 1o enhance the
borrowing limits of the Company up 1o Rs. 4000 Crores (Rupees Four Thousand Crores Only). The Directors
recommends the resolution for members” approval as a Special Resolution,

None of the Directors [ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company [/ their relatives is, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. & of the Notice.

Item no.7

As mentioned in Item No6, it is proposed to increase the borrowing powers to Rs. 4000 crore (Rupees Four
Thousand Crore only). To secure such borrowings, the Company would be required 1o mortgage and/or charge its
moveahle andfor immoveable properties, the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking(s) or any other
assets of the Company (both present and Tuture) in favour of the financial institwtions/banks/ other lender(s)/
trustees, The approval of the sharcholders in the AGM is required as per Section 18001 a) of the Companies Act.
2013. In the circumstances, the board recommends this resolution for acceplance.

None of the Directors [ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ilem No. 5 of the Notice.

ltem no.8

As mentioned in liem No. 8. and the rules of the Companies (Prospecius and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014
prescribed under Section 42 and other applicable provisions, il any, of the Companies Act. 20013 of the Act deals
with private placement of securities by a company. Sub-rule (2) of the said Rule 14 states that in case of an offer or
invitation 1o subscribe for non-convertible debentures, Tier Il Debt, Commercial Paper or other debt instruments on
private placement, the company shall obtlain previous approval of ils members by means ol a special resolution only
onee in a year [or all the offers or invitations for such debentures during the year. Rule 18 of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 deals with issue of secured debentures. In order to augment long term
resources for financing, inter alia, for the sirategic business expansion in fulure and for general corporale purposes,
the Board, which term shall include any Commitiee constituted by the Board, may at an appropriate time, offer or
invite subscriptions for NCDs, Bonds, Tier 11 Debt, Commercial Paper or any other debt securities on a private
placement basis, in one or more ranches, upto an amount not exceeding Rs. 1,200 Crore, within the overall
borrowing limits of the Company, as approved by the Members from time to time, with authority 1o the Board to
determine the terms and conditions, including the issue price, of the NCDs, Tier II Debt, Commercial Paper or any
other Debi Instruments.

Accordingly, consent of the members 1s sought for passing the Special Resolution as set out at ltem No. 6 of the
MNotice. This resolution is an enabling resolution and authorizes the Board of Directors of the Company to offer or
invite subscription for non-convertible debentures, Tier I1 Debt, Commercial Paper or any other Debt Instruments as
may be required by the Company, from time to time for a year from the date of passing this resolution.
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The proposed borrowings, along with the existing borrowings of the Company, would not exceed the aggregate
outstanding borrowings of the Company approved by the Members, from time 1o time,

None of the Directors [ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company [/ their relatives is, in any way, concermed or
interested. linancially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem No. 8 of the Notice.

The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 8 of the Notice for approval by the members.

For and on Behalf of the Board
IKF Finance Limited

Place: Vijayawada (Ch Sreenivasa Rao)
Date : 18/10/2019 Company Secrelary
M. No: ACS14723
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Annexure to the Notice

Additional information on directors recommended for appointment / re-appoiniment as required under

Secretarial Standard-2 notified under Section 118 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013

Name of the Director

Vupputuri Gopala Kishan

YVupputuri Indira Devi

Smi K. Vasumathi Devi,
Executive Director
3.Father of Smi Vupputur
Wasantha Lakshmi,
Alternate Director
4.Brother in law of
Sri.Satyanand Sinha
Chundun, Direclor

Prasad

DIN 01817992 U3161174
Date of Birth 02.09.1947 01.12.1959
Date of {irst Appointment on the Board 30.05.199 30.05.1991

| Age 72 Years 60 Years
Qualification B.5c Under Graduate
Experience 28 Years 28 Years
Terms and conditions of appointment As per the resolution As per the resolution passed

passed on 30.09.2017 on 30.09.2017
Remuneration sought o be paid Es5.45.00.000 p.a. Rs.30.00,000 p.a.
Remuneration last drawn Rs.45.00,000 p.a. Rs. 30,00,000 p.a.
Relationship with other director/Manager and other | 1.Husband of Smi. V.Indira | 1.Wife of
KMP Devi. Whole-time Director | Sri.V.G.K. Prasad,
2.Father of Managing Director

2. Mother of Smi.K.
Vasumathi Devi, Execulive
Director

3. Mother of Smt Vupputuri
Vasantha Lakshmi,
Alternate Direclor

No of Meeting of the Board Attended during the
FY- 2018-19

6

4

Mo of Shares held in the Company

1.53.41.030 No of Fully

Paid up Shares

32.31% of Paid up Share
Capital of the Company

35.05,821 No of Partly

Paid up (Rs 5.40 Paid up)
Shares of the Company

On diluted basis 34.28%

13,26,902 No of Shares
2.79% of Paid up Share
Capital of the Company

3.21,240 No of Partly Paid
up (Rs 5.40 Paid up)
Shares of the Company

On diluted basis 2.98%

Board

Directorships of other Board Director of IKF Home Director of 1KF Infratech
Finance Private Limited Private Limited
Director of IKF Infratech
Private Limited

Membership/Chairmanship of Committees of other 4 Mil
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Name of the Director Satyanaravana Prasad K Veerabhadra Rao §
DIN 03598603 01 180981

Date of Birth 30.06.1951 01.06.1946

Date of first Appointment on the Board 31032001 31.12.2005

Age 68 Years 73 Years
Qualification B.E. (Civil) & MIGS M.Sc
Experience A Civil Engineer by | A veleran in  Finance

profession, has more than
three decades of enormous
experience in the field of
Civil Engineering. He is
having candid experience
in designing and execution
of Projects and project
management related issues.
He served the Government
of Andhra Pradesh for over
two and hall decades at
various capacities and was
instrumental in planning,
designing and execution of
VArIoUS prestigious projects
in the state of Andhra
Pradesh and has gained
rich and diversified
experience in the areas
related to his profession.

business in Andhra Pradesh
with Three decades of rich
experience in the field of
Vehicle Finance and
Management. He served as
President of Krishna
District  Auto Financiers
Association and also served
as  the Member of the
Governing  Council  of
Federation of Indian Hire
Purchase Associations For
two consecutive terms. He
is the Managing Director of
SVR Finance & Leasing (P)
Limited.

Terms and conditions of appointment Independent Director fora | Independent Director for a
period of 5 years period of 5 years

Remuneration sought o be paid Nil Nil

Remuneration lasi drawn Nil Nil

Relationship with other directorfManager and other Nil Nil

EMP

No ol Meeting of the Board Attended during the 6 7

FY-2018-19

No of Shares held in the Company Nil Nil

Directorships of other Board 1 1

Membership/Chairmanship of Commitiees of other 1 +
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Directors” Report

Tao,
The members of IKF Finance Limited.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 28" Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts for the

financial period ended 317 March, 2019,

Financial Resulls:
The summarized financial results of the Company are as given hereunder:
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated

2018-19 2017-18 2018-19
Revenue from Operations 17685.80 13.569.69 17994.32
Other Income 10.54 Q.28 21.60
Profit !IL'IH-E} Ih::ﬁm: depreciation, interest. tax and 13400.35 10097.54 13540.01
exceptional ilems
Depreciation/amortization 01.63 72.71 97.37
Finance cost 519488 TOR9.89 8267.64
Provision for Standard Assels 118.90 12.54 116.43
Provision for Non Performing Assets 188.73 134.56 189.53
Portfolio Loans & other balances written off 286.34 23947 289.61
Loss on assignment transactions - - -
Profit (loss)before tax 5113.84 293494 5175.26
Provision lor taxddelerred 1ax 1565.97 1019.44 1583.42
Profit (loss) after tax before exceplion item 3547.87 1915.50 3591.45
Less: Exceptional items Mil Mil Nil
Net profit (loss) after exceptional items 3547.87 1915.50 359145
Balance brought forward from previous vear 646651 S029.88 6466.51
Dividend on Equity Shares Nil Nil Nil
Tax on dividend Mil Nil Nil
Transler to Stalutory Reserve as required by Section 45-1C
of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (3:47) B )
Transfer to Statutory Reserve as required by Section 29-C N L (35.49)
of NHB AcL Ay
Transfer w General reserve (177.39) (95.97) (177.39)
Surplus carried 1o Balance sheet 9127.42 6466.51 913550

Review of Operations:

Your Company’s performance for the year ended March 31, 2019 continues (o be encouraging and has registered a
growth of 30.32% in ils Gross Receipts 1o Bs.176.96 Cr as against Rs. 135.79 Cr and Net Profit was increased to
Rs. 3548 Cr from Rs. 1916 Cr registering a growth of 85.18% for the corresponding previous year. During the
year, the Loan Book has grown by 36.57% from Rs.722.01 Cr wo 986.06 Cr. The total assels managed by the
Company. including Channel Business and receivables assigned /[ securitized stood at around Rs 1225 Croas at
March 31, 2019 as against Rs. 1031 Cr in the previous year thereby registering a growth of 19%.

Future Outlook:

FY 2020 is going to be challenging vear as almost all the economic agencies have lowered their forecasts on GDP
growth to around 7.0% citing the continuity of slowdown in the overall economic activity across almost all the
business segments on the backdrop of global economic slowdown., The economy as a whole and the automobile
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sector in particular, is likely to remain sluggish in the short term with marginal recovery in the last quarter of the
current financial year as the Central Government has recently started taking steps to revive the economic activity
across the segments by announcing revival packages to boost the demand.

In April-August 2019, automobile sales witnessed the sharpest decline of 13.3% y-o-y. Such double-digit drop was
witnessed during the same period in FY93, when sales declined by over 21% y-o-y. The decline in sales in FY20
wits led by price hikes due to new safety norms starting April 1, 2019, higher insurance costs and ownership costs,
liquidity crisis in the NBFC sector, increased load carrying capacity for M&HCVs that led w high invenlories
causing slow movement in movement of vehicles.

However. going lorward, the demand is expected to pick up only by H2 FY20 with various planned product
launches, festival demand and pre-buying of auwomobiles before the implementation of BS-VI norms on April 1.
2020 and the overall auto sales is expected w grow by 5-7% for FY20.

Your Company continues o [ocus on Retail segment with focus on providing superior service o customers by
continucusly striving w0 lower the cost of borrowings, maintaining the asset quality with enhanced operating
elficiencies o sustain the growth and profitability. Your Company is confident of sustaining the growth and
profitability as it has built strong relationship with the customers around the last three decades.

Risk Management & Credit Monitoring:

As risk is inevitable fallouwt of the lending business, your Company has to manage various risks like credit risk.
Liguidity risk, interest rate risk. operational risk, market risk etc. The Audit Committee, Risk management
Committee and the Asset Liability Management Committee review and monitor these risks at periodic intervals.
Liguidity risk and interest rate risk arising out of maturity mismatch of assets and habilities are managed through
regular monitoring of the maturity profiles. The Company monitors ALM periodically to mitigate the liguidity risk.
The Company also measures the interest rate risk by the duration gap method. Operational risks arising from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events are adequately addressed by the
internal control systems and are continuously reviewed and monitored al regular intervals, Your Company is
proactive in assessing the risk associated with its various loan products and has evolved a variety of Risk
management and monitoring tools while dealing with a wide spectrum of retail customers, The Risk Management
Policy of the Company encompasses various risk tools such as Credit, Operational, Markel, Liquidity and Interest
Rate Risk and has put in place appropriate mechanism to effectively mitigate the risk factors.

Corporate Governance

The Company has got delisted with effect from 4th February, 20135, your directors are of an opinion that though the
SEBI (LODR) regulations, 2015 are not applicable to the Company, a report on the Corporate Governance along
with a declaration by the Managing Director with regard to code of conduct 1o be presented o the members of the
Company as such a report on Corporate Governance Report are is altached as part of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis:

Economic Environment:

Indian economy continue o be considered as one ol the [astest growing economy amongst the worlds major
economies as the provisional estimates for GDP growth of FY 2019, put forward by €50, the Indian economy is
slated to grow at around 7%, lower than growth recorded in FY 2018, which is primarily dragged down by slow
down in Consumer spending. both Public and private coupled with lower farm growth.
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Automotive Sector:

During the FY 18-19, the overall Commercial Vehicles segment registered a growth of 17.55 percent. The sale of
Medium & Heavy Commercial Vehicles (M&HCVs) increased by 14.60% and the sale of Light Commercial
Vehicles grew by 19.46% in April-March 2019 as compared 1o the same period last year..

The sale of passenger vehicles grew by 2.70% in April-March 2019 over the same period last vear, Within the

passenger vehicles, the sales ol passenger cars, utility vehicle and vans grew by 2.05%, 2.08% and 13.10%
respectively in April-March 2019 over the same period last year.

Resource Mohilization:
Depaosits:

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year under review and it continues to be a Non-deposit
taking Non Banking Financial Company in conformity the guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India and Companies
{Acceplance of Deposils) Rules, 2014

Working Capital Limiis:

During the year your company has reduced its dependence on Cash Credit Limits by raising term resources Lo
effectively manage the ALM. However, your company intends to increase the same in line with increase in the term
resources going forward,

Term Loans:

During the year your Company has mobilized Term Loan(s) of Rs.15 Cr from Andhra Bank, Rs 50 Cr from Union
Bank of India, Rs 50 Cr from Bank of India, Rs 25 Cr Irom Yes Bank, Rs 25 Cr from Ujjivan Small Finance Bank,
Besides. your company has mobilized Rs.40 Cr Term Loan from Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited. Rs 20 Cr from
Volkswagen Finance Pvt Lid, Rs 15 Cr from Sundaram Finance Limited, Rs 30 Cr from Manappuram Finance
Limited in line with the Management’s overall business plan to have a judicious mix of resources.

During the year under review, your Company has not issued any Commercial Paper during the vear but have
redeemed the existing CPs raised from Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited — Rs.50 Cr and Unifi
Capital - Rs.20 Cr.

Non Convertible Debentures:

During the year under review, your Company has mobilized Rs.25 Cr from Reliance Mutual Fund by issuing Non
Convertible Debentures.

Tier Il Capital { Sub Debi:

During the vear under review, your Company has not raised any Tier- 11 Debt,

Securitization / Azsi ¢ Loan Receivables:

During the year, your Company has Securitized loan receivables to the tune of Rs.147 Cr and has not assigned any
loan receivables.
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Borrowing Profile:

Total borrowings of the Company for the year under review stood at Rs.781 Cr (including Tier 11 Capital), of which
borrowings from Banks constituted 62.04%, borrowings from NBFCs & Fls 16.51%. Non Convertible Debentures
15.70% and Tier 11 Capital / Sub-Debt 5.76%. Your Company is continuously exploring all options to access low
cost funds, mostly by way of Term Loans and Cash Credil in the current financial year, to further expand the
operations,

Business Associations/Tie-Ups:

Your Company has continued its association with HDFC Bank Limited (Channel Business Arrangement) during FY
2018-19 by continue Lo service the loans originated by it prior to June 2017.

Capital Adeguacy:

The Capital to Risk Assets Ratio of your company is 21.45% as on 31.03.2019, well above the minimum of 15%
prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India, of which Tier [ Capital constituted 19.25% and Tier Il constituted 2.20%,

Credit Rating;

During the year under review. Brickwork Ratings India (P} Lid. has retained the Long Term Bunk Loan rating
“BWR A", and has retained “BWR A” rating for Subordinated Non Convertible Debentures, signifying adequate
degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations with low credit nisk. Credit Analysis and
Research Limited (CARE) has retained the long term bank loan facilities and Non Convertible Debentures m “A-"
signifying adequate degree of safety regarding timely payment of interest and principle and has retained the shor
term bank loan rating at “A2+" and has assigned "A2+" rating for Standalone Commercial Paper and has retained
“Al+ (50 rating for Commercial Paper backed by standby letter of the working capital consortium by carving out
of the working capital limits sanctioned to the Company.

Dividend
Your Directors have not recommended payment of dividend for the financial year ended 31" March 2019 since it is
proposed o retain the same in the business,

Transfer of unclaimed dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund
During the period under review, no such case was raised to credit / (o pay any amount to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

Share Capital

a. Authorized Share Capital
During the vear there was no change in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company, As on 31.03.2019, the
Auwthorized Share Capital was Rs.85,00.00,000/- (Rupees Eighty Five Crores only) divided into 6,00.00,000
(Six Crore only) Equity Shares of Rs.1(/- {Rupees Ten only) each and 25.00,000 (Twenty Five Lac only)
Preference Shares of Rs, 100/~ (Rupees One Hundred only) each,

b. Paid up Share Capital.
The total Paid up Share Capital of the Company as on 31.03.2019 was Rs.50.27.64 10520 consisting
47479375 fully paid shares of Rs.10/- each and 51.79,688 partly paid (Rs.5.40 paid per Share) shares of
Rs.1(W- each, This increase in Paid-up during the year is due 1o conversion of 19,53,125 of Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares ol Rs. 100V- each converted into 19.53,125 Equity shares of Es.10/- each and the
Company has received the first call money of Rs.2.70/- per share on 51.79,688 Panlly paid Equity Shares along
with premium of Bs. 168993,
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Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares.
During the year the Company has converted 19.53,125 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100/~

each into 19.53.125 Equity Shares of Bs. 10/- each. As such there are no Compulsorily Convertible Prelerence
Shares outstanding as on 31.03.2019.

Issue of Shares with dilferential voting right

The Company has not issued any Shares with differential voting rights during the period under review.

Buy Back of Securities

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

Sweat Equity

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

Bonus Shares

The Company has not issued any bonus shares during the year under review,

Employees Stock Option

During the vear your Company has approved Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 and constituted a Trust named
IKF Finance Employee Welfare Trust, to create, offer, and grant up to, 7,99.516 [Seven Lac Ninety Nine
Thousand Five Hundred and Sixteen only] emplovee stock options (o the eligible employees of the Company.
determined in terms of ESOP 2019, from lime Lo lime, in one or more tranches, exercisable in aggregate into
niot more than 7.99.516 [Seven Lac Ninety Nine Thousand Five Hundred and Sixteen only| equity shares of the
Company, with each such option would be exercisable for one equity share of a Face value of Rs. 10¥- each fully
paid-up on payment of the requisite exercise price to the Company, and on such terms and conditions as may be
determined by the Board in accordance with the provisions of the ESOP 2019 and provisions of applicable law

as may be prevailing at that time,

Further the Board of Directors has granted total 562,860 No ol stock options to the eligible employees at a
price of Rs.120/- (Rupees One Hundred and Twenty only) per share.

Disclosure as required under Rule 12 (9) of Companies {Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 during the
financial year are as below:

(a) options granted 5.62.860
{h) options vesied Nil
{c) options exercised Nil

(d) the total number of shares arising as a result of | Nil
exercise of option

e} options lapsed Nil

() the exercise price Rs 1210/-

{g) variation of terms of options NA

{h) money realized by exercise of oplions NA

(i} total number of options in force 562,860

{j) employee wise details of options granted o

(i) key managerial personnel Ch Sreenivasa Rao, Company Secretary- 15,1580
Options

P Chandra Sekhar, Chiel Financial Officer-
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19,480 Options

{ii) any other emplovee who receives a granl of 1. V.S.Murthy, CEO - 107,180 Options-

oplions in any one year of oplion amounting to live 19,04 %

percent or more of options granted during that year 2. D Nagaraj Goud, National Business
Head. 80,140 Options-14.24%

3. G Chakrapani, National Credit
Manager-51,500 Options-9.07 %

4. M Girish Kumar, National Head-
Collections-51,500 Options-9.07 %

5. Hardik Harish Joshi-Zonal Manager-
34,000 Options-6.04%

6. L Bhaskar Narasimha Reddy-Regional
Manager-29,720 Options-5.28 %

(iii) identified employees who were granted option, | Nil
during any one year, equal o or exceeding one
percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding
warrants and conversions) of the company at the
Lime of grant

Transfer to Reserves

The Directors of the Company propose o transfer Rs.177.39 Lacs 1o General Reserves out of the current year profits
for the year as against Rs95.77 Lacs during the Financial Year 2017-18. Further your Directors also propose Lo
transfer Rs.709.57 Lacs as against Rs 383,09 Lacs during the Financial Year 2017-18 to Statutory Reserve @ 20%
profit after tax as required under Section 45-1C of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

Details of Subsidiary, Associate and Joinl Venture Companies
The Company is not having any Associale and Joinl Venture Companies as on date by virtue of Section 2 (6) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Acquisition of IKF Home Finance Limited: During the year your Company has acquired IKF Home Finance Lud.
IKF Home Finance Lid is a Public Limited Company, which is related to the promoters of the Company, who were
holding significant shareholding afier oblaining the regulatory clearances from Reserve Bank of India and National
Housing Bank. As on 31,03.2019 the Company shareholding stood at 95.55% (on dilutive basis).

Auditors

Statutory Auditors

M. S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chariered Accountants (ICAI Registration No 301003E/E3000035) were appoinled as
Statutory Auditors at the 24™ Annual General Meeting 1o hold the office of Statutory Auditors from the conclusion
of 24™ Annual General Meeting to Gl the conclusion of 29" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The observations made in the Auditors” Report read together with relevanit notes thereon are self-explanatory and
hence do not call for any further comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant o provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company has appointed M/s. B § § & Associates,
Company Secrelaries as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. Secretarial Audit Report is enclosed as Annexure-/
1o this Report.
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Qualification by Secretarial Auditor
The Secretarial Audit Report does notl contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark and made the
following observation,

Auditors Qualification Board Response to the Qualifications
The Company has not appointed CFO as required | The management had been in the process of
under Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, identification of suitable person to be appointed as

CFO of the Company and has taken all reasonable
steps in this regard. The Company has appointed
CFO on 10.04.2019.

Cost Audit

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 & 4 of the Companies (Cost
Record and Audit) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Cost Audil is not
applicable 1o the Company.

Internal Audit and Auditor:

As part of the effort to evaluate the effectiveness of the internal control systems, and to maintain its objectivity and
independence and on recommendations of the Audit Committee your directors have re-appointed M/s, Brahmaiah &
Co, Chartered Accountant as internal auditor of the Company for the year ended 317 March, 2019 who shall report
to the Audit Committee / Board. Based on the report of internal auditor, process owners undertake corrective sction
in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant andit observations and recommendations
along with corrective actions thereon were presented to the Audit Committee / Board,

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has a well-established internal inancial control and risk management framework, with appropriate
policies and procedures, o ensure the highest standards of integrity and transparency in its operations and a strong
corporale governance structure, while maintaining excellence in services to all its stakeholders. Appropriate controls
are in place to ensure: (a) the orderly and efficient conduci of business, including adherence o policies, (b}
safeguarding of assets, (c) prevention and detection of frauds / errors, (d) accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records and (e) tmely preparation of reliable financial information. However the Statutory Auditors of
the Company in their report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub Section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 has qualified on the following and the response of your Board of Directors with respect Lo
the qualifications are as follows:

S5No | Auditors Qualification on Internal Financial | Board Response to the Qualifications
Conirols

The following material weskness has been
identified in the operating effectiveness of the
Company's  internal  financial controls over
financial reporting as at 3 1st March, 2019

a The Company’s internal financial controls over | The management has taken all reasonable steps over
segregation of duties and recording of journal | segregation of duties and recording of journal
entries were nol operaling effectively which | entries and as such there was no impact on internal
could potentially affect the intermal control | control environment of the Company.

environment of the Company

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Board has adopted Whistle Blower Policy. This policy aims for conducting the affairs
in 4 fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical
behavior.
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A mechanism has been established for employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of Code of Conduct and Ethics, The policy also provided adequate safeguards against the
viclimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and allows direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Commitlee in exceplional cases.

Your Company hereby affirms that during the year no Director / employee have been denied access to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and that no complaints were received.

Corporate Social Responsibility Commillee:
During the vear under review the Company has spent an amount of Rs.3,25.000 under the CSR activity due 1o
diverse factors, The report on CSR activities for FY 2018-19 is enclosed as Annexure-I1.

Extract ol the Annual Return
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is enclosed as Annexure-I11.

Material Changes and Commitments, if any
There are no material Changes and Commitments during the vear under review,

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators/ courts/ tribunals impacting the going
concern status and the Company's operations in future

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts which would impact the going concern
status of the Company and its [uture operations.

Directors

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Gopala Kishan Prasad Vupputuri (DIN: 01817992),
Managing Director and Mrs, Vupputuri Indira Devi (DIN: 03161 174), Whole-time Director of the Company, would
retire by rotation al the forth coming AGM and are eligible for re-appoiniment. They have offered themselves for re-
appointment,

During the year Mr. Nallani Haranadh, Independent Director has resigned due to his personnel obligations and his
resignation was accepled by the Board of Director at the meeting held on 15.03.2019. Mr. Vishal Tulsyan was
appointed as Nominee Director of Motilal Oswal Private Equity in place of Mr. Vishal Kuamr Gupta.

Mr. Satyanarayana Prasad Kanaparthi and Mr Sunkara Veerabhadra Rao were appoinied by the Shareholders as an
Independent Director at the 23™ Annual General Meeting on 30.09.2014, to hold the office for a period of 5 years
ie. upto the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. Further, the Board. on the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, recommended for the approval of the Members by way of Special
Resolutions, the re-appoimment of Mr. Satyanarayana Prasad Kanaparthi and Mr Sunkara Veerabhadra Roo as
Independent Directors of your Company in terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 for further period of 5
years. Requisite Motices under Section 160 of the Act have been received in respect of Mr. Satyanarayana Prasad
Kanaparthi and Mr Sunkara Veerabhadra Rao, who have filed their consents 1o act as Directors of the Company. if
appointed. Appropriate resolutions seeking your approval to the above are appearing in the Notice convening the
28™ AGM of your Company.

Based on the confirmations received from Directors, none of the Directors are disgualified from appointment under
Section 164 of the Companies Act 2013

Key Managerial personnel:
During the financial year, there was no change in the appointment of Key Managerial Personnel. On 10.04.2019,
Mr. Paruchuri Chandra Sekhar was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Mr, K.Venkatesh Padmanabhan, CEO resigned to his office on 15/1 /2018,
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Declaration by Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company have submitted their declarations as required under Section 149(7) of
the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of independence as per sub-section (6) ol Section 149 of
the Act

Familiarization programme for Independent Directors
The Company proactively keeps its Directors informed of the activities of the Company, its management and
operations and provides an overall industry perspective as well as issues being faced by the industry.

Independent Directors’ Meeting

The Independent Directors met on 26.02.20019, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members
of the Management. The Independent Directors reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the
Board as a whole; the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views ol Executive
Director and Non-Executive Directors and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform their duties.

Board Evaluation:

The Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance as well as that of its Commitiees and
individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board. The exercise was carried oul through a structured
evaluation process covering various aspects of the Board functioning such as composition of the Board &
commitlees, experience & competencies, performance of specific duties & obligations, contribution at the meetings
and otherwise, independent judgment, governance issues ete.

Number of meetings of the Board of Directors:

During the financial year 2018-19 the Board of Directors has met Eight tmes viz 27/04/2018, 2307/2018,
04/09/2018, 20/1 V2018, 17012019, 18012019, 22/01/2019, and 15032019, The details of which are given in the
Corporate Governance Report. The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days,
as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard-1.

Audit Committee
The Composition of the Aodit Committee is provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this
report. All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepled by the Board.,

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy containing guiding principles for pavment of remuneration to Direclors,
Senior Management, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees including Non-executive Direciors along with
Board Evaluation criteria are provided in the Corporate Governance Report,

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186;

The Company. being a non-banking finance company regisiered with the Reserve Bank of India and engaged in the
business of giving loans, is exempt from complying with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Accordingly, the disclosures of the loans given as required under the aforesaid section have not been given in this
Report.

Remuneration ratio of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
The provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies { Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are nol applicable to the Company.

Particulars of Employees

There are no employees whose information as required under the provisions of Rules 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies
{ Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
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Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

All wransactions entered by the Company with Related Parties were in the Ordinary course of Business and are at
Arm's Length pricing basis. The Audit Committee granted approvals for the transactions and the same were
reviewed by the Committee and the Board of Directors.

There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial vear 2018-19 which were
in conflict with the interest of the Company. The details of contracts and arrangements with related parties as
referred 1o in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 were given as Annexure-IV to the Board's Report in form
No: AQC-2 pursuant to Section 134 (3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014,

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 201 3, Directors of your Company hereby state and confirm that:

fa) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the period ended 317 March, 2019, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material de partures:

fb) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of alfairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

fi) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

{d} the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis: and

fe) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Company's Policy on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
The Company prohibits any form of sexual harassment and any such incidence i3 immediately investigated and
appropriate acton taken in the matter against the offending employee(s) based on the nature and the seriousness ol
the offence. The Company has a policy on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (the Policy) and matters connected therewith or incidental thereto covering all the aspecis as contained
under the “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal) Act, 2013”7
notified by the Government of India vide Gazette Notification dated 23" April, 2013,

There was no case of sexual harassment reported during the year under review.

Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under Section 143 (12) other than those which are reportable
to the central government

There were no frauds as reporied by the Statutory Auditors under Sub-section 12 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act. 2013 along with Rules made there-under other than those which are reportable to the Central GovernmenL

Secretarial Standards
The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards.

Share Transfer Agency

The Company has appointed M/s, Bigshare Services Private Limited situated al Plot No-306, 3rd Floor, Right Wing,
Amrutha Ville Opp. Yashoda Hospital, Rajbhavan RoadSomajiguda, Hyderabad-500 082, as its share transfer
agency [or handling both physical and electronic transfers.
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Human Resources

Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of ils most important assets, Your Company continnously invests
in altraction, retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A number of programs that provide focused
people attention are currently underway. Your Company thrust is on the promotion of talent internally through job
rotation and job enlargement.

Awards and recognition
The Company has not received any award during the Financial Year,

Cautionary Statement
Stalements in these reports deseribing company’s projections statements, expectations and hopes are forward
looking. Though, these expectations are based on reasonable assumption, the actual results might differ,

Conservation ol Energy, Technology Absorplion and
The Company, being a non-banking finance company (NBFC), does not have any manufacturing activity. The
directors, therefore, have nothing to report on conservation of energy and technology absorption’.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

| Total foreign exchange earned Nil
| Total foreign exchange used Nil
Code of conduct

The Company has adopted Code of Conduoct for the Board and for the Senior level employees of the Company and
they are complying with the said code.

Industrial Relations
Industrial relations continued o be cordial throughout the year under review.

Acknowledgements

Your Company will always keep interest of s customers, employees and the stakeholders as a priority and shall
reciprocate their confidence reposed in the Company. It has been a mutually beneficial relationship and looks
forward 1o their continued support.

For and on behall of the Board

IKF FINANCE LIMITED

Place: Vijayawada
Date : 18.10.2019 iV G K Prasad) {(V Indira Devi)
Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 01817992 DIN: 03161174
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REPORT ON RFORATE VERNANCE
This section on Corporate Governance forms part of the Report of the Directors to the Members,
1. Company's Philosophy on Code of Governance:

Our Corporate Governance policies recognise the accountability of the Board and the importance of its decisions to
all our constituents, including Customers, Investors and the Regulatory Authorities. The strong foundation of the
Company is supported by the pillars of Customer faith, Debenture holders Conflidence, Bankers Trust. Investor
Steadfasiness and Employee Loyalty. The Company has been growing over the past twenty eight vears on the
principles of dedicated customer service, air business practices, efficient and trusted financial policies. It continues
to maintain high standards of integrity through excellence in service to all its stakeholders,

The Board is fully aware of its liduciary responsibilities and recognises its responsibilities to shareholders and other
stakeholders to uphold the highest standards in economic, social and ethical matters by ensuring that the company
conducts its activities in accordance with corporate governance best praclices.

2. Board of Directors:

Directors possess the highest personal and professional ethics, integrity and valves, and are committed to
representing the long-term interests of the stakeholders. The basic responsibility of the Board is to provide effective
povernance over the company's” alfairs exercising its reasonable business judgement on behalfl of the Company,

The Board has been constituted in a manner, which will result in an appropriate mix of executive/non-executive and
independent Directors to ensure proper governance and management. As on 31.03.2019, the Board comprises seven
members who have experience in diverse fields like Finance, Accounts and Managemeni. Non-Executive Direclors
bring independent judgement in the Board's deliberations and decisions. During the vear Sri.N.Haranadh has
resigned to the directorship on 15.03.2019 and Sri. Vishal Tulsyan was nominated as Nominee Director in the place
of Sri. Vishal Kuamr Gupta due to his resignation from the services of Motilal Oswal Private Equity. The Executive
Directors as on 31.03.2019 were Sri V.G.K.Prasad - Managing Director, Smi. V.Indira Devi - Whole Time Director
and Smt, K.Vasumathi Devi - Executive Director,

As on 31.03.2019, the Independent Directors were S Veerabhadra Rao and Sn K Satyanaravana Prasad. Sni. Satyana
Sinha Chunduri was the Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and Smt. Vupputuri Vasantha Lakshmi is the
alternate director to Sri Satyana Sinha Chunduri. The composition of the Board is in conformity with best practice in
Corporate Governance.

3. Board Meetings:

The Board of Directors meets at regular intervals with a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for its
altentiom 10 ensure that it exercises full control over significant strategic, lnancial, operatonal and compliance
multers. The Board is regularly briefed and updated on the key activities of the business and is provided with
briefings on other matters concerning the company on a need basis. The Board of Directors generally meets every
quarter to review the business performance. The Board lunctions either as a full Board or through various
commitlees constituted to oversee specilic operational areas.

During the year under review. eight meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the following dates.

27-04-2018 23-07-2018 04-09-2018 20-10-2 8
17-01-2019 18-01-2019 22-01-2019 15-03-2019
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The details of attendance at Board Meetings and details of other Directorships. Commitiee Chairmanships f
Memberships held by the Directors during the period from 1% April, 2018 10 317 March, 2019 are as follows;

Name of the Director Category of Board No. ol % of tal | Atendance Noof No of
Directorship Board meelings al the last other Commiltee

Meetings | attended AGM Director | Memberships
attended ships

V G K Prasad Managing Director (] 755 Yes 2 4

V Indira Devi Whole Time Director 4 50% Yes 1 0

K Vasumathi Devi Executive Director 6 T5% Yes 1 3

Sinha § Chunduri Director - - No - -

D Vasantha Lakshmi Alternate Director f T5% Yes 2 -

5 Veernbhadra Rao Independent Director 7 885 Yes l 6

K Satyvanarayana Prasad | Independent Direclor B 1005 Yes - 4

Vishal Tulsyan Nominee Director | 100% No 7 4

(W.elr., 15.03.2019)

N Haranadh Independent Director 6 5% Yes - 2

{Upto 15.03.2019)

Vishal Kumar Gupta Nominee Director 1 75% Mo 4 4

(Upto 07.12.2018)

2. Audit Committee:

The Audit Commitiee provides direction to the Audit function and monitors the guality of internal controls and
systems, The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the overseeing of financial reporliing process Lo ensure
Fairness, sufficiency and credibility of financial statements, review of the quarterly and annual financial statements
before submission Lo the Board, review of adequacy of internal control systems and the internal audit functions. The
Audit Committee comprises four Non Executive Directors with three Independent Directors and one Nominee
Director. The Committee comprises of Sri 8.Veerabhadra Rao as Chairman of the Committee and Sri N.Haranadh,
Sri. Vishal Kuamr Gupia and Sri K Satvanarayvana Prasad as Members. The Executive Directors, Statutory Auditors,
Internal Auditors and other Functional Heads are invilees to the Committee Meetings. During the year,
Sri.N. Haranadh has resigned to the directorship on 15.03.2019 and Sri Vishal Tulsyan was appointed in the place of
Sri. Vishal Kuamr Gupta, due to his resignation from the services of Motilal Oswal Private Equity. At present Audit
Committee Three Non Execotive Directors with two Independent Directors and one Nominee Director.

During the year the committee met 8 limes on 27.04.2018, 23.07.2018, 04.09.2018, 20.10.2018, 17.01.2019,
18.01.2019, 22.01.2019 and 15.03.2019. The details of members and their attendance at the commitlee meetings are
given below:

Name of the Director No. of Audit Committee % of total Meetings attended
Meetings altended
Sri. 8. Veerabhadra Rao 2] 1 (0%
Sri. M.Haranadh ] 1 005
Sri.Vishal Kumar Gupta [ 25%
(Upto 07.12.2018)
Sri K. Satvanarayana Prasad 8 100%:

The previous Annual General Meeting (" AGM") of the Company was held on September 29, 2018 and was attended
by Sri. 5. Veerabhadra Rao, Chairman of the audit committee.
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3. Nomination and Remuneration & Compensation Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration & Compensation Committee was constituted in accordance with the provisions
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 comprises of 5ri 5 Veerabhadra Rao, Sri N Haranadh and Sri Vishal
Kumar Gopta as Members. The Committee determines the remuneration package of Executive Directors (Whole
Time Directors) of the Company and to grant Stock Options 1o eligible employees from time to time. During the
wear, Sri.Naranadh has resigned to the directorship on 15.03.2019 and Sri Vishal Tulsyan was appointed in the place
of Sri. Vishal Kuamr Gupta, due 10 his resignation from the services of Motilal Oswal Private Equity. During the
year the commiltee met two times on 17.01.2019 and 15.03.2019.

During the year your Company has approved Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 and constituted a Trust named 1KF
Finance Employee Wellare Trust to create, offer, and grant up to, 7.99.516 [Seven Lac Ninety Nine Thousand Five
Hundred and Sixteen only] employee stock options o the eligible employees of the Company. determined in terms
of ESOP 2019, from time to time, in one or more tranches, exercisable in aggregate into not more than 7,99.516
[Seven Lac Ninety Nine Thousand Five Hundred and Sixteen only] equity shares of the Company, with each such
option would be exercisable for one equity share of a face value of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up on payment of the
requisile exercise price (o the Company, and on such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Board in
accordance with the provisions of the ESOP 2019 and provisions of applicable law as may be prevailing at that tme.,

Further the Board of Directors has granted total 5,62 860 No of stock options to the eligible employees al a price of
Rs 120)- (Rupees One Hundred and Twenty only) per share,

Attendance of each Director al Nomination & Compensation Commiliee Meeling

. Number of committee meetings
MName of the Director Calegory Held Nttendad
Vishal Kuar Gupta : e
(Upto 07.12.2018) R ; ¥
Vishal Tulsyan : Ji o
(From 15.03.2019) MNominee Director 1 i
5. Veerabhadra Rao Independent Director 2 2
N.Haranadh S =
(Upto 15.03.2019) Independent Director 2 2
Criteria for Performance evaluation:
(1) Remuneration Policy:
The Policy inter alia provides for the [ollowing:
(a) antract, recruit, and retain good and exceptional talent;
ib) list down the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes, and independence ol
the directors of the Company;
ch ensure that the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees is

performance driven, motivates them, recognises their merits and achievements and promotes
excellence in their performance;

id) motivate such persomnel 1o align their individual interests with the interests of the Company, and
further the interests of its stakeholders:

(e} ensure 4 transparent nomination process for directors with the diversity of thought. experience,
knowledge, perspective and gender in the Board; and

in fulfill the Company's objectives and goals, including in relation to good corporate governance,

transparency, and sustained long-term value creation for its stakeholders.

(II) Remuneration paid to Directors

R . E e I s
The Managing Director, Whole Time Director and Executive Director of the company have been appointed on
contractual terms, based on the approval of the sharcholders. The remuneration package comprises of salary,
allowances and perquisites. The details of remuneration paid o Whole Time Directors during the year 2018-2019
are given below:
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MName of the Director Remuneration Allowances Incentives
V G K Prasad Es. 45 .00,000.00 NIL NIL
Y Indira Devi Fes. 300,00, 00000 NIL NIL
K Vasumathi Devi Bs, 30,00, 000,00 MNIL NIL

The remuneration is within the limits prescribed under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,

Remuneration 1o Non-Executive Direclors
Presently, the Non-Executive Directors do not receive any remuneration [rom the company and are paid sitting fees
for atlending the meetings of the Board and Committees thereof.

a) Details of Sitting Fees paid to Non-Executive Directors during the financial year 2018-2019,

The details of silting fees paid/payable to Non-Executive Directors during the financial year 2018-2019 was Nil.

Sitting Fee
Name of the Audit N & BB SHAEINICTS
: Board . Management | Relationship | Total
Director . Committee | Commiitee b
Meetings Meetin Meetin Committee Committee
il B Meeting Meetings

b} Remuneration of Directors:

The Managing Director, Whole Time Director and Executive Director of the company have been appointed on
contractual terms, based on the approval of the sharcholders. The remuneration package comprises ol salary,
allowances and perquisites. The details of remuneration paid o Whole Time Directors during the year 2018-2019
are given below:

Name of the Director Remuneration Allowances Incentives
V G K Prasad R, 45 .00, 000,00 NIL NIL
V Indira Devi R, 30,000 (0. 00 NIL NIL
K Vasumathi Devi Res. 300,00 000,00 NIL NIL

The remuneration is within the limits preseribed under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,

4. Stakeholder Relationship Committee:

The Share Transfer and Investor Grievance Committee comprises of Sri. K. Satyanarayana Prasad as Chairman and
Sri N Harinadh as Member. The Stakeholder Relationship Committee was constituted in accordance with the
provisions Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made therunder. During the year there was no
complaints received by the Company. Due to resignation of Sri.N.Haranadh for the directorship of the Company
518 Veerabhadra Rao was appointed as member of the Committee in place ol Shri.N.Haranadh.

5. Asset Liability Management Committee:

The Asset Liability Management Committee comprises of Sri V G K Prasad as Chairman, Sri 5.Veerabhadra Rao,
Sri.Vishal Kumar Gupta and Smt. K Vasumathi Devi as Members. During the year Shri Vihsal Kumar Gupta has
resigned and in his place Shri.Vishal Tulsyan was appointed as nominee director the Commiltee was also
reconstituted replacing Sni.Vihsal Kumar Gupta with SriVishal Tulsyan. The Asset Liability Management
Committee was formed to review and monitor liguidity and interest rate risk arising out of maturity mismatch of
assels and liabilities and 1o address the mismatches, if any, from tme 0 lme. During the year 2018-2019 the
committee mel 3 times on 27.04 2018, 23.07.2018 and 17.01.2019,
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Attendance of each Director at Asset Liability Management Committee Meeting

. Number of committee meeti
Name of the Director Category Held Atlefiﬁe d
V G K Prasad Exccutive 3 3
S.Veerabhadra Rao Independent Director 3 3
K.Wasumathi Devi Whele Time Director 3 3
Vishal Kumar Gupia ((Upto 07.12.2018) Nominee Director 2 1

6. Risk Management Commitiee:

The Risk Management Committee comprises of Sri V.G.K.Prasad as Chairman, 5r. § Yeerabhadra Rao Sri.Visal
Kumar Gupta and Smi K. Vasumathi Devi as Members. During the year Shri Vihsal Komar Gupta has resigned and
in his place Shri.Vishal Tulsyvan was appointed as nominee director the Committee was also reconstituted replacing
Sri.Vihsal Kumar Gupta with Sri.Vishal Tulsyan The Risk Managemen Committee was formed to review and
monitor Risk Managemeni policies and systems from time (o time, During the vear 201 8-2019 the commitiee met 3
times 27.04.2018, 04,090,201 8 and 17.01.201%.

Attendance of each Director at Risk Managemenl Commitlee Meelings

Name of the Director

Category

Number of committee meetings

Held Attended
WV G K Prasad Executive 3 3
S.Veerabhadra Rao Independent Director 3 3
K. Wasumathi Devi Whole Time Director 3 3

Vishal Kumar Gupta
({(Upto 07.12.2018)

MNominee Director

2

7. General Body Meetings:
a) Time and location of last three Annual General Meetings and Special Resolutions passed by the members

during the past 3 yvears AGMs.

AGM Day Date Time Venue Special Resolutions passed
27% AGM |Saturday| 29.09.2019 | 4,30 PM |Registered Office of ® Enhance the Bommowing Powers of the
the Company. 40-1- Company from Rs.2000 crores o Rs. 3000
144, Corporate Centre, crores
M.G.Road Enhance the power of Board of Directors
Vijavawada-520010, of the Company to lease and morigage of
Andhra Pradesh the property (ies) of the Company
Issue of MNon Converiible Debentures
(NCD) Tier I Debiisy Commercial
Papers/Bonds on Privale Placement Basis.
26" AGM |Thursday| 30-11-2017 | 4,30 PM |Registered Office of Enhance the Borrowing Powers of the
the Company. 40-1- Company from 1500 Crores to 2000 Crores
144, Corporate Centre.| e Enhance the power of Board of Directors
M.G.Road of the Company to lease and mortgage of
Vijayawada-320010, the property (ies) of the Company
Andhra Pradesh Issue of Non Convertible Debentures
(NCDy Tier II Debtis)f Commercial
Papers/Bonds on Private Placement Basis,
25° AGM Friday | 30-12-2016 | 430 P.M [Registered Office of Enhance the Borrowing Powers of the
the Company. 40-1- Company from 1000 Crores to 1500 Crores
144, Corporate Centre,| e Enhance the power of Board of Directors
M.G.Road of the Company (o lease and mortgage of
Vijayawada-520010, the property (ies) of the Company
Andhra Pradesh ® Issue of MNon Converiible Debentures
(NCD) Bonds on Private Placement Basis

32



b) Mo special resolution is proposed to be passed through postal ballot ot the ensuing AGM,

8. Means of Communication:
Required communications will be published in "Business Standard” (English) and “Andhra Prabha™ (Telugu) and
website of the Company www. ik finance.com.

9. Disclosures:
There are no materially significant ransactions with related parties i.e. Associate Companies, Promolters, Directors
or the key management personnel and their relatives conflicting with the Company’s interest,

10, General Information to Shareholder:

General Body Meeting, Day. Date, Time & Location
28" Annual General Meeting will be held on Wednesday 04-12-2019 4.30 PM at the Registered Office situated at #
40-1-144, Corporate Centre, M.G. Road, Vijayawada - 520 010.

Financial Calendar
Financial Year - 1™ April 2018 to 31* March 2019.

Book Closure dates
November 27, 2019 1o December 3, 2019

Last date for receipt of proxy forms
December 2, 2019 (Before 4.30 PM).

Share Transfers
Share transler requests were processed and share certilicates dispatched within 30 days from the date of lodgement,
in case of physical transfers.

The company’s shares are being compulsorily traded in dematerialized form with effect from Ist April, 2003, M/s,
Bigshare Services Privale Limited, who have been appointed as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the
company for both physical and electronic segments have attended to the share transfer formalities regularly, The
Registrars and Share Transfer Agents can be contacted by the investors al the following address:

M/s.Bigshare Services Private Limited, 306, 3rd Floor, Right Wing. Amrutha Ville, Opp.: Yashoda Hospital,
Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad - 500 (82, TelNo.: 040-23374967, Fax No.: (40-23374295, Email :

bsshyd @bigshareonline.com.

Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity
Total Shares held in electronic mode as on 31™ March, 2019 — 99.76%.

11. Distribution nl‘Shareholdini as on 3st March, 2019:

Rs. Rs. No T of total Rs. o of total
Upto 5,000 1086 71.58% 2051250 0.43%
5,001 10,000 208 13.71% 1779520 037 %
1i,0401 20,000 18 T.12% 1825460 .38 %
20,001 30000 13 2.18% 270150 018 %
30,000 40,000 22 1.45% 03340 17 %
40,001 50,000 12 0.79% 590600 012 %
0,001 1,000,000 14 0.92% 1124100 0.24%

L.00.001 & above 34 2.25% 465749370 98.10 %
Total 1517 100,005 47479379 1AM} M)
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12. Shareholding Pattern as on 31.03.2019:

Category Total % of Total Shares T
Shareholders Shareholders
Clearing Member 4 0.26% 525 0,001 %
Corporate Bodies 3l 2.04% 45121 (.095%
Foreign Company 1 0.06% 13051546 27.489%
Foreign Promolers 2 0. 14% 1611800 3.394%
Non Resident Indians B 0.53% 6429 0.013%
Promiders 5 0.33% 222550335 46.874%
Public 1465 0. 58 % 2704905 5.607%
Trusts | 0.06% TRO4018 16.437%
Total 1517 1 00005 47479379 (LX)

Address for correspondence and any assistancedclarification
13. Compliance Officer:

Mr. Ch.Sreenivasa Rao, Company Secretary, IKF Finance Limited, D No.: 40-1-144, Corporate Centre, M.G Road,
Vijayawada — 520010,
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Annexure-1T

Annual Report on CSR Activities

Brief outline of the Company’s CSE Policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed Lo be

undertaken:

a.  FEradicating hunger, poverty and malnuirition, promoting health care including preventive health care and
sanitation and making available safe drinking walter;

b, Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills and livelihood
enhancement projects;

¢.  Promoting gender equality, empowering women;

d.  Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance;

€. Contribution (o the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the Central / State
Government for socio-economic development and reliel:

I. Rural Development projecis;

g, Any other measures with the approval of Board of Directors on the recommendation of CSR Commitiee subject
to the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under.

Partnerships

Collaborative partnerships are formed with the Government, the District Authorities, the village panchayats, NGOs
and other like-minded stakeholders to widen the Company’s reach and leverage upon the collective expertise,
wisdom and experience that these partnerships bring 1o the table.

IKF Finance Limited is committed to improve the lives of the society in which it operates. The Company believes in
its efforts to improve the society and strives to create a positive impact on the communities it serves and on the
environment.

The objective of our CSR policy is 1o actively contribute to the social, environmental and economic development of
the society in which we operate.

Composition of CSR Commifiee is as under:

Sri 8. Veerabhadra Rao - Chairman
Sri Vishal Kumar Gupta - Member (Upto 07.12.2018)
S V.G.K Prasad - Member

Average Net Profit of the Company for the last three financial years: Rs.26,20,47,350

Prescribed CSR expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs.52,40.947

Details of CSR spend for the financial vear:

i. Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs.3,25,000/-

ii. Amount unspent: Rs 49.15.947/-
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iii, Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below

Amount
Sector . bm ouilay Amount Cumulative
CSR  Project | = . (budget spent  on | expenditure Amount
which the | Projects or
5. No. | or ject is | P project  or | the upto the | spent
identified e, s camnd Programs projects or | reporting directly
covered P .
wise) {in | programs | period
Rs)
. Thorough
Promotion F:mm!:mg Krishna
Road Education District
I and Road Safety | 3.00,000 300,004 300,000
and Vit Lorry
% i oeational
Training R Owners
Skills g
Association
Thorough
Andhra Pradesh | (O | omic iesics
2 M 25,000 25,000 25,000
Fund development | development Aulo
" and relief and relief Financiers
Association

Reasons for Unspent:

The Company

The objective of our CSR Policy was not just mere spending of amount but working towards social welfare. Your
Company is in the process of identifying suitable projects for its CSR activities.

The CSR Commines confirms that the implemeniation and monitoring of CSR Policy, ix in compliance with CSR
abjectives and Policy of the Company.

Place : Vijayawada
Date ; 18.10.2019

For and on behalf of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

{5 Veerabhadra Rao)
Chairman of the Committee

iV G K Prasad)

Member
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Annexure-I11

Form No. MGT-9

Extract Of Annual Return As (0n The Financial Year Ended 31" March, 2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i | CIN UpSY92API99IPLCOI2736
ii. | Registration Date 30/05/1991
iii. | Mame of the Company IKF FINANCE LIMITED
iv. | Category / Sub-Category of the Company Indian Non-Government Company
v. | Address of the Registered office and contact details | 40-1-144,3rd FLOOR, Corporate Centre,
M.G.Road, Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh-520010
vi. | Whether listed company ¥esd No
vii. | Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited

Transfer Agent, if any

306, 3rd Floor, Right Wing, Amrutha Ville
Opp. Yashoda Hospital, Rajbhavan Road
Somajiguda, Hyderabad- 500 082

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

sr.
No.

Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
products / services Product/ service company

Non Banking Financial Activity

09711 100%%

HI. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

APPLIC
HOLDING/
Name & Address of the 8 % OF ABLE
wBo Company NN bﬁ%ﬁ:ﬁf SHARES HELD | SECTIO
: N
. 95.55%
1 IKF Home Finance Limited Subsidiary (Fullly Diluted Basis)
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SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity j- Fully Paid

up)

i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Sharcholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

Year

Mo, of Shares held at the end of the year

% Change
during

the year

Demat

% of
Total

Shares

Physical Total

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

A. Promoter

1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

2,15.61.705

82,051 2.1643.756| 4754

2.22.55.035

2.22.55.035

46.87

(L6T)

b) Central Gowt

ch State Govi(s)

Bodies Corp

Banks / FI

Any Other

Sub-
total(A)(1):-

2,15,61,705

82,051 21643756 4754

2,22.55,035

2,22,55,035

46.87

(0.67)

2} Foreign

NRIs-Individuals

16,111,800

0 16,11,800

7
in
=

16,11,800

16,111,800

3.39

{0.15)

iher-
Individuals

Bodies Corp.

Banks / Fl

Any Other. ..
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Sub-total
(AM2):-

16.11.80K)

16, 11,800

3.54

16,11,800

16,011,800

3.40

(0.14)

B. Public
Shareholding

231,73,505

82,051

23255556

5108

2.38,66,835

23866835

50.27

NE1)

1. Institutions

Mutual Funds

Banks / F1

Cenitral Govl

State Govi(s)

Venture Capital
Funds

Insurance
Companies

Fils

Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

Onhers (specify)
Clearing
Members

Sub-total (B 1)

2. Non
Institutions

Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian

i) Overseas

70,73,171

118.29.268

7073171

118,29.268

15.54

25.98

T8AT913

1,30,51.546

TBA7.913

1,30,51,546

i6.53

27.49

0.99

1.51

Individuals

(i) Individual

7.54.189

51,099

8.05,288

.77

7.53.601

71,583

#.25.489

1.74

{0.03)
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shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
REs. 1 lakh

(i1} Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs |
lakh

24,26.647

24.26.647

17.82.468

46,000

18.28 468

3.85

(1.48)

Others(Specify)

1.36,093

1.36,093

0.30

59,128

59,128

012

(0.18)

Sub-total {B)(2)

33,17.160

51,099

2,22, 7L698

740

25,95,197

1,17.888

27,13,085

57

(1.69)

Total Public
Shareholding
(Bi=(B) 11+
(B)(2)

2,21,19.599

51,099

2,22,70,698

4892

2,34,94,656

1,17,888

2.36,12,544

49.73

081

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total

{A+B+C)

4,53.93,104

1,33,150

4.55.26,154

10000

4,73,61,491

1,17,888

4,74,79379
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Partly Paid up- Rs 5.40/- Paid up

Category of

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

Year

No. of Shares held at the end of the vear

%0 Changs
during

year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

A Promoter

1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

31,79.688

51,79,688

100.00

31,79,688

31,79,688

100,00

(0.00)

biCentral Gowi

c)State Goviis)

Bodies Corp

Banks / Fl

Any Other

Sub-
total{ A 1):-

51,79.688

51.79,688

51.79.688

51,79.688

(0.00)

2) Foreign

MNERIs-Individuals

Other-
Individuals

Bodies Corp.

Banks / Fl

Any Other. ...

Sub-total
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(AN2):-

C. Public
Shareholding

0

1. Institutions

Mutual Funds

Banks / F1

Central Gowvt

State Govi(s)

Venture Capital
Funds

Insurance
Companies

Flls

Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

Others (specily)
Clearing
Members

Sub-total (B)1)

2. Non
Insiitutions

Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian

ii) Overseas

Individuals

(1) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh
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(11} Individual
sharcholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs |
lakh

Others{ Specily)

Sub-total (By(2)

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)i1}+
(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total

(A+B+C)

51,79.688

51,79,688

51.79.688

51,79.688

(0.00)

43




i.Shareholding of Promoters

-

Sr.| Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year
No Name Year
No. of Shares | % of total | %of No. of Shares | % of total | %ol % change
Shares of Shares Shares of | Shares in share
the Pledged / the Pledged / | holding
company encumber company | encumbere| during the
ed to total dto total | year
shares shares
1 | Vupputuri
Gopala Kishan 1,47.31,651 32.36 1,53.41,030 32.31
Prasad Nil 832 | (0.03)
2 | Koganii
Vasumathi 21,31,286 4.68 Nil 21,31.286 4.49 Nil
Devi (0.19)
3 | Vupputuri (0.18)
it 20.06.117 4.41 38.87 20,06.117 4.23 38.87
Lakshmi
4 | Yupputusi 14.49,700 318 97.86 14,49.700 3.05 97.86 013
Raghu Ram
5 | Vupputuri (0.21)
3
fndies Disvi 13.26.902 i | (.93 13.26,902 2.719 6.9
8 | Durgs Ran 14,94.100 3.28 Nil 14,94,100 315 Nil (0.13)
Chunduri
7 | Chunduri Sinha i)
L17.700 0.26 il 117,700 0.25 Nil

Satyanand
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Shareholder’s

Shareholding at the beginning of the

Shareholding at the end of the vear

No Name year
No. of Shares | % of total | %of No. of Shares | % of total | %ol % change
Shares of | Shares Shares of | Shares in share
the Pledged / the Pledged / | holding
company encumber company | encumbere| during the
ed to total d to total | year
shares shares
I | Vupputuri Nil Nil
Gopala Kishan 35,05,821 67.68 . 3505821 67.68
Prasad Nil
2 | Koganti Nil il Nil
Vasumathi 5,15,980 0.96 5,15,980 9.96
Devi
3 | Vupputuri Nil Nil Nil
Vit 4. 85677 9,38 485677 9.38
Lakshmi
4 | Vupputuri 350970 6.78 Nil 3.50.970 6.78 Mil Nil
Raghu Ram
5 | Vupputuri Nil il Nil
s pii 321,240 6.20 3,21,240 6.20
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tii.Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no_change)
Fully Paid Up Shares- Rs 10/- each

Sr. Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding during the
no of the vear year
No. of shares % of total No, of shares | % of total shares of]
shares of the the company
company
Al the beginning of the year 2,32,55.550 48.98 2,32,55,550 48.98
Increase during the year 611279 1.28 2.38,66,835 50.26%
23866835 50.26% 2.38.66,835 50.26%
Al the End of the year
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Partly Paid Up Shares- Rs 5,40/ each

Sr. Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding during the
no of the year year
No. of shares %o of total Mo, of shares | % of total shares of]
shares of the the company
company
At the beginning of the year
51,79,688 IR 51,79,688 L0 My
Al the End of ihe year 51,79.688 104000 51,79.688 100 (M)
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Name wise changes

1. Vupputuri Gopala Kishan Prasad
Al the beginning of the year 1,47,29,751| 31.02 1,47.29.751 31.03
Increased during the year 61127 1.29| 1.53.41.030 32.31
Al the End of the year 1,53.41,030 32,31 1.53,41,030 32.31
2. Satyanarayana Sinha Chundori
At the beginning of the year 1,17.700 0.26 1.17.700 0.26
Changes during the year -No 0 0 0 0
Change
At the End of the year 117,700 0.26 1.17.700 (.26
3. Vupputuri Indira Devi
Al the beginning of the year 13,.26.902 2.78 13.26.902 278
Changes during the year -No 0 o 0 0
Change
Al the End of the year 13,26,902 2.78 13,2690 2.78
4 Vupputuri Vasantha Lakshmi
Al the beginning of the year 20,06.117 4.23 20.06,117 4.23
Changes during the year =No 0 o 0 0
Change
Al the End of the year 20,0611 4.41 20,060,017 441
5. Koganti Vasumathi Devi
Al the beginning of the year 21,31,286 4.49 21.31,286 449
Changes during the year -No 0 1 0 0
Change
Al the End of the year 21312 4.49 21.31.286 4.49
6. Durga Rani Chunduri
At the beginning of the year 14,94,1 3.15 14.94,100 3.15
Changes during the year —-No 0 0 0 L
Change
Al the End of the year 14.94,100 315 14,94, 10} 318
Nuopputuri Raghuram
Al the beginning of the year 14,49,700 3.05 14.49,700 3.05
Changes during the year -No 0 o 0 0
Change
Al the End of the year 14497 3.05 14.49.700 3.405

48



Share ing Pattern ten S, holders (other than Directors, Promoters Holders DRs an
ADRs):
51 No. Shareholding al the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
For Each of the Top 10 No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of
Shareholders the the
company company
1. India Business Excellence 1.18,29.268 2491 1,18.29,268 24.91
Fund - TTA
Al the beginning of the year
Increased during the year 1222278 2.57 1.30,51.546 27.48
At the End of the year 1.30,51.546 27.48 1.30.51,546 27.48
2. I AND FS Trust Company Lid T0.73.171 14.90 70.73,171 14.90)
{Trustee OF Business Excellence
Trust 11 - India Business Excellence
Fund-11
Al the beginning of the year
Incressed during the year — 7.30,847 1.54) TE04,.018 16.44)
Mo Change
At the End of the year T804,.018 1644 T8.04.018 16,441
3. Amit Bhutra 3.05.684 0.6 3.05.684 0.64
At the beginning of the year
Changes during the vear — 0 0 [ i
No Change
At the End of the year 305,684 0.64 3,05,684 0.64
4 Vupputuri Venkata Rao 242335 0.51 242335 0.51
Al the Beginning of the vear
Changes during the year - 0 0 0 0
No Change
Al the End of the year 242335 0.51 2.42 335 (.51
) M Venkat Rao 1,10.425 0.23 1,10425 0.23
Al beginning of the year
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Changes during the year -No 0 0 0 0

Change

At the End of the year 110,425 0.23 110,425 0.23
b K Chakradhara Rao 93,634 0.20) 93,634 0.20

Al the beginning of the year

Changes during the year — 0 0 0 0

No Change

Al the End of the year 93,634 0. 208 93,634 0.20
7 Bharat C Jain 85,615 0.18 85615 0. 18

At the beginning of the year

Changes during the vear - 0 0 0 0

No Change

Atthe End of the year 85,615 0.18 B5.615 0.18
) J Krishna Prasad 85,615 0.18 83615 0.18

Al the beginning of the year

Changes during the vear — 0 0 0 0

Mo Change

At the End of the year 85615 0.18 85615 .18
9 Suresh Chand Butara 50,770 0.11 50,770 0.11

Al the beginning of the year

Changes during the vear - 0 0 0 i)

Mo Change

Atthe End of the year 50,770 0.11 50,770 0.11
10 P Purnachandra Rao 34406 0.07] 34,406 0.07

At the beginning of the year

Changes during the year — o 0 0 0

No Change

At the End of the year 34,406 0.07 34,4006 0.07
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sl Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. heginning of the vear during the vear
For Each of the No. of % of total No. of % of total shares of
Directors and shares shares of the shares the company
KMP company

1. Vupputuri Gopala Kishan Prasad

Al the beginning of the year 14729751 31.02 1.47.29,751 31.02

Increased during the year 611279 1.29 1,53,41.030 32.31

Al the End of the year 1.53.41.030 3231 1.53.41.030 32.31
2. Satyanarayana Sinha Chunduri

At the beginning of the 117,700 0.25 1,17,700 0.25

year

Changes during the year - 0 0 0 0

No Change

Al the End of the year 1,17.700 0.25 117,700 0.25
3.Vupputuri Indira Devi

At the beginning of the 13.26,902 2.79 13,26,902 2.79

year

No Change 0 0 0 0

At the End of the year 13.26,902 279 13,2690 2.7
4. Vupputuri Vasantha Lakshmi

Al the beginning of the 2006117 422 20,006,117 4.2

yoir

No Change 1] o 0 0
Al the End of the year 2006117 4.22 2006117 4.2
S.Koganti Vasumathi Devi

Al the begmning of the 21.31.280 4.49 21.31,286 4.49

year

No Change 0 It 0 0

Al the End of the year 21.31.236 4.49 21.31,286 449
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IvV. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company incloding interest outstandingfacerued but not due for payment

Secured Unsecured | Deposits Total
Loans Loans

excluding

depuosits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i} Principal Amount 4143178039 | 1344497528 0 S4RTGTSB6T
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iif} Interest accrued but nod due 59902099 0 0 59902999
Total (i+ii+iii) 4203081038 | 1344497828 0 5547578866
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
- Addition J9B6BZIW6 | 250000000 4178682196
- Reduction 1057199373 | 799407828 1856697201
Net Change 2871482823 | -549497828 ] 2321984995
Indebledness at the end of the Ninancial year
i} Principal Amount TO15968826 [ 795000000 0 TR10968826
i) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iilh Interest accrued but not due SB595035 0 SR5U5035
Total (i+ii+iii) TOT4563861 | 795000000 0| 7869563861
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MUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PE

NNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

5L No. Particulars of Name of MD/WTIV Manager Total
Remuneration
Amount
. Gross salary VGK Prasad V.Indira Devi K Vasumati Devi
Managing Whaoletime Executive Director
Director Director
(a) Salary as per
provisions contained 45.,00,000 30.,00,000
in section 17(1) of the 30,000,000 1,05 00,004)
Income-tax Act,
1961
(b) Value of perquisites NIL NIL
w's NIL
17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961
(¢) Profits in lieu of
salary under section NIL NIL
17(3) Income- tax Act, NIL
1961
2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL
i Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL
4. Commission
- as % of profit NIL NIL NIL
= others, specify
5. Others, please specily
NIL NIL NIL
6. Total (A) 45.00.000 30,00,000 30,00,000 1.05.00.000
Ceiling as per the Act 3.54.78,723
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B. Remuneration to olher directors: Nil

Sk No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MDVWTD/
Manager

Total

Amount

In ndent Ddirectors
- Fee for atiending board commitiee meetings
- Commission

- Others, please specily

Tonal (1)

+ Fee for atiending board commitiee meelings

» Commission

- Others, please specily

Total (2)

Total (By=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Acl
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD /Manager /'WTD- Not Applicable

Particulars of

Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Company

Secretary

CFO

Total

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions

contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act. 1961

(b} Value of perguisites w's

1742) Income-tax

Act, 1961

(¢} Profits in liew of salary under
section

17(3) Income-tax

Act, 1961

41,52 669

15,95.001

57.47.670

b

Stock Option

Sweat Equily

Commission
- as % of profil

- others, specify...

Others, please specily

Total

35,31,000

6,87.097

7.50,000

49.68.097
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V1. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the | Brief Details of Penalty/ | Authority[RD Appeal
companies description made. If
Act Punishment/ MCLT/Court] any(give
Compounding lees details)
imposed
A, Company
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Wil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
B. Direciors
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Mil Nil
C. Other Officers In Default
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Mil Nil Mil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

For and on behalfl of the Board

IKF FINANCE LIMITED
Place: Vijuyawada
Date :  18.10.2019 (V G K Prasad) (V. Indira Devi)
Managing Director Wholetine Director
DIN : 01817992 DIN : 03161174
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Details of Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture Companies

The Company is not having any Associate and Joint Venture Companies as on date by virtue of Section 2 (6) of the
Companies Act, 201 3.

Acquisition of IKF Home Finance Limited: During the year your Company has acquired IKF Home Finance Lad,
IKF Home Finance Lid is a Public Limited Company, which is related to the promoters of the Company, who were
holding significant shareholding after oblaining the regulatory clearances from Reserve Bank of India and National
Housing Bank. As on 31.03.2019 the Company shareholding stood at 95.55% (on dilutive basis).

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing salient feares of the
financial statements of the subsidiary company in Form AOQC-1 is enclosed as Annexure - V of the Board's Report.

Annexure -V

Statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of
hsidi associate co i oint veni

[Pursuant to first proviso to Sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 5 of the Companies ( Accounts) Rules, 2014 - AQC-1)

{ Amount in Rupees)

Name of the L:-‘I-mminl schangd Share capital |Reserves & | Total assets | Total Eabilities [Investm] Turnover | ProfiviLoss) | Provision | Profit / % ol
subsidiary period ended  rate surplus (excluding share | enls before  For taxation | Loss) after | shaeebhol
caphial and taxation taxation ding
reserves &
surplus )
IKF Home -
Finance 310319 INE 3903647530 [2T1EL30T7] 157.64.62 748 11560334910 - 194047356 21760282 | 75.70.286 | 1.41.97.99% 95.55%
Limited

For and on behall of the Board
IKF FINANCE LIMITED

Place: Vijayawada

Date : 18.10.2019 (V G K Prasad) (V. Indira Devi)
Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 01817992 DIN: 03161174
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Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2019
[Pursuant to Section 2040 1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

T,

The Members,

IKF Finance Limited,

# 40-1-144, 3rd Floor,

Corporate Centre, M.G.Road,
Vijayawada, Andhra Pradesh-320010.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statory provisions and the adherence 1o
good corporate practices by IKF Finance Limited (hereinafier called “the Company™). Secretarial Audit was
conducted for the Minancial year ended on March 31, 2019 in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon,

Based on our verification of IKF Finance Limited's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, ils officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2019, generally complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafier:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company lor the linancial vear ended on March 31, 2019 according to the provisions of:

1} The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder;
21 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4)  Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment. Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act')-

a} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 201 1; Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period.

by The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period.

¢} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009, Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period.

d)  Securities Exchange Board of India (Share Based Emplovee Benefit) Regulations, 2014

e} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008:
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I Secwrities and Exchange Board of India (Registwrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agenis) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client: Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period.

2) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period. And

hy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,2008; Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(1) Secretarial Stumdards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and

(if) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with stock exchanges; Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions ol the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, ete. mentioned above. However, during the financial year the Company has not appointed
CFO as required under Section 203 of the Companies Act. 2013,

We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized
representatives during the conduct of the audit. and also on the review of guarterly compliance reports by respective
department heads / Company Secretary / Managing Director taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company, in our opinion, there are adequate systems and processes and control mechanism exist in the Company Lo
monitor and ensure compliance with the laws relating to Non Banking Financial Companies and other applicable
laws, Lo the extent applicable to the Company.

We further report that, that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect
tax laws, has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject 1o review by statutory financial audit
and other designated professionals.

We further report that. the Board of Direclors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Except in case of few Board meetings, which were held at a shorer notice 1o consider and transact some urgent
matters, where al one Independent Director was duly present; adequate notice was given 1o all Directors to schedule
the Board meetings and agenda with detailed notes there on were sent o all the directors at least Seven days in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications as may be required on
the agenda itlems before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were
unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that. there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with its size and
operations (o monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We lurther report that, during the audit period, the following material events / actions have taken place:
01. The Company has taken approval from the shareholders for following:

i. To enhance the Borrowing Powers of the Company from Rs.2.000 Crores to Rs.3,000 Crores.
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it. To enhance the power of Board of Directors of the Company o lease and morigage of the property (ies) of the
Company for a sum not exceeding Rs.3,000 Crore,

iii. To issue of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) / Tier I Debtis) / Commercial Papers / Bonds on Private
Placement Basis,

iv. To create, offer, and grant up o 7,99.516 Employee Stock Options under ‘IKF Finance Limited - Emplovee
Stock Option Plan 20197,

v. To grant upto Rs.7,00,00,000 an interest free unsecured loan, provide guarantee or security in connection with a
loan or any other financial assistance 1o the IKF Finance Employee Welfare Trust,

02. The Company has allotted following securities:
i. 350 Secured Rated Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenture of Rs. 10,000,000 each.
ii. 12.22,278 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each at a premium of Rs.118 per Share

iii.  7.30,847 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs.118 per Share

iv. 250 Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs.10,00,000 each

for B S § & Associates
Company Secrelaries

B.5athish

Partner

Place: Hvderabad ACS No.: 27885
Dare: 26.08.2019 C P No.: 10689

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A’ and Forms an integral part
of this report.
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Tuo,

‘Annexure A°

The Members,

IKF Finance Limited,

40-1-144, 3rd Floor,

Corporate Centre, M.G.Road,
Vijayvawada, Andhra Pradesh-520010.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter,

L.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audil practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis Lo
ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have nol verified the comrectness and appropriateness of financial records and Books ol Accounts of the
Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc,

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit reporl is neither an assurance as to the futore viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

for B8 § & Associafes

Company Secretaries

B.Sathish

Partner

Place: Hvderabad ACS No.: 27885
Dare: 26.08.2019 C P No.: 10089
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CEO CERTIFICATION

We, 1o the best of our knowledge and belief, centify that

2. Wehave reviewed financial statements and the cash Mow statements for the vear ended March 31, 2009 and that 1o
the best of our knowledge and beliel:

i, These statements do nol contain any materially unirue statement or omil any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading.

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations,

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

€. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining mternal controls for linancial reporting and that we
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting
and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose o take to rectify these
deficiencies.

d. Wehave disclosed, based on our evaluation wherever applicable Lo the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:
i.  There were no material deliciencies in internal controls over financial reporting during the year;

ii. Al the significant changes in accounting policies during the year. if any, have been disclosed in the notes o
the financial statement; and

iii. There were no instances of significant fraud of which we are aware and the involvement therein, of the
management or an employee having a significant role i the Company’s internal control system over
financial reporting.

For and on behali of the Board
IKF FINANCE LIMITED

(V G K Prasad)

Managing Direcior

DIN: 01817992
Place: Vijayawada
Date : 18-10-2019
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SR Barnusoi & Co. LLP 3% Senaail ohost Yac

Dadar (West)
Chartered Accountants Mumbai - 400 028, Ihdia

Tel : +91 22 6819 8000
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of IKF Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of IKF Finance Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2019, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We belleve that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our res ponsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The annual report is not made available to us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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S.R. BAtLBoi1 & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accou nting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to cuntin%
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S.R. BatLisoi1 & Co. LLP

Charterad Accountanis

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are regquired to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act,
read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(@) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been
paid by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:




S.R. BAtLiso1 & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountanis

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financiai position in
its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 30 to the standalone financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

fii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

-" : al‘-::;i.?_r; .’Nﬂxll
per Jitendra H. Ranawat (o f .

Partner '1L|.": i 15
Membership Number: 103380 W LK SEN
UDIN: 19103380AAAAPRT318 e
Place of Signature: Mumbai S

Date: September 30, 2019




SR Bariisoir & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAFPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Re: IKF Finance Limited (“the Company™)

() (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(b)

(c)

i)

iy

Civ)

)
(vid

details and situation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets were not physically verified by the management during the year but there is a
planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deed of
immovable property included in fixed assets is held in the name of the Company.

The Company’s business does not inveolve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(jii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including
entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investment
made and guarantees, and securities given have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.
To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the

maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
products/services of the Company.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,

goods and service tax, and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities though there have been slight delays in few cases. The provisions
relating to customs duty are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

(c)

{wiii)

respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, and
other statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to customs duty are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us there are no dues of income tax and
goods and service tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The
provisions relating to customs duty are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution,
bank or government or dues to debenture holders.
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S.R.Bariisoir & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

(i) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer, hence not
commented upon. Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied
for the purpose for which those were raised.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the standalone financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or material fraud on the
Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(i) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xiiy  In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company, not commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has
registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants
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Partner =

Membership No.: 103380

UDIN: 191033B0AAAAPRT7318

Place: Mumbai

Date: September 30, 2019
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Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IKF FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause () of Sub-section 3 of Section 1432 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IKF Finance Limited (“the
Company") as of March 31, 2019, in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements.




S.R. Batvisoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deterlorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following
material weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting as at March 31, 2019;

(a) The Company's internal financial controls over segregation of duties and recording of journal
entries were not operating effectively which could potentially affect the internal control
environment of the Company.

A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control
over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the company's annual or interim standalone financial statements will not be prevented or detected
on a timely basis.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, maintained adeguate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements as of
March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, and except for the possible effects of the material weakness described above
on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were
operating effectively as of March 31, 2019,
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Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143¢10) of the Act, the standalone
financial statements of IKF Finance Limited, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2019, and the related Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. This
material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the March 31, 2019 standalone financial statements of IKF Finance Limited
and this report does not affect our report dated September 30, 2019, which expressed an
unqualified opinion on those standalone financial statements.

For 5.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

WQ@MQ *

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner

Membership Number: 103380
UDIN: 191033B0AAAAPRT318
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: September 30, 2019




IKF Finance Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019 tAmaount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Motes 3i-Mar-19 Yi-Mar-18
Equity and liabilities
Sharcholders™ funds
Share capital 3 502,764,105 664,560,198
Reserves and surplus 4 2,196,137,295 . 578,035,710
2,698,901,400 2, 242,595,908
Non-current liabilities
Long-term bomrowings 5 3,558, 522,359 2900013769
Other long-term liabilities 7 40,458,001 39,420,141
Long-term provisions 108,407,564 79,709,560
3,707,387,924 3019143470
Current liabilities
Shori-term borrowings 9 1688519904 1. 104,335,537
Other current liabilities 10 3.041,126,869 2003834626
Short-term provisions g 30,987,748 19848670
4,760,634,521 3,128,018.833
TOTAL 11,166,923 9,758,211
Assets
Non-current assels
Fixed assets
Property, plant & equipment 11 29.455.945 33,626,695
Intangible assets 12 14,112,791 7.066,680
Deferred tax assets (net) f 12,588,763 9,986,580
Mon-current investments 13 452 509 628 &
Long-term loans and advances 14 6,093,492,094 4.961.821.004
Other non-current assets 15 130,704, 889 88536504
6,732,864,110 5,101,037 463
Current assets
Trade receivables 16 13,541,597 10,565,709
Cash and bank balances 17 376526814 784,077,544
Short-term loans and advances 14 3,844 962,087 2336915845
Other current assets 15 199,029,237 157,161,650
4.434.059.735 3, 288,720,748
TOTAL 11,166,923 8,389.758,211
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral pan of the Ninancial staements
As per our report of even date
For 8. K. BATLIBOL & CO. LLP For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
ICAT Firm registration number @ 300N3EE NS IKF Finance Limited
Chartered Accountants
per Jitendra H. Ranawat V.GUK Prasad V.ndira Devi
Pariner Managing Director Whaole Time Direcior
Membership No. 103380 DIN - D181 7992 DIN - 03161174

Date: 30-09-2019
Place: Mumbai

P.Chandra Sekhar
Chief Financial Officer

Date: 30-009-2019
Place: Vijavawada

Ch.Sreenivasa Rao
Company Secretary
M.No ACS14723
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IKF Finance Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated )

Notes 31-Mar-19 3 -Mar-18

Revenue
Revenue [rom operations 18 1,768,579, 870 1,356,968,553
Other income 19 1,053,547 927,936
Total revenue (1) 1, 769,633,417 1,357.896,489
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 20 226,288 466 198.109.715
Finance cosis 2] B19. 487,704 708,989,213
Other expenses 21 141,413 669 111,375,171
Depreciation and amortization expenses 23 9,163,077 7,270,937
Provisions and write-ofTs 24 61,896,221 38,657,355
Total expenses (1) 1,258,249.137 1.064.402,391
Profit before tax (1L1)=(1)-(11) 511,384,280 293,494,098
Tax expenses

Current tax 153,157.005 108,864,302

Deferred tax (2.602,185) (6,103,943)
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 6,042,229 (81 6,000)
Total tax expense (I'V) 156,597,049 101,944,359
Profit after tax (IIT)-(IV) 354,787,231 191,549,741
Earnings per equity share
| Nominal value of share Rs. 10 {March 31, 2008: Rs.10)] 25
Basic (Compuied on the basis of total profit for the year) 7.49 4.18
Diluted { Computed on the basis of total profit for the year) 7.49 415
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For 8. R. BATLIBOL & CO.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
1ICAI Firm registration nomber : 3001003E/E300005 IKF Finance Limited
Chartered Accountants
per Jitendra H. Ranawat Y.L K Prasad V.Indira Devi
Pariner Munaging Director Whaole Time Director
Membership No. 103380 DIN - 01817992 DIN - 03161174

P.Chandra Sekhar Ch.Sreenivasa Rao

Date: 30-09-2019
Place: Mumbai

Chief Financial Officer

Date: 30-09-2019
Place: Vijayawada

Company Secretary
M.No ACS14723
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IKF Finance Limited
Cashflow statement for the vear ended March 31, 2019

{Amount in Rupees unless othervwise sinted}

31-Mar-19 Al-Mar-18
Cash Now from operating activitles
Profit before tax 511,364,280 293,494,098
Adusiments 1o reconcile profit before tx 1o nei cash Nows:
Depreciation and amotizalion 9.163.077 7,2M0.937
Loss on sade of fixed assets and write off 1,323,745 -
Provision for employee benefits T.1054,156 1,504,831
Amorti zation of ancillary borrowing costs 230982027 22,953,708
Lawns written off 28,631,715 23,946,909
Contingent provision against siandard assets 11,889,676 1,254,627
Provision for mom-perfomming assels 18872 830 13455819
Provision for contingencies 3 500,000 :
Operating profil before working ca pital changes 614,803,506 Jed, 150,931
Movements in working capital :
{Decrease )/ Increase i other current and mon-current bk lines (51,593.020) 304,357,669
{Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (2,975 BE8) 9,824,035
{Increase) in loans and advances (2,674,393 276) (348,178.463)
{Increase) in other non-current assels (23,201 346) (9,991 .6 10)
{Incresse) in other current assets i41,867.588) {38, 923,8E2)
Diecrease / (Increase) in Margin money deposit (net) 195,113,578 {263,500,934)
Cash (used in) / generated from operations (L984,114, 034} 19,766,346
Dhirect taxes paid (net of nefunds) {144,313 462) (99,541,178)
Net cash Mow (used ind operating activities (A) 12128427 496) (79,774,832)
Cash Mows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets (13,403,582) (10,217.421)
Investments in subsidiary (452509.628) X
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 41,400 -
Met cash Mow (used in) mvesting activites (B) (465871 810} (102174213
Cash Mows from linancing activities
Proceeds from wsuance of compulson lv convetible preference shares - 250,000,000
Proceeds from issuance of panly paid wp equity shones 101,518,261 101 518,259
Long-term borrowings { net) 1,739, 108,591 419 190,746
Short-term bosrowings (net) 584,184,308 (B04,533.663)
Met cash Mow from / (used in ) iinancing activities (C) 2A44.811,220 {123, 824,660)
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (169 4K, 086 (213 816,914
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 305,845,351 519662264
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of the year 136,357,265 05 345351
Components of cash and cash equivalents 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Cash on hand 19,336,776 16237, 8RB0
Balances with banks in cumrent accounts 117,020,489 IR9.6074T1
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear ( refer note 17) 13 57,265 M5 845,351

Sommary of sigmificant secounting policies

The accompanying nodes are an integral pan of the financial state ments

Moles

15 The above cash flow stsement have been prepared under the indirect method et o in Accounting Standard (AS)-3, "Cash Flow Sumement’
nedified pursuand to the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20014 and the Companies { Accounting Stand ards} Amendment Rubes, 201 6.

23 All figures m brackets indicate outlow,

3) Diirect tax paid is treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investment and financial activities.

For 5. K. BATLIBO] & O LLP
ICAT Firm reglstration womber @ 200 60 3EE 300002
Chartersd Accountants

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Pariner
Membership Mo 1034380

Drane; 30092000
Place: Murmhai

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

TREF Fimanoe Limited

VALK Prasad
Managing Direcior
DN - D8 1792

P.Chondra Sekhar
Chiel Financial Officer

Drage: 30-09-2019
Place: Vijuyawadu

V. Indira Devi
Whade Time Direcior
DN - 03161174

Ch.Sreenivasa Rao
Company Secretary
MHNo ACS14T23
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IKF Finance Limited
Notes fo financdal statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

{Amaurt in Ripees unless otherwise stated)

X Share capital 31-Mar-19 3-Mar-18
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Authorized shares
6,00,00.000 { March 31, 20018: 6,00.00.000) equity shares of Rs, 10 cach CELRELVEE LT CEELELRRELY]
25,00,000 {March 31, 2008: 25,00,000) preference shares of Rs. 100 gach 2500000, OOy 2500000, OO0
Issued, subscribed and Mully paid-up shares
4,74.79,379 (March 31, 2018; 4,55.26.254) equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up 474,793, T} 455,262,540
Wil (March 31, 2018; 19.53,125) compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up B 195,312, 5(K)
474,793,791 650,575,040
Issued, subscribed and partly paid-up shares
51.79.688 (March 31, 2018: 51.79.688) equity shares of Rs.10 each, partly paid up Rs. 5.40 per
share (March 31, 2008: partly paid up Rs. 2.70 per share) 27,070,313 13.985,158
502,764,105 6l 560, 198
() Reconciliation of the shares ontstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
No. of Shares (Rupees)  No. of Shares { Rupees)
Fully paid equity shares of Rs 10 each
At the heginning of the year 45526254 455 262 540 45526254 455262, 540
Isswed during the vear 1953,125 19,331 250 - -
{'hmunding ai the end of the vear 47 479,379 474,793, 7H) 45,526,254 455,262,540
Compulsorily convetible preference Shares of Rs 100 each
A the beginning of the year 1,953,125 195,312,500 . -
{Converted) /£ Issued during the yvear {1.953,125) (195,312.5000 1,953,125 195,312, 5(0)
{msmndlng at the end of the vear - - 1.953,125 195,312, 5(6)
Parily paid up equity shares of Bs 10 each, partly paid up Rs, 540 per share
At the beginning of the year 5179688 13.985.158 . -
Amount called f Issued during the vear . 13,985,157 5.179.688 13,985,158
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,179,688 27970315 5,179,688 13,985,158
S2.659,067 502,704,105 51,659,067 il 5610, 198

ib) Terms! rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Es. 10 per share. Each holder of eguity shares is entitled w one vote per share. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject io the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(¢} Terms of conversion' redemption of CCPS

Each CCPS is compulsorily convertible inte one equity share of Rs 1 each within a period of one year from the date of allotment.

() Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares of fully paid and partly paid up As at March 31, 2009 As at March 31, 2018
No. of Shares % holding in the  No. of Shares % holding in

class the class
‘I.I'u]'lputl.u'l (mpa]u Kul'un Prm.ad 15,867,900 3342% 14,731,651 31.03%
India Business Excellence Fund-11A 13:051,546 2749% 11829268 24.91%
Vistra ITCL (India) Limited { formerly known as IL and FS Trust Company
Limuited ) (Trustee of Business Excellence Trust-11 - India Business Excellence
Fund [Ty TEMO18 It 445% T.073,171 14 S5

uity shares of Bs 10 each i Rs. 5.40 per share

Vupputuri Gopala Kishan Prasad 3505821 6T.68% 3.505.821 67.68%
Koganti Yasumathi Devi 515,980 .96% 515,980 9.96%
W Indira Devi 321,240 6. 20% 321,240 6. 20%
YV Raghu Ram 350,970 6,78% 350,970 6. 78%
D Vasantha Lakshmi 485,677 9.38% 485677 9.38%
En:llu Bu_-1|m-i Eit:l.l.'lf'l.‘ki.‘c Fumnd- llA a [N 1. 222278 62, SB%
Vistra ITCL (India) Limated (formerly known as 1L and PS Trust Company
Limited) { Trustee of Business Excellence Trust-11 - India Business Excellence
Fund [Ty 0.005%: TA0847 3742%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from sharcholders regarding beneficial

interest, the sbove shareholding represents bath legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.



IKF Finance Limited

MNotes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

{Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated )

4. Reserves and surplus 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Capital reserve

Balance as per the last financial statements 3250000 3, 250000
Add: Issved during the year - -
Closing balance 3,250,000 3,250,000
Securities premiom account

Balance as per the last linancial statements 645,191,926 302,971,324
Add: Issued during the year 263.314,354 142,220,602
Closing balance 008,506,280 645,191,926
Statutory reserve persuant (o sec 45-1C of The RBI Act, 1934

Balance as per the last financial statements 228,507,116 190,197,168
Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss 70,957 446 38,309,948
Closing balance 299,464,562 228,507.116

General reserve
Balance as per the last [inancial statements

54,435,382

44,857,895

Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss 17,739,362 0,577 A87

Closing balance 72,174,744 54,435,382

Surplus/ (deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as per last financial stalements 646,651,286 502 988,978

Add: Profit for the year 354,787,231 191,549,741

Less: Translerred to stalutory reserve (70,957.446) (38,309,948)
Less: Transfer 1o general reserve (17,739,362) (9.577487)
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 912,741,709 646,651,286

Total reserves and surplus 2,196,137.295 1,578,035,710

5. Long-term borrowings Non currenl portion Current malurities®

M-Mar-19 J-Mar-18 J-Mar-19 J1-Mar-18

Secured
Term loans
Loan from banks 1,725,839, 787 1,331,405,866 1.431,204,829 997,026,421
Loan from financial institutions - 29,997,061 29,997,061 44,249,161
Loan from non banking financial companies 824,903,822 218,610,991 434,392,073 202,051,129
Debentures
Non convertible debentures 337,778,750 619,999 851 543,332,599 149,999 850
Unsecured
MNon convertible debentures (Tier-11) 300,000,000 J00, 000,000 - -
Indian rupee loan from banks (Tier-I1) 150, 000,000 150,000,000 - -
Other non convertible debeniures 220,000,000 2 50,000,000 125,000,000 -

3,558,522.359 2,900,001 3,769 2,563.926,562 1.483.326,561

# Amount disclosed under note 10 Other current liabilites

Nature of security

Term Loans from banks, [inancial institutions and non - banking linancial companies are secured by an exclusive charge by way of
hypothecation of specific loan receivables created out of the loan proceeds and cash collateral by way of fixed deposits and mortgage of
personal properties of directors in addition 1o their personal guarantees,
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IKF Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

{Amount in Rupees unless otherwise siared)

5. Long-term borrowings ( Contd.)

Terms of repayment of long term borrowings (term loans and non convertible debenture) as on March 31, 2019

Due within 1 year

Due between 2 to 5 Years

Due more than 5 Years

Original maturity of loan Interest rate No. of Amount No, of Amount No. of Amount Total
installments lin Rupees) installments {in Rupees) installments | {in Rupees)
Monthly repayment schedule
8.00%-9.00% 12 380,840 if 1,353,151 - - 1,733,991
9.00%- 10,505 137 921,373,982 158 1,291, 819,007 - - 2,213,192 989
1-7 Yrs 10.51%-11.50% 59 432,634,237 35 162,859,911 - 595,494,148
11.51%-12.50% 48 256,700,781 130 783,795,463 = - 1,040,505, 244
12.51%-13.50% 3 5,065,629 - - - 5,065,629
Cuarterly repayment schedule
9005 1L It G DL OO 18 SO COH N - - 1 5000, 00
I-5 Yrs 11 OO -12 (0 14 40618577 14 518.694 826 - 959,313,403
12.01%-12.50% 13 137,143,667 - - - - 137,143,667
Bullet repayment schedule
9.51%-10.50% - - 1 200,000,000 - 200,000,000
1-14 Yrs 10.51%-11.50% 5 300,999 850 I 60,000,000 - - 369,999,850
11.51%-12. 50 - - 1 1500000, 00 - - 1 50,000, 00K)
=13.50% - 1 300,000,000 - 00,000,000
Total 2,563,926,563 3,558,522,358 - 122,448,921
Terms of repayment of long term borrowings iterm loans and non convertible debenture) as on March 31, 2018
[hie within 1 year Due between 2 to 5 Years Due more than 5 Years
Original maturity of loan Interest rate No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount Total
installments (in Rupees) installments {in Rupees) installments | {in Rupees)
Monthly repayment schedule
B.00%%-9,00% 12 349,584 48 1,734,743 - - 2,084,327
9.00%- 10.50% a7 330099 623 176 632,914,737 - 963014360
-7 ¥rs 10.51%-11.50% ol 265,337,499 77 287,363,999 - 552,701,498
11.51%-12.50% H 153,800,124 - - - - 153,800,124
12.51%-13.50% 12 21,239 881 3 4. 875,440 - - 26,115,321
Duarterly repayment schedule
0005 10005 fi 50,000,000 22 140,000,000 2| 10,000,000 200,000,000
I-5 Yrs 11.00%-12.00% 8 262, 500,000 B 365,625,000 628,125,000
12.01%-12.50% 20 250,000,000 13 137,500,000 - 387,500,000
Bullet repayment schedule
951 %-10.50% - - 1 250,000,000 - - 250,000,000
1-14 Yrs 10.51%-11.50% 4 149.999.850 5 559,999.850 : - 709,999,700
P1.501%-12 50%: - - 5 210000, 00K - - 2 10,000,000
=13.50% - - 1 300,000,000 - 300,000,000
Total 1.483,326.561 2.890,0113.76%9 10,000,000 | 4,383.340,330
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IKF Finance Limited

Notes to flinancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Amount in Rupees unless otferwise stated)

6, Deferred tax asset / (liahility ) (net) 31-Mar-19 Al-Mar-18
Deferred tax liabilities

Impact of amortisation of anciallary bormowing cost 10,334 T84 | 3,050,499
Gross deferred 1ax labilities 10334784 13050,499
Deferred tax assets

Impaet of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but allowed for 1ax purposes 4,052,101 2397517
on payment basis

Impact of provision for standard and non performing assets 16,705,232 18,969 703
Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reporting S6l), (K5 R55,652
Impact of provision for contingencies T28,0H) -
Oihers E78.129 814,206
Gross deferred tax asseis 22923,547 23,037,079
Net deferred tax asset / (liability ) 12,588,763 9,986,580

Pursuant to The Taxation Laws {Amendment) Ordinance. 2019 (Ordinance) issued subsequent 1o the balance sheet date, the tax rates have changed with
effect from | Apr 2019, and the company plans (o pay tax at revised rate from next vear. Il these changes were announced on or before reporting date,
defermad tux asset would have been reduced by Rs. 15100612, The tax credit for the vear would have been decreased by Rs, 15,10.612.

7. Other non-current liabilities 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Deposit from franchisees 40,458,001 39420, 141
40,458,001 39,420,141
Long-term Short-term
8. Provisions J-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 Jl-Mar-18
Provision for employee beneliis
Provision for gratuity (refer note 31) 6,264,151 4,291 649 440,537 621,577
Provision for leave benefits 5,100,526 1,374,770 2,100,967 573,029
11,373,677 5,666,419 2,541,504 1,194,606
Other provisions
Provision or taxation (Netof advace 1ax Rs. 144.526.454 (March 21,
2018: Rs. 100,037 .224)) . . B 543,544 9323124
Contingent provision against standard assets (refer niote 32) 22,420,331 18,302,415 17,102,700 0, 3300,940
Provision for non-performing asseis (refer noie 32) 74,613,556 55,740,726 - -
Provision for contingencies . - 2 500 (1K) -
97,033,887 74,043,141 28,446,244 18,654,064
108,407,504 79,709 564 30,987,748 159.848.670
9, Shori-term borrowings M -Mar-19 J-Mar-18
Loan repayable on demand (secured)
Cash credit From banks 1,688,.510.004 450,837,709
Unsecured
Commercial paper - 644,497 828
1 68H.519 504 1,104 335,537

Cash credit limits from banks are secured by way of hypothecation of identified loan receivables, book debis iogether with underlying asseis created with
bank fund and other curment assets (excluding assets which are specifically charged 1o others) and mortgage of the Company's office premises and personal
properties of directors, their relatives, associates besides their personal puaraniee.

10. Ovther current liahilities J1-Mar-19 J1-Mar-18
Emplovee henefits payahle BTG, 100 hEE6.B65
Payabke towards securitisation / assignment ransactions 217654073 231 984 870
Expenses payable 62,868 532,293
Other payable 151.056,398 197,028,324
Statuory dues payable 14713481 10,415,156
Deposit from franchisees 26,232,262 13,461,644
Deposit from others - 205414
Oither Habilities
Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 5) 2563926 562 1. 483,326,561
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 58,595,035 59 902 999
3041, 1268649 2,003,534,626




IKF Finance Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Ameauni in Rupees unless otherwise stated )

11. Property, plant and Building Furniture and  Computers & (HTice Vehicles Total
equipment fixtures SEFVErs el uipments

Tiross Block

At April 1, 2017 1071, 722 49 T48483 10,906,191 1 363040 9171073 72,350,500
Addinons - 447 689 2 168,000 31935 2 168808 4,816,432
At March 31, 2018 1.071,722 50,196,172 13,164,191 1394975 11339881 77,166,941
Additions - 573,268 29078021 289585 - 3840875
Dieductions - (16,1294 35) {6,962 8400 (BOT.649) (1,296.688) (25,196,612}
At March 31, 2019 1.071,722 34,640,005 9.179371 576911 10,043,193 55,811,203
Depreciation

At April 1,2017 356,580 25,705 006 1260777 963055 2763678 37139995
Charge for the year 16,2649 3425244 1 3874584 11,802 959,753 6,400, 252
At March 31, 2018 373,548 29221150 9,148,261 LOT7 3856 3713431 43,540,246
Charge for the yvear 16.969 3148471 2236230 128073 1186197 6,715,940
Deductions - (15,319,851) i6,581,955) {T67.268) (1,231 854) (23,000,928 )
At March 31, 2019 390517 17.0649,7 700 4802536 4340661 INTT.774 26,355,258
Net Block

At March 31, 2018 698,174 20,975,022 4015930 321119 7616450 33,626,695
At March 31, 2019 i 1205 17,590,235 437683 442250 6365419 19,455,945
12. Intangible assets Computer Total

soflware

Gaross block

At April 1,2007 5769331 3769331

Addition 5400989 5. 400,989

At March 31, 2018 11,170,320 11170320

Addition 9.562, 708 9562708

Deductions (1,389,22(0 (1,389,220

At March 31, 2019 19,343 508 19343 808

Depreciation

At April 1, 2007 32329054 3232954

Chasge for the year 470680 370,686

At March 31, 2018 4,103 640 4,103,640

Charge for the year 2447136 2447 136

Deductions (1.319.759) (1.319.759)

At March 31, 2019 5231017 5231017

MNet block
At March 31, 2018 7066680 7,066,680

At March 31, 2019 14,112,791 14,112,791
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IKF Finance Limited

Motes Lo financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

{Ameount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

13. Non-current investments Non-current Current
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Invesiments in subsidiary (unguoted equity shares)
3.76.14.747 (March 31. 2018: Nil) equity shares fully paid in IKF
Home Finance Limited 452,509,628 - - =
452,509,628 - - -
Non-current Current
14. Loans and advances 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
A, Loan portfolio
Secured, considered good*® 5.375,082.771 4.513,832,741 3,753.422.263 2,297.911.300
Un-secured, considered good* - - 35,921,345 34,823,581
Secured, considered doubiful®* 413,132729 373,524,440 - -
Loan and Advances to related parties 230,000,003 - 53.013,957 -
Total (A)  6,018,215,503 4,887,357,181 3.842,357.565 2,332,734,881
* Represents standard assets in accordance with Company’s asset classification policy (refer note 2.1)
** Represents non-performing assets in accordance with Company's asset classification policy (refer note 2.1)
B. Security deposits
Unsecured. considered good 15,685,680 14,740,330 - -
Total (B) 15,685,680 14,740,330 - -
C. Other loans and advances (unsecured, considered good)
Advance income tax (Net of provision for tax Rs. 17,18.61.167
(March 31, 2018:; Rs, 17,18,61,167)) 34,5809 395 41,070,424 - -
GST input credit 24,998,516 18,653,069 - -
Employee loans - = 2479551 4,180,964
(nhers receivables - - 124.571 -
Total (C) 59587911 59,723,493 2,604,522 4,180,964
Total (A+B+C) 6,093.492,094 4961821004  3.844.962,087 2,336,915,845
15. Other assets Non-current Current
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Margin money deposit (refere note 17) 109859066 6,910,000 - -
Interest accrued but not due on loan portfolio - . 156,942,312 116,609,976
Interest accrued but not due on deposits placed with banks 442.685 6,308,410 13,638,438 1,308,088
Unamortised ancillary cost of borrowings 20403138 15318094 18,206,243 22,028,801
Other-unsecured, considered good : c 10,242,244 11,214,785
130,704,889 88,536,504 199,029,237 157,161,650
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Current
16. Trade receivables J1-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 5459754 -
Outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 8.081,843 10,565,709
13,541,597 10,565,709
Non-current Current
17. Cash and bank halances J-Mar-19 3-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 3-Mar-18
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
in clurrent accounts - 117.020.489 289607471
Cash on hand - 19,336,776 16,237 880
= 3 136,357 265 305,845,351
Other bank balances
Deposits with remaining maturity of less than 12 months - - 5,289,263 -
Margin money deposit (refer note below) 104,859,066 i, 910, (KK 234,880,286 478,232,193
109,859, (W 66, 910,000 240,169,549 478,232,193
Amount disclosed under non-cument assets (refer note 15) {109, 859,066) {66, 910,000) - -
- - 376,526,814 T84.077.544

Mote: Represent margin money deposits placed to avail term loans from banks, financial institutions and as cash collateral in connection with

securitization ransactions.
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I8. Revenue from operations ] 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Interest income on portfolio loans 1.477,006,741 [.167.584.728
Excess interest spread on securitization / income from assignment 253,377,756 153,452,310
Other operating revenue
Fee and other charges 9,505,265 B.741.4590
Income from alliance partner arrangement 1,614,439 6,004,771
Interest on mangin money deposits® 26,542,748 | 8,905 488
Servicer fee on securitization/assignment 532921 1,979,766
1.768,579.870 1,356,9%68,553

* Represents interest on margin money deposits placed to avail term loans from banks, financial institutions. and on deposits placed as cash
collateral in connection with securitization.

19. Other income 3 -Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Rental income 762,720 T67.691
Miscellaneous income 200,827 1640,245
1,053,547 927,936

20. Employee benefit expenses 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Salaries and bonus / incentives 203,589,103 183,554,845
Contribution to provident fund 7.625,2584 7,202,849
Contribution to employee state insurance corporation 3274969 3,334 8RS
Leave benefits 5,729.230 338,460
Grafuily expenses 2,076,130 I.466,373
Seaft welfare expenses (refer note 26) 3,993,750 2,212,300
226,288, 466 198,100,715

21. Finance costs 31-Mar-19 J1-Mar-1%

Interest

On term loans from banks 342,036,571 260,553,003
On term loans from financial institutions 5,708,991 11,034,978
On term loans from non banking financial companies 49,824,450 60,777,615
On bank overdraft facility 138,937 416 189,034,808
On debenmures 174,040,689 133,939,331
On commercial paper 55,502,172 5,321,736
her Finance costs 49,352,972 44918122
Bank charges 4,083,443 3.400.571
819,487,704 TOR,989,.214
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21. Other expenses J1-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Rent (refer note 26) 22 868,989 19.917,701
Rates and taxes {refer note 26) 13,285,248 14.944 464
Insurance 596,679 261,176
Repairs and maintenance 5,396,959 4,052,187
Electricity charges (refer note 26) 3.371.801 3,185,590
Travelling and conveyance (refer note 26) 18,069,889 8.030.453
Communication expenses (refer note 26) 6,298.573 5,246,465
Printing and stationery (refer note 26) L3008 198 1.551.723
Legal and professional fees (refer note 26) 16,932,108 18,675,118
Auditors’ remuneration (refer details below) 2630217 2031.232
CSR expenditure (refer note 36) 325,00 75,000
Sourcing commission (refer note 26) 37340176 2R.099 899
Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment / Write of f of propenty, plant & equipment 1,323,745 -
Miscellaneous expenses (refer note 26) 11,666,087 5.304.163
141,413,669 111,375,171
Pavment to auditors M-Mar-19 A-Mar-18
As muditor:
Audit fees 2,350,000 LA O00
Certification fees 1 50,000 150,000
Reimbursement ¢xpenses 130,217 81,232
2,630,217 2,031,232
23, Depreciation and amortization expense 31-Mar-19 3l-Mar-18
Depreciation of tangible assets 6,715,940 6,400,252
Amontization of intangible assets 2,447,136 R70.685
9.163,077 7,270,937
24, Provisions and write-offs 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Contingent provision against standard assets (refer note 32) 11.889.676 1,254,627
Prowision for non-performing assets (refer note 32) 18,872,830 13,455,419
Provision for contingencies 2,500,000 -
Portfolio loans and other balances wnitien off 28,633,715 23946 909
61,896,221 38657355
25. Earnings per share (EPS) 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Met profit for calculation of basic EPS 354,787,231 191,549,741
Net profit for calculation of diluted EPS 354,787,231 191.549.741
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 47386634 45,805,057
Effect of dilution : . .
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS 47,386,634 46,172 485
Earnings per share :
Basic (Rs.) T.49 4.18
Diluted (Rs.) 7.49 4.15

[ Mominal value of shares Bs. 10 each (Previous Year : Bs.10)]
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1.

1.

Corporate information

IKF Finance Limited ( ‘the Company” ) is & public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provision of the
Companies Act, 1956, The Company was registered as 8 non-deposit accepting Non-Buanking Financial Company
(*'NBFC-NI¥ ) with the Reserve Bank of India (*RBI'Y and classified as 4 Non-Banking Financial Company — Asset
Finance Company ("NBFC-AFC') with effect from May 12, 2014, The Company provides finance for commercial
vehicles, constrection equipment and other loans.

Basis of preparation

The finuncial ststements of the Company have been prepared in aceordance with generally aceepted sccounting principles
in India {Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all matenal respecis with the
Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”), read together with rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2004 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 20016 and the
provisicas of the RBI as applicable toa NBFC - ND. The inancial statements have been prepared on an scerual basis and
under the historical cost convention.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous vear.
Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management (o make judgments,
estimates and assumplions that affect the reponed amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingeni liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in fuwre periods.

b. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow o the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured.

i. Interest income on loans given is recognized under the internal rate of retrn method. Income or any other charges on
non-performing asset is recognized only when realized and any such income recogmized before the asset became non-
performing and remainng unrealized is reversed.

ii. Interest income on deposits with banks is recognized on a time proporiion accrual basis taking into account the
amouni outstanding and the interest rate applicable.

iii. Profit / premium arising at the time ol securitization / assignment of loan ponfolio is amorized over the life of the
underdying loan portfolio ¢ securities amnd any loss ansing there [rom s accounted for immediately. Interest spread
under par structure of securitization of loan receivables is recognized on realization over the tenure of the “securities
issued by SPV" fagreements. Intéerest retained under assignment of loan receivables is recognized on accerual basis over
the life of the underlyving loan portfolio,

iv. Additonal finance charges/ additional interest are recognized on realization basis,
v. All other income 1% recogmzed on an sccrual basis.

. Property, plant and equipment

All tangible asseis are stated ai cost net of accumulated depreciation. The cost comprises purchase price and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset (o its working condition lor the intended use.

d. Depreciation
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on the siraight line method using the rates arrived st based on useful life

of the assets prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is also as per the useful life of the assets
estimated by the management.
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Asset fype Useful life estimated by the management (years)
Building B

Compulers 3

Servers f

Furmiture 14k

Office equipment >

WVehicles (Car, Loy, Bus) B

Vehicles (Bike, Moped, Cycle) 10

e, Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition intangible
assels are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price
and any atiributable cost of bringing the asset o its working condition for its intended use,

Computer Software is amortized on a straight line method over 6 years which s as per the useful life of the assets
estimated by the management.

Amortization on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognized on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss
till the date of acquisition/sale.

. Impairment of assels

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is reguired, the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use, The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to 118 recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash Nows are discounted o their present value using o pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time valee of money and the nsks specific o the assei. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, iF available. 1T no sech transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model
is used.

Adter impairment. depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life,

g Investments

Invesiments, which are readily realizable and intended (0 be held for not more than one year from the date on which such
investments are made, are classified as current investments in accordance with the RBI guidelines and Accounting
Standard 13 on *Accounting for investments”. All other investments are classified as long-term investments,

On initial recognition, all investments are megsured o cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attribuable
acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. Current investments are carried in the Anancial stalements o lower
of cost and fair value determined on an individual invesiment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However,

provision for diminution in value is miade 10 recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments,

On disposal of an investment. the difference between its carrying amount and met disposal proceeds is charged or credited
to the statement of profit and loss.

h. Loans

Loans are stated at the amount advanced including finance charges accrued and expenses recoverable, up 1o the Balance
Sheet date as reduced by the amoumnts received and loans securitized.

i. Secoritization / direct assignment

The Company enters into arrangement for sale of loan receivables through direct assignment [/ securitization. The said
assets are derecognized upon mansfer of significant risk and rewards to the purchaser and on meeting the true sale criteria,
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j.

Leases (where the Company is the lessee)

Leases where the lesser effectively retains, substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are
clussified a5 operating lesses, Operating lease pavments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
on @ straighi-ling basis over the lease term.

k.

Borrowing costs

Ancillary borrowing costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and amortized over the tenure of the
respective borrowings.

it

iik.

.

ii,

v,

Retirement and other emplovee benelits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined comrbution scheme. The Company has no obligation.
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution pavable o the
provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service,

Gratuity liability is & defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an aciarial valuation on projected
unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Actwarial gains and losses for defined benefit plans are
recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be camried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method al the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken 1o the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presenis the leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right o defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be wilized within the next |12 months, is reated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the addinonal amount that it expects w pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date,

. Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected 1o be paid to
the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws uwsed Lo
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax
relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss,

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income
ongimating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tux 15 measored
using the tax rotes amnd the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax
relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss,

Deferred tax lishilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recopnized for
deductible timing differences only 1o the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sulficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In sitvations where the Company has
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forwand tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only i there is virual
certainty supponed by convincing evidence that they can be realized against lulure taxable profits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at esch reporting dimte. The Company writes-down the
carmying amount of deferred ax asset (o the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the
case may he, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax assel can be realized.
Any such write-down is reversed o the exient that it becomes reasonably ceriain or virtually certain, as the case may
be, that sufficient future axable income will be available.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable 1o equity shareholders by
the weighted avernge number of equity shares owstanding during the vear, Partly paid equity shares are treasted as fraction
of an equity share to the extent thai they were entitled to participate in dividends relaied to a fully paid equity share during
the reporting year.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attnbutable o equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares cutstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares,

0. Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past eveni, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and ane determined based on the
best estimate required 1o settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting dute and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

p. Contingeni liabilities

A contingent hability 15 a possible obligation that arses from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence of non-occwrence of one or more uncertain finure events beyvond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probuble that an owtflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also anses in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized

because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

g. Cash and cash equivalents

Cuash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and cash at bank and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

r. Corrent/ non-current classification of assets / linbilities

The Company has classified all its assets/liabilities into current/mon-current portion based on the time frame of [ 2months
from the date of the financial statements, Accordingly, assetsfliabilities expected 1o be realized fsettled withinl 2 months
from the date of Ninancial statements are classi fed as cumrent and other assetsd liabilites are classihed as noncurrent,

% Classification of loan portfolio

Portfolio loans are classified as follows:

Assel classification Arrear period

Standard asseis Owerdue up io 3 months

MNon-performing assets

Sub-standard assets Owverdue for more than 3 months and uptol 4 months

Doubiful assets Crhverdue for more than 14 months and above

Loss assels a)  An assel which has been identified as loss asset by the Company or it's intemal or
external auditor.

by An asset which is adversely affected by a potential threat of non-recoverability due

to either erosion in the value of secunty or non-availability of security or due to
any fraudulent act or omission on the part of the bormower,

“Owverdue” refers (o interest and / or installment remaining unpaid (rom the day it became receivable.
. Provisioning policy For Loan porifolio

Provisioning policy for loan portfolio:

Assel Arrear period Provisioning
Classification percentage
Standard assets Upto 3 months (40%
Sub-standard assels Overdoe for more than 3 months and upto 14 months 105
Do btful assers* Cherdue for more than 14 months and upto26 months 3
iSecured)
Chverdue for more than 26 months and upto38months 0%
COwverdee for more than 38 months and upto50months T5%
Overdue for more than 50 months and above 100%
i ki As identi!i?d by the Company and loans with poiential threat of non- Written off
recoverability

*Unsecured portion of doubtful assets are provided o 1005
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26.  Prior period items

The prior period items are a5 follows:

Particulars March 31, 2019 | Refer note March 31, 2018 Refer note
Salaries and bonus [ incentives - | Note 20 10,591,596 Note 19
Staff Wellare Expenses (5,793) MNote 20 (74,149 Mote 19
(her expenses

- Rent (8, 8000) MNote 22 {22 6600 Mote 21
- Communication Expenses (1,53,578) | Moe22 (35.6599) Note 21
- Printing & Stationery (1,320) Note 22 (39.186) MNote 21
- Rates and taxes (2,000) | Note 22 {21.000) Mote 21
- Electricity charges ($0.987) | Note 22 (1.26.118) Note 21
o Traw:lli'nE expenses (12,948 Note 22 3 .

- Postage & Courier (40,305} | Mote 22 (83.316) Note 21
- Office Maintenance (23.695) [ Note 22 (31.395) MNote 21
- Office Expenses - | Note 22 (2,10,057) Note 21
- Computer Maimtenance - Note 22 (850) MNote 21
- Commission Expenses (58.31.515) Note 22 - Note 21
- Yard Charges (15.650) | Note 22 - Note 21
- Legal & Professional Fee (72,22.782) | NMowe22 - Note 21
Tutal (1,34.09.373) 427,164

27, Segment information

The Company operates in a single business segment i.e., financing, which has similar risks and returns for the purpose of
AS 17 on *Segment Repornting specified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies ( Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, The Company operates in a
single geographical segment i.e. domestic.

28. Related parties

Related Party disclosures as required by Accounting Standard-18 —"Related Pary Disclosures” issued by [CAl are given
below for the year ended March 31, 2019,

Key management personnel Mr. V.G.K.Prasad - Managing Director

Mrs. V.ndira Devi = Whole time Director
Mrs. K.Vasumathi Devi - Executive Director
Mr. K.P.Venkatesh- Chiel Executive Officer
Mr. Murthy V 8 - Chief Executive Officer

Relative of key management personnel Mrs. DV asantha Lakshmi

Mr. V.Raghu Ram

Mr, Sinha Satyanand Chunduri
Mrs. Durga Rant Chunduri

Enterprises having a significam influence India Business Excellence Fund-11A

Vistra ITCL (India) Limited (formerly known as IL and FS Trust
Company Limited) ( Trusiee of Business Excellence Trusi-l - India
Business Excellence Fund II}

Enterprises significantly influenced by the IKF Home Finance Limited
company - subsidiary (formerly known as [KF Housing Finance Private Limited)

Enterprise s significantly influenced by key IKF Infratech Private Limited
management personnel or their relatives

Enterprises in which directors are interested | SVR Finance & Leasing Private Limited
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Related party transactions during the yvear:

Name of related party

Mature of transaction

Transaction
vitlue for the
vear ended
March 31,
2019

Dutstanding
amount as al
March 31,
019

Transaction
value for the
vear ended
March 31,
2018

Outstanding
amount as at
March 31,
2018

Key management person

Mr. V.G.K Prasad

Rent paid

20, 15,400

L8, 48,000

Dhirecior”s remuneration

45,000,000

|

45,000,000

Rent deposit given

50,000,000

S0, 00,000

Share capital (Rs. 10/
Paid up)

158,67 900

14,73,16.510

Allotment of Party Paid
up Shares (2,70 Paid up)

04.65,717

04,65,717

1" Call Money Received
against  Allotment  of
Partly Paid up Shares

94,65, 717

18951434

Premium Received on
Allotment of Partly Paid
up shares

59245921

59245921

Purchase of IKF Home
Finance Limited Equity
Shares

14,85.69,384

Mrs. V. Indira Deva

Rent paid

41.58.000

39.60.000

Director’ s remuner ation

J00, 00,000

30, 00,000

Rem deposit given

38,49.800

38,49.800

Share capial (Rs 10/-
Paid up)

1,32.69.020

1.32,69.020

Allotment of Party Paid
up Shares (2.70 Paid up)

B.67.348

B.6T 348

1" Call Money Received
agamst  Allotment  of
Partly Paid up Shares

H.67,348

17,234,696

Premiwm  Received on
Alloament of Partly Paid
up Shares

54.28.731

MIRT3]

Purchase of IKF Home
Finance Limited Equity
Shares

LILT1 165

Mrs. K.V asumathi Devi

Diirector” s remuneration

ERLIRL L

RN

Share capital (Rs, (-
Paid up)

2,13,12.860

Allodment of Party Paid
up Shares (2.70 Paid up)

13,93, 146

13,93.146

1* Call Money Received
against  Alloiment  of
Partly Paid up Shares

13,93, 146

27.86,292

Premium Received on
Allotment of Partly Paid
up Shares

47.19.701

Purchase of IKF Home
Finance Limited Equity
Shares

2,37,25,802

Mr K. P Venkatesh

Salary Paid

19, 10,000

35,31 00K

Mr.Murthy ¥V 5

Salary Paid

22.42,669

Mr.Ch. Sreenivasa Rao

Salary Paid

15.95.001

12,00,000
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Mame of related party

Nature of transaction

Transaction
value for the
vear ended
March 31,
9

Dutstanding
amount as al
March 31.
2019

Transaction
value for the
vear ended
March 31,
18

Outstanding
amount as at
March 31,
LI ES

Staff Loan

300,000

2,49,595

Relatives of key management personnel

Mrs., DL Vasantha
Lakshmi

Salary Paid

|

20,0000

Share captal
Paid up)

(R 10/~

2.00,61,170

200061170

Alloament of Pany Paid
up Shares (270 Paid up)

13,11,328

13,11,328

1* Call Money Received
agminst  Allotment  of
Partly Paid up Shares

13,11,328

26,221,656

Premium Received on
Allotment of Partly Paid
up Shares

#2.07.601

82.07.601

Purchase of IKF Home
Finance Limited Equity

59.98,342

Mr. V Raghu Ram

Share capital

144,97 004

144,97 000

Alloament of Pany Paid
up Shares (270 Paid up)

947619

947619

1* Call Money Received
against  Allotment  of
Partly Paid up Shares

947619

18,95.238

Premium Received on
Alloiment of Partly Paid
up Shares

331,147

31,147

Purchase of IKF Home
Finance Limited Equity
Shares

83,331,035

Mr. Sinha Satyanand
Chunduri

Share capital (Rs.10/-

Paid up)

L1.77.000

11,777,000

Mrs. Durga Rani
Chunduri

Share capital
Paid up)

[ Rs. 10~

1.49.41.000 [

14941000

Enterprises significantly

influenced by the company - subsidiary

IKF Home Finance
Limited

Loan given

38 .50.00.000

28.30.13.960 |

Interest paid

1,26,08 630

-|

Service fee

G0, 000

- |

Enterprises significantly

influenced by key management personnel

or their relatives

IKF Infratech Private
Limited

Purchase of IKF Home
Finance Limited Equity
Shares

6,45,02.495

|

Enterprises in which Directors are inferested

SVE Finance & Leasing
Private Limted

Trade advance

2,89, 30,000

79,30,000 |

55,00,000

im:rest paid

3.57.745

- |

sy

55,000,006}

e e |

Enterprises having a significant influence

Indian Business
Excellence Fund-1TA

Share capital (Rs, 10¥-
Paid up)

13,05,15,460

11.82,92.680

Share premium on
preference shares
converted (o equity
shares

11,00,05,020

Fully paid up preference
5

12,22.27.800

122227800

X
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Notes to financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 20019

{Amount in Rupees unlesy otherwise stated)

29.

3L

Transaction 7 | Transaction
value for the | OUSGING |\ pype por gy | Ouisanding
Mame of related party Nature of transaction vear ended March 31 vear ended March 31
March 31, ] March 31, 3
2010 2019 M8 2018
Fully paid up preference 2 " .
: ik 34223784
Share capital (Rs, (V-
3 - T.80,40, 180 - 7.07.31.710
Vistra ITCL (India) Paid up) B040, 18 07,31,
Limited {formerly Share premium on
known as IL and FS preference shares
Trust Company Limited | converted to equity 6.57.76.230 | ) )
) (Trustes of Business shares |
Excellence Trust-11 - Fully paid up Preference
[m_ia BUHiMEﬁ ms - ?.3‘134.?“:} T,JU.H.?W
Excellence Fund I1) Fully paid up Preference | 2 0463716 ]
shares Premivm | R

Capital commitments

Estimated amounts of contracts remaining io be executed on capital account (net of advances) :

Mote: The remuneration and salary paid does not include the provision made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are
determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole,

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Oifice Furnitwre, Fixtures & Interiors 25.33.445 -
Contingent liabilities provided for

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Credit enhasicements provided by the Company towards securitization

(including cash collaterals. principal and inieresi subordination) 4599, 40,004 AL5410991
Performance security provided by the Company towards advance

partner armangement fhusiness correspondent agreement 06,2145 1.00,68.146
Tax on items disallowed by Income Tax depariment not acknowled ged

as debt by the Company,

There are numerous interpretative issues relating o the Supreme Count (SC) judgement on PF daed 28th February,
20149, As a matter of caution, the company has made a provision on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The
company will update its provision, on receiving further clarty on the subject.

Retirement and other employee benefits

The Company has a defined benelit graiuity plan, Every emplovee who has compleied five years or more of service is
eligible for gratity on cessation of employment and it is computed at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each
completed vear of service subject 1o limit of Rs.20,00,000 as per The Payment of Grawity Act, 1972,

The following tables summarizes the components of net benefil expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and
the funded status and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the gratuity plan.

Statement of profit and loss

Net employees benefit expense {recognized in employees benefit expense):

Sariiouiers For the vear ended For the vear ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current service cost 18.00.757 16,51073
Interest cost on benefit obligation 3.81.672 260,237
Past service cost ] 2468
Net actuarial igain) / loss recognized in the year (1.15.299) i4,47.405)
Net employee benefit expense 20,76,130 14,66.373

a1
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Notes to financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 20019
{Amount in Rupees unlesy otherwise stated)

Balance Sheet

Details of provision for gratuity:

Cratuity
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Delined benefit obligation 67.04 HEE 49.13.226
Fair value of plan assetls - -
Plan liability 67,04 688 49,131,226
Changes in the present vadue of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
(i ratuity
ooty March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening defined benefit obli gation 49,13 226 3446853
Currenl service cost 18,090,757 16,51073
Interest cost 381672 2,60,237
Past Service Cost - 2468
Benefits Paid directly by the Company (2,84, 668) -
Actuarial {gains) / losses on obligation {1,15,299) (4,47 405)
Closing defined benefit obligation 6704 688 49,1326
Current Liability 440,538 6,21,577
Non-current Liability 6264150 42.91.649
Changes in the Tair value of plan assets are as follows:
G ratuity
s March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening fair value of plan assets = %
Expected return - -
Contributions by employer - -
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial gains / (losses) - -
Closing Fair value of plan asseis -
The principal assumptions used in determining grafuity:
Particulars Gratuity
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate 7.65% 8005
Expected rate of return on assets . -
Salary escalation rale per annum [N 6005
Employes furnover rate M 9.00%
Amounts Mor the corrent and previous Four vears are as follows:
Particulars Gratuily
31-Mar-19 | 31-Mar-18 | 31-Mar-17 | 3-Mar-16 | 31-Mar-15
Defined benefit obligation 67.04.688 | 49.13.226 | 3446853 | 2290246 | 2182720
Plan assets - - = = Z
Surplus / (deficit) (67.04.688) | (49.13.226) | (3446.853) | (22,90.246) (21.82.720)
Ex perience adjustments on plan liabilities - - - - -




IKF Finance Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Amount in Rupees unlexss otherwise stated )

32 Loan portfolio and provision for standard and non-performing assets as at March 31, 2009:

Secured: {Amount in Rupees)
Aszel Portfolio loans outstanding Provision for standard and non-performing assets Portfolio loans outstanding
dassification (Gross) (Net)

As al As at As at Provision Provision Asat As at Asat
March 31, March 31, March 31, made during written hack March 31, March 31, March 31,
019 s 2018 the vear during the vear 2019 2019 2018
Standard assels 9411.518994 81,744 041 27494, 061 22 728 089 10,842 54 3 379346 93TLI139 648 | 6,784,249 980
Sub-standard assets 360,111,806 304,110,938 33,2049 B46 20554 657 20551400 42,303,103 317.808.703 2T0.811.082
Doubt ful assets 53,0),923 69,413,502 22,440,880 25,196,465 15,326,891 32310453 20,710.470 46,972,622
Total 9,824.651,723 7,185, 268,481 83,234,787 TTATIZI0 46,721,095 NAM202 | 9710658821 | 7,002,033,694

—Un-secured: S — N o _(Amount in Rupees)
Asset Portfolio loans ouistanding Provision for standard and non-performing assets Porifolio loans outstanding
classification i5ross) (Ned)

As al As at Asal Provision Provision As al As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, made during written hack March 31, March 31, March 31,
2019 2018 018 the vear during the vear e 2019 2018
Standard assels 35921 345 34823 581 139,204 143,685 139204 143,685 35.777.660 34,684,287
Sub-standard assels - - - - - - - -
Doubtful assets - - - - - - - -
Total 35921 35 ML823.581 139,294 143,685 139,204 143,685 35,777,660 3684287

Total: {Amuount in Rupees)
Asset Portfolio loans sutstanding Provision for standard and non-performing assets Porifolio loans ouistanding
classification (Gross) iNet)

As al As al As al Provision Provision As al As atl Asatl
March 31, March 31, March 31, made during written hack March 31, March 31, March 31,
1 L 2018 08 the vear during the vear e 009 2008
Standard assels 9447 440 339 6,846,567 622 27.633,355 2 RTLTT4 10982098 3523031 Q407917 308 | 6818934 267
Sub-standard assels A1 11,806 304, 110938 33,2949 846 20 554,657 20.551.400 42,303,103 317,808,703 20811002
Doubtful assets 53,020,923 69413502 22440880 25,196,405 15,326,891 32310453 20,710,470 46,972,622
Total 9,860,573,068 7,220,002 (h2 H3,374,081 77611896 46,860,389 114,136,587 9,746,436, 481 | 7.136.717.981




IKF Finance Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Amount in Rupees unlexss otherwise stated )

Loan porifolic and provision for standard and non-performing assets as at March 31, 2008;

Secured: {Amount in Rupees)
Assel Portfolio loans sutstanding Provision for standard and non-performing assets Portfolio loans outstanding
classification (Gross) (Net)
As at As at As at Provision Provision As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, made during written back March 31, March 31, March 31, 2017
18 017 2017 the year during the vear 2018 2018
Standard assets 6,811,744.041 6.425,600.493 25 830,930 2022074 20,358,943 27494061 | 6,784, 249980 6,399 859 563
Sub-standard assels 304,110,938 3127.587.256 A2 988579 25,500,503 25,288,326 33299846 270,811,092 294,598,677
Doubiful asseis G4 13,502 15,343,087 0,206,328 13,804, 142 T149.5%) 22, 440580 46,972 622 B.Ad6, 759
Tuotal 7. 185,268,481 6, 768,620,536 68,115,837 61,485,809 46,366,859 83234787 | 7.002,033.6%4 6,700,504, 599
Un-secured: {Amount in Rupees |
Asset Portfolio loans outstanding Provision for standard and non-performing assets Portfolio loans outstanding
classification (Gross) (Net)
As at Asal As at Provision Provision As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, Mawech 31, made during written back Mawrch 31, March 31, March 31, 2017
218 2017 2017 the vear during the year i ES 2018
Standard assets MBS | 13694953 | 547,198 139,204 547,798 139204 | 34684287 | 136401736
Sub-standard assets - - - - - - - .
Doubtful assets - - - - - - - -
Total 34,823,581 136,949 534 547,798 139,294 547,798 139,294 34,684,287 136,401,736
Total: {Amrount in Rupees |
Assel Portfolio loans outstanding Provision for standard and non-performing assets Portfolio loans ontstanding
classification (5 ross ) (Nt )
As at Asat Asat Provision Provision As at As at As at
March 31, March 31. March 31, made during wrilien back March 31, March 31, March 31, 2017
2018 2017 2017 the year | during the year 2018 2018
Standard assets 6, 846,567,622 6,562,640,027 26,378,728 22,161,368 20,906,741 17,633,355 | 6818934267 6,536,261,209
Sub-siandard assels 304,110,938 327 587.256 A2 98B.5T9 25.599.593 25 288,326 33,2949 846 270,811,092 294 598.677
Doubtful asseis 69,413,502 15,343 087 92096328 13864, 142 719,590 22 440 880 46,972 622 B0, 759
Total 7, 220,092,062 6,905,570, 370 68,663,635 6l 625,103 46,914,657 83,374,081 | 7,0.36,717.981 6,836, M, 735
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Motes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 20019

(Ameowir in Rupees wmless otherwise sialed)

33 Leases (operating lease)

(MTice Premises:

Head office, registered office and branch office premises are obtained on operating lease. The office premises
are generally rented on non- cancellable term ranging from one year 1o eleven vears with or without escalation
clause, There are no restnctions imposed by lease arangements. There are no subleases. Lease payments during

the vear are charged (o statement of profin and loss,

Deseription March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Operating lease expenses recognmized in the statement of profit and 2.25.68.989 1599, 17,701
lowss
Minimum lease obligations
Nod later than one vear 1.36.82.632 1,79.46. 730
Later than one year but not later than five years 2,63,59,145 283,39.972
More than five vears 23 47 832 30,770,051

M. As required by the RBI circular no DNBS.PDLCC, Mo, 256 /03100042 7 201 1-12 dated March 2, 2012 the detals

of frauds noticed / reported are as below:

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Amount involved

Amount recovered

Amount written off/provided

Balance

35, Hestructured advances

There are no restructured advances as on March 31, 2019 { March 31, 2018 : NIL),

36, CSR expenses

{Amount in Rupees)

Pariiculars M-Mar-19 | 31-Mar-18
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 52.40.947 47.62.333
by Amount spent during the year ending 31st March, 2009 : in cash Yet to be Total

paid in cash

i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
i) On purposes other than (i) above 325,000 49,15,947 52.40,947
e} Amount spent during the vear ending 315t March, 20018 :
i) Constructivn/acquisition of any assel - - -
il} O purposes other than (i) above 75000 46,687,333 47,62,333

37, Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

There are no amounts that need to be disclosed in accordence with the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006 (the "MSMED" } pertaiming to micro or small enterprises.

For the vear ended March 31, 2009, no vendor / supplier has intimated the Company about its status as micro or
small enterprises or ils registration with the appropriate authority under MSMED.
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Motes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 20019 {Amownt in Rupees wnless otherwise stared )

3. Additional disclosures reguired by the REL

a.  Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (*CRAR):

Particulars March 31, 20019 | March 31, 2018
i} CRAR (%) 20 RO 32.35%
i) | CRAR = Tier 1 Capital (%) 19.25% X7.90%
iii) | CRAR - Tier 11 Capital (%) 1.55% 4.45%
w) | Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-11 capital 45, 00,00 010 45,00, 00,000
vl | Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -
b, Investments:
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(4} Value of Invesumens
i} | Gross valee of invesiments
= In India 452 509628 -
- Cutside India - -
i) | Provisions for depreciation
= In India - -
= Ounside India - -
iiiy | Net value of investments
- InIndia 452,509,628 :
- Dutside India S .
by | Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on
Ve ments
i} | Opening balance - -
i) | Add: Provisions made during the year - -
i | Less: Write-off, write-back of excess provisions - -
during the year
iv) Closing halance = 3
¢, Derivatives:
The Company has not emered into any forward rate agreements, interest rate swaps, and exchange traded
interest rate derivatives. Hence. no disclosure is made for the same.
d.  Diselosures relating to Securitization:

During the year the Company has sold loans through securitization. The information on securitization
activity of the Company a5 an originator is as shown below;

Particulars For the year ended | For the vear ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Total number of loans securitized 4336 3169
Tiral book value of loans securitized 1,36, 70,1 1.992 T1.47.36.736
Tal book valuwe of loans securitised including loans 1.46.84.96.765 B30, 74,985
placed as collaeral
Sale consideration received for loans secuntized 1,36,70.11,992 T1.47.36.736
Excess interest spread recognized in the statement of 93412778 6.96.41.599
profit and loss
: As al Asat
Phriiiains March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Credit enhancements provided and outstanding { Gross);
Interest subordination 20,71,56,050 12,84, 70,112
Principal subordination 11.97.57.634 21.99.39.820
Cash collateral 13,2669, (K} 9 70,01 000
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{Amownt in Rupees wnless otherwise stared )

Sr. For the vear ended | For the year ended
Nao T March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
1 MNumber of 5PVs sponsored by the NBFC for 4 2
: securlization ransactions during the vear
Total amount of securitized assets as per the 1,27.39,31.077 60.17,16,327
2 books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC as
on the date of balance sheet:
Total amount of exposures retained o comply
i with minimum retention reguirement {"MRR")
as on the date of balance sheer:
a) OMT balance sheet exposures
-First loss - -
-(Mhers
b On balance sheet exposures
-First loss 961,44 0 3,65.13.000
-(hhers - =]
4. Amount of exposures 1o other than MRR:
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securnitizations
-First loss - -
-Oihers - -
i) Exposure wo third party securitizations
-First loss - -
-Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure Lo own securilizalions
-First loss 11.97.57.634 10,16.31.520
-Mthers - -
i) Exposure (o thind party securitizations
-First loss - -
=Dihers - -

e Details of financial assets sold to securitization / reconstruction company Tor asset reconstruction:

The Company has not sold financial assets to Securitization [ Reconstruction companies for asset

reconstruction in the current and previous year.

L Details of assignment transactions undertaken:

For the vear ended | For the year ended

s “March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Mumber of accounts - H57
| Appregate value { net ol provision) of accounts sold - 240.79.33 459
| Aggregate consideration - 10,7933 459

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounis
transferred in earlier vears

| Aggregate gain or loss over net book value

g Details of non-performing financial assels purchased / sold:
The Company has not purchased / sold non-performing Onancial assets in the current and previous year,
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h.  Asset Liahility Management:
Matunty pattern of certain Assets and Liabilities as on March 31, 2019:

Parti cada r Lo M3 Ohar | Thor 1 her 3 manths | Ohoer 6 monihs Ty | vour Cher X yoars fhur 8 Tatul
duys s ks manths o & manths o | yeur i 3 vears i § vewrs e
o 2 wpin 3
e nilhes i
Lreporits s - |
Advasies® 5935092 006 J71 389057 125 5 0 | EL% 163 K28 L70kE 400 6REE 4,121, B59 450 151 535K 6% 2K 453, 7 0THS 50512
Invessrmeni . . . A52 SRR 452 5 a0R
[ 1 E57, 704, 105 1R O4.55T | TR0 S48 2 R85 LA I74.05% IARLTIETS CEETET TANLIGERIS
Foreign
| EliTnCY s
Fureign urmency
Tiabslilies
Mlaturity pattern of cerain Assets and Liabilities as on March 31, 201%:;
Pariiulars Lpin wer | e 1 Diver S msemths | Ower & moniks sy | yosur hver 5 years iher § Total
B s LT meamdhs w6 mendhe upis | vear updo ¥ years uploe # years urs
LR o 3
o ik [Ty
e
Ak - 10, 1241 70F | B SN 227 1732, V023 SILATENE 1545 515 247 3617 A1 293 | 56 TR AT 147721 546 7,164,551, 336
Iavesimenis .
B g 1,394,142 156 122 235 51 126,006 4 T FTL420. T TS, 19,49, 150 21373, 27R A3 b T34 4T 1410 0N} 5 457,675 887
Foreips
et 1
Firigs curmmy
Vbl s

*Amounts are shown net of provision in respect of non performing assets.
i.  Exposures

a) Exposure to real estate sector and capital market

The Company has no exposure (o the real estate sector and capital market directly or indirectly in the

current and previous year,
hi Details of financing of parent company products

This disclosure s not applicable as the Company does not have any holding / parent compary.

¢} Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC

The Company has not lent [ invested f lent and invested in any borrower / group of bormower in excess of

limits prescribed by the RBIL.
d) Unsecured Advances— Refer e 14 for unsecured advances.

J- Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators:

The Company is registered with following other financial sector regulators (Financial regulators as

described by Ministry of Finance):
i. RBI-B.09.00172
il Ministry of Corporate Affairs — UsS%2APTI9 I PLCOI 2736

iil. Ministry of Finance (Financial Intellipence Unit) = FINBF13220
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k. Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators:

Mo penalties were imposed by RBI and other regulators during current and previous year.

I.  Ratings assipned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year:

{Amownt in Bupees)

Rating
Instrument Date of rating s Valid up to Amount
| Long term working capital facilities 30-03-2019 CAREA | 29032020 | 5000000000
Long-term facilities bank loan 30-03-2019 CARE A 20-03-2020 565 00,000,000
Nom Convertible Debentures ( NCD)* 09-03- 2019 CARE A 08-03-2020 T75.00.00,000
Market Linked Debenture (MLD) 09-03-2019 C;E[E] i” 08-03-2020 | 25.00.00,000
Commercial Paper (9-03- 2019 CARE A1 (8-03-2020 100 00000, D0
Non Convertible Debentures (9-03-2019 | CAREA | 08-03-2020 25.00,00,000
Nom Convertible Debentures (5-03-2019 CARE A (8-03-200 5,00 00,000
Brickwork Ratings:
Long term bank loan facilities** 25-01-201% BWR A 24-01-2 19 269 5000, 000
Long term cash credit facilities** 25-01-2018 BWR A 24-01-2019 412,00,00,000
MNom Convertible Debentares (NCDj** 25-01-2018 BWR A 24-01-2019 16,00 00, 00
Nom Convertible Debentures (WD) 25-01-2018 BWERE A 24-01-2019 30000 D00

*  Ouwt of rating letter obtained from CARE for Rs. 75 Crore, NCD's amounting o Rs. 51 Crore has
been issued.

** Brickwork ratings letier for Long term bank facilities & NCD's was obtained for the period 25-1-
018 1 24-1-20019. However, subsequently the mting was renewed on 28-5-2019 with a validity

of 1 year,
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m. Provisions and Contingencies (shown under the head expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss)

[N

P

q.

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provision made towards income 1ax 15,73, 25049 10,1944 359
Prow ision towards non-performing assets .68, 72830 134,55 819
Prowision for standard assets 1.18.89676 12,54.627
Provision for contingencies 25, 00,000 -
Provision for graluity 20,776,130 14,6637 3
Provision for leave benefits 57,29.230 3,38 460

Draw down from Reserves:

There has been no draw down from reserves during the vear ended March 31, 20019 { previous vear: Nilk

Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NP As:

Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Concentration of Advances
Tmal advances to twenty largest borrowers 1.36,37 83 188 85,06, 79,250
(%) of advances to twenty largest borrowers o otal advances 13.83% 11.76%
Concentration of Exposures
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 1.81.62.92.816 £5.42.65,482
(%) of exposure (o twenty largest borrowersfeustomers to tolal iT.58% I 1.80%
EXPOSUrE
Concentration of NPAs
Total exposure 1o top four NPA accounts 6,94 T, 847 53343495
Sector-wise NP As®
Sector % b of NPAs to total (%) of NPAs to total
advances in that sector advances in that sector
as ai March 31, 2019 as at March 31, 2018
| Agriculture and allied actvities 5.09% 141%
MSME (LO0% .00
Corporate bormowers {.00% 0.00%
Services .00 0005
Unsecured personal loans 0,005 0.005%
Auto loans 5.43% T.85%
Others 3.21% 1.65%
*As certified by the Management and refied upon by Awditors
Movement of NPAs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{i) Net NPAs 1o Net Advances (%) 143% 4.40%
(i) | Movement of NPAs (Gross)
{a) Opening balance 373,524,440 342,930,343
(b) Additions during the year 335.664.193 303,717,860
i¢) Reductions during the year (incl. loans written off) 1296,055 904) (273,123,763)
{d) Closing balance 413,132,729 373,524,440
(11} | Movement of Net NPAs
ia) Opening balance M7, 783713 M), 645,436
b} Additions during the year 280,913,072 264,254,124
(¢} Reductions during the year {260,177 .612) (247.115,847)
id) Closing balance 338,519,173 317,783,713
{iv) | Movement of provisions for NPAs
() Opening balance 55,740,726 42,284,907
(b} Provisions made during the year 54,751,122 39.463.735
{c) Write-ofT / write-back of excess provisions (35.878.292) (26.007 916 )
{d) Closing balance 74,613,556 55,740,726
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r.  Disclosure of Customer Complaints®

For the year For the year

Particulars ended March | ended March
11, 2019 31, 2018

(i) | MNumber of complaints pending at the beginning of the yvear 2 1

{ii) | Mumber of complaints received during the vear 7 17

(i) | Number of complaints redressed during the year 9 I6
(iv) | Mumber of complaints pending at the end of the year 1] 2

*As certified by the Management and relied upon by Awditors

5. Owerseas assels (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)

The Company does not have any joint venture or subsidiary abroad; hence this disclosure is not applicable,

1. OMY-balance sheet SPVs sponsored

The Company has not sponsored any off-Balance Sheet 5PV,

d}  During the cumrent vear, the Company has not complied with appointment of key managerial personnel
requirement for a public limited company as per Section 203 of The Companies Act, 201 3 (the “Act™) read with
rule 8 of Companies ( Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Subsequently the
Company has appointed chiel financial officer m order 1o meet requirement.

€)  Previous year's figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform 1o this year's classification.

For 5. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP

ICAT Firm registration number : 301003 E/E 3005 IKF Finance Limited

Chartered Accountants

per Jitendra H. Ranawat V.G.K Prasad

Partner Managing Director

Membership Mo, 103380 DIN - (HE1T7992
P.Chandra Sekhar
Chief Financial Officer

Date : 30-09-2019 Date : 30-09-2019

Place: Mumbai Place: Vijayawada

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of

V.indira Devi
Whaole Time Director
DIN -03161150

Ch.Sreenivasa Rao
Company Secretary
M.No. ACS14723
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of IKF Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of IKF Finance Limited Chereinafter
referred to as “"the Holding Company™), its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together
referred to as “"the Group"”) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the conselidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatary information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based an
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by
the Companias Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
confarmity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at March 31, 2019, their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted aur audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(5As), as specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consalidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consalidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is respoensible for the other information. The other information
comprises the infermation included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report therean.

Our epinion on the consoclidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
Infarmation and, in deing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other infarmation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted In India, including the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Aecounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board af Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible fer maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act far
safequarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other Irregularities:
selection and applicatien of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies included
inthe Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease o perations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group .

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstate ment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a quarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consclidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and abtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting frem error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order fa design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the cireumstances, Under section 143(3X1) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrals,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
nditions that may cast significant doubt an the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
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we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements ar, If such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify cur opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
geing concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sutficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities Included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditars, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consclidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, ameng other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in Internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of one subsidiary,
whose financial statements inciude total assets of Rs 15,768.62 Lakhs as at March 31, 2019, and total
revenues of Rs 1940.47 Lakhs and net cash outflows of Rs 512.39 Lakhs for the year ended on that date,
These financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, whose
financial statements, other financial information and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the
management. Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the report of
such other auditor.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Reguirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our rellance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified
by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial infarmation of subsidiary, as noted in the
‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

{a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit
of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and reperts of the other auditors:
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(e}
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(gl

n)

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Repart are in agreement with the books of account maintained for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

In our apinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the “Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (as amendedy;

On the basis of the written representations received frem the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary company, none of
the directors of the Group's companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 21, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adeguacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial confrols over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and
its subsidiary company incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 1" to this report;

In our opinien and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiary
incerporated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been pald by
the Holding Company, its subsidiary, incorporated in India to their directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements as alsa the other financial information of the subsidiary, as
noted in the 'Other matter' paragraph:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the Impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial pesition of the Group in its consclidated financial statements = Refer Mote
29 to the consolidated financial statements;

il. The Group, did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2019;

iii. There were no amounts which were required te be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Halding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India during the year
ended March 31, 2019.

For 5.R. Batliboi & CD. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Reglstration Number: 301003E/E300005

—

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner

Membership Number: 103380
UDIN: 191033B80AAAAPVEOD3

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: October 18, 2019
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE OM THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IKF FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of IKF Finance Limited as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the internal financial contrels aver financial
reporting of IKF Finance Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Helding Company™) and its su bsidiary
company which are companies incorporated In India, as of that date.

Management's Respensibility for Internal Financlal Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary company which are companies
incorporated in india, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on, the internal financial contral over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of jts business,
including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™ and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, bath issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to abtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financlal controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolldated
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consalidated financial statements and
their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Consolidated
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

_gﬁimlly accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporking

e

E Q!rerenca to these consolidated financial statements includes those policies and proceduras that (1)
1.1.-"'_‘
hY
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pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reascnable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Consclidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial coentrols over financial reporting with reference
to these consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over finaneial reporting with reference to
these consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the report issued by other
auditors on internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consoclidated
financial statements in case of its subsidiary company which are companies incorporated in India, the
following material weakness have been identified as at March 31, 2019:

a) The Holding Company internal financial controls over seqgregation of duties and recording of journal
entries were not operating effectively which could potentially affect the internal control environment
of the Company.

A 'material weakness® is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the holding
company's annual or interim consolidated financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weakness described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the centrol eriteria in respect of the Holding Company and its su bsidiary
campany, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects, adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consclidated financial
statements and such intermal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal
contrel over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finaneial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Qur report under Section 143(3)0) of the Act on the adeguacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reperting with reference to these consolidated financial statements
insofar as it relates to these one subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, is based
on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated In India.
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We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, the consalidated financial statements
of the Holding Company, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and our
report dated October 18, 2019 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

For 5.R. Batlibol & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner

Membership Number; 103380
UDIN: 19103380AAAAPVE003
Place of Signature: Mumbal
Cate: October 18, 2019




IKF Finance Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

{Ameunt in Rupees unless otherwise stafed)

Notes 31-Mar-19
Enquity and liabilities
Shareholders” funds
Share capital 3 502,764,105
Reserves and surplus 4 2, 204,821,867
2, 703,585,972
Wlinority Tnterest 18,708,437
Mon=current liabilities
Long-term bormrowings 5 4,100.203,742
Deferred tax liabilities 3 54,844
Other long-term liabilities 7 40,458,001
Long-term provisions B 115,507,370
4,265,223,95%
Current liabili ties
Shont-term borrowings ) 1,713,785,758
Other shon-term labilities 10 3,330,124,935
Short-term provisions 2 0,661,987
5074,572,680
TOTAL 12,06 2,001,046
Assets
MNon-current assets
Fixed assets
Property, plant & equipment 11 35,579,490
Intangible assets 12 17,925,483
Deferred tax assets 6 12,588,763
Gioodwill 53,828,117
Long-term loans and advances i3 T.298,082,734
Other non-current assets 14 130,740,041
7,548,744,629
Current assets
Trade recei vables 15 13,624,078
Cash and bank balances L6 415,283,852
Shor-term loans mnd advances 13 3871634301
Orther Assets 14 212,804,186
4,513, 46418
TOTAL 12,06 2,09 1,046
Summary of significant accounting policies 2]

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For 5 R BATLIBOI & CO.LLF

1CAL Firm registration number @ 30 03 EE30005

Chartered Accountants

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner
Membership No. 103280

Date: 18-10-2019
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

IKF Finance Limited

V.GK Prasad
Managing [hnector
DIN - 01817992

P Chandra Sekhar
Chiel Financial Officer

Dt 18-10-2019
Place; Vijavawada

V.indira Devi
Whale Tine Director
DIN - (3161150

Ch Sreenivasa Rao
Company Secrelary
M.MNo. ACS14723
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IKF Finance Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the yvear ended March 31, 2019
{Amount in Rupees unless otherwise siated)

Motes J-Mar-19

Revenue
Revenue from operations 17 799,432,554
Other income 18 2,159,707
Total revenue (1) 1LB01,592.261
Expenses
Emplovee benefit expenses 19 239,286,270
Finance costs n 826,763,764
Other expenses 21 146,221,754
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2 9.737.037
Provisions and write-offs 23 62057, 183
Total expenses (IT) 1,284, 066,008
Profit before tax (II=(1)-(I1} 517,526,253
Tax expenses

Current tax 154,886,817

Deferred tax (2,547,340)
Adjustment of tax relating w earlier penods 6042229
Total tax expense (IV) 158,381,705
Profit after tax before share of profit attributable to minority Interest (II-(IV) 359,144,547
Share of profit attributable to minority interest 631,158
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company 358,513.359
Earnings per equity share (face value Rs. 10/- each) 24
Basic [c-umpula.l on the basis of total profit for the year) 7.58
Diluted (computed on the basis of wial profit for the year) 7.58
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For 5. R. BATLIBOT & CO. LLP

ICAT Firm registration number : 301003E/E3JMENS
Chartered Accountanis

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IKF Finance Limited

per Jitendra H. Ranawai V.G.K Prasad V.ndira Devi

Partner
Membership No.1 (3380

Date: 18- 10-2019
Place: Mumbai

Managing Director
DIN - 01817992

P Chandra Sekhar
Chiel Financial Officer

Date: 18-10-2019
Place: Vijavawada

Whole Time Dhirector
AN - 03161150

Ch Sreenivasa Rao
Company Secretury
M.No. AC514723
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IKF Finance Limited

Consolidated Cashflow statement for the vear ended March 31, 2019

{Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

31-Mar-19
Cash fow from operating activiiies
Profit before tax 517.526.253
Adjusiments to reconcile profit before 1ax 1o net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortition 9.737.037
Laoss om sabe of fined assets and write off 1,323,745
Provision for emplovee benefits TIH6ET
Amostization of ancillary borrowing cosls 13,982,027
Preliminary Expenses Writlen off 169,256
Provision for bad and doubtful asseis 28,960,970
Contingent provision agaimar standand assen 11643227
Provision for non-performing asseis 18,952 986
Provision for contingencies 2. 500,000
Operating profit before working capital changes 622,595,185
Movements in working capital :
Decrease in other current and non-current Babilities (25602931
{Increase) in irade receivables (2355.371)
(Increased in loans and advances (3.305,102.331)
({Imcrease) in other Ron -curreni assels (1B017,102)
(Increase) in other cument assets (51, 404.652)
Decrease in Margin money deposit (net) 195,113,578
Cash generated from / (used in} operations (1.5R5.273.623)
Drect tanes paid (net of refunds) (153341430
Net cash Dow From / (used in) operating activities (A) (2.738615.054)
Cash Nows from imvesting aclivities
Purchase of fixed sssets (15,345,825)
Acquisition of Subsidary (36T S09.629)
Sale of fixed assets 41,400
Net cash flow Trom / (used in) investing activities (B) (382, B14.055)
Cazh Nows from lnancing aclivities
Proceeds from isuance of Partly Paid up Equity Shares 119,018,261
Long-term borrowings (net) 23311684201
Shon-temm borrowings { et ) 448,999,207
Net cash fow from ( (used in) linancing activities (C) 29400, 700,758
Net increase [ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (220,727.350)
Cash and cish equivalents i the be ginnang of the year 395 841,653
Cash and cash equivabents at the end of the vear 175,114,303
Componcnis of cash and cash eguivalents 31-Mar-1%
Cash and cash equivalenis ai the end of the vear
Cash on hand 19,552,711
Balances with banks in current accounis 155,561,592
Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the year (refer node 16) 175,114,303

Sunwmary of s gnifcant accounting policies

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statemenis

Noles

1h The above cash Mow statement have been prepared under the indirect method set out i Accounting Standard (AS)-3, "Cash Flow
Statement” nodified pursuant 10 the Companies | Accounts) Rubes, 2004 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment

Ruiles, 2016.
2) All figures in brackets indicate outflow.

3) Direct fax paid is remed as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investment and financial activities.

As per our repon of even date
Far 5 B BATLIB(OI & CO, LLP

IC Al Firm registration number 1 30 HHI3ET_0HE
Charbered Acoountants

per Jitendra H. Ranawat
Partner
Membership No. 103380

Deate: 18-10-2019
Place: Mumbai

For and on belalf of the Board of Direciors of

IKF Finnnce Limited

V.G.K Prasad
Wanaging Director
DIN - 0181 T2

P Chandra Sekhar
Chiel Fanancial Offcer

Duase: 18-10-2019
Place: Vijayawada

V.Indira Devi
Whale Time Direcoor
DIN - (3161 150

Ch Sreenivasa Rao
Company Secreiary
M.MNe. ACS14T23



IKF Finance Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Amrowiret in Rupees unless otherwive stated )

3. Share capital 31-Mar-19

Authorized shares

G 00.00,000 (March 31, 2008; 6,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each AL 00N, 00K0

2500000 (?March 31, 2018: 25.00.000) preference shares of Rs. 100 each 230,000,006

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

4.74.79,379 (March 31, 20018: 4.55.26.254) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 474,793,790

Nil (March 31, 20018: 19.53,125) compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up -
474,793,790

Issped, subscribed and partly paid-up shares

51.79.688 (March 31, 2018: 51.79.688) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, pantly paid up Rs. 5.40 per share 27970315
502,764,105

() Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares No, of Shares {Rupees)

Fully paid equity shares of Rs 10 each

At the beginning of the vear 45,526,254 455,262,540

Conversion during the year 1.953.125 19,531,250

Outstanding at the end of the year 47479379 474,793,790

Compulsorily convetible preference Shares of Rs 100 each

At the beginning of the vear 1,953,125 195,312,500

Conversion during the year (1.953.125)  (195.312.500)

Ouistanding at the end of the year - -

Partly paid up equity shares of Rs 10 each, partly paid up Rs. 540 per share

At the beginning of the year 5.179.688 13,985,158

Amount called / Issued during the year 13,985,157

Outstanding at the end of the year 5,179,688 27.970,314

(h) Terms/! rights attached o equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Es. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole
per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferentinl amounis, The distribution will be in proportion (o the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

ie) Terms of conversion/ redemption of CCPS
Each CCPS is compulsorily convertible into one equily share of Rs 10~ each within a period of one vear from the date of allotment,

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares 31-Mar-19
Mo of Shares % holding in
the class

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Vupputuri Gopala Kishan Prasad 15,867,900 334%
India Business Excellence Fund-I1A 13,051,546 2.75%
Vistra [TCL (India} Limited (formerly known as IL and FS Trust Company Limited) ( Trustee of Business 6%
Excellence Trust-11 - India Business Excellence Fund I1) 704018 o
Equity shares of Bs 10 eac rily paid ity share
Wupputuri Gopala Kishan Prasad 3,505,821 12.53%
Koganti Vasumathi Devi 515.980 |.84%
W Indira Dewi 321.240 1.15%
W Raghu Ram 350970 1.25%
D Vasantha Lakshmi 485677 1.74%

As per the records of the Company, mcluding its register of shareholdersimembers and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest. the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
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4. Reserves and surplus 3M-Mar-19
Capital reserve

Balance as per the lost linancial stakements 3,250,000
Addition durmng the year .
Closing balance 3.250,000
Securities preminm account

Balance as per the last financial statements 645,191,926
Addition during the year 263,314,354
Closing balance 08,506,280
Statutory reserve persuant fo sec 45-1C of The RBI Act, 1934

Balance as per the last financial statements 228,507,116
Add: Amount rransferred from surplus balance in the Staterment of Profit and Loss 0,957,446
Clising halance 299 464, 562
Reserve Uis 29C of NHB Act

Balance as per the last financial statements -
Add: Amount ransfermed from surplus balance in the Statement of Profic and Liss 3,549,000
Clising Balance 35459, 000
General reserve

Balance as per the last financial statements 54,435,382
Add: Amount ransfermed from surplus balance in the Statement of Profin and Loss 17,739,362
Closing balance 72,174,744

Provision Ujfs Ma{viia) Income tax Act, 1961
Balance as per the last financial statements .
Addition during the year 327,255

Clising balance 317,158
Surplus’ (deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Bulance as per last financial statements 646,651,286
Add: Profin for the current year 350,144, 548
Less: Transfer 1o stattory reserve as per Section 45-1C of The RBI Act, 1934 (70,957, 446)
Less: Transter w stamtory reserve as per Section 29-C of The NHB Act. (3,549,000
Less: Transfer o general reserve (17,739,362)
Met surplus in the statement of profit and loss 13,550,026
Total reserves and surplus 2.200,821,867
&, Long-term borrow ings Non Corrent  Current maturities®
A-Mar-1% A1-Mar-19
Secured
Term keans
Lo fronm banks 1935 839752 1,548 511,765
Loan from financial institutions 106,785,720 66,130,129
Loan from non banking financial companies 1.A058,799.520 524,466,316
Debentures
MNon converible debentures 337978750 543,332,594
Unsecured
Mon convertible debentures { Tier-11) 00,000,000 -
Inahian rupee ban from bnks (Tier-11 150 0000000 .
Onher noa convertable debentunes 200000 000 125,000, 000
Oihers - 00,000, D0
4,109, 203,742 2 B37 440,509

= Amoint disclosed ombor e 10 O0har osrmeni Babilitios

Mature of security

Term Loass from banks, financial institutions and non - banking financial companies ane secured by an exclusive charge by
way of hypothecation of specific loan receivables crested oul of the laan proceeds and cash collateral by way of fixed deposits
and mortgage of personal properties of directors in addition o their personal gusrantees,
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5. Long-term borrowings (Contd.)

Terms of repayment of long term borrowings (term loans and non convertible debenture) as on March 31, 2019

{Amount in Rupees unless otherwise siated)

Due within 1 vear

Due between 2 to 5 Years

Due more than 5 Years

Original nmturity of loan Interest rate Mo, of Amount Mo, of Amount Mo, of Amount Total
installments (in Rupees) installments {in Rupees) installments | (in Rupees)

Monthly repayment schedule
B00%-0.00% 12 R0, %40 36 1,353,151 - 1.733.99]
900K - 10, 505 137 021,373,982 158 1,291, 819,007 2.213,192.989
1-7 ¥rs 10.51%-11.50% "3 521,205,661 T 302207275 - - 823412936
11.51%-12.50% Bl 331.209.42] 197 957,199,823 - - 1,288,400 244
12.51%-13.50% 30 04,675,475 98 166,456,095 - - 261,131,570

Quarterly repayment schedule
O, 00F% - 10,005 20 73,333,336 27 118,973,565 - 192,306,901
1-5 Yrs 110051 2.00% 14 440,618,577 14 518,694,826 - - 059,313,403
12.01%-12.50% 16 144 643 667 16 S0 00K 0K 1 2 5000, 000 187, 143 667

Bullet repavment schedule

9,51 %-10.50% - - 1 2000, 0000, 0 - - 200,000, 0]
1-14 Yrs 10.51%-11.50% 5 3049 999 530 1 OO0, D0 - 369,999 850
11.51%-12.50% - I 150,000,000 - | 50,000,000
>13.50% - - 1 R IR VK] - - ELLARE L]
Total 2.837,440.809 4,106,703,742 2,500,004 6,946,644,551
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f. Deferred tax assel A -Mar-19
IKF Finance Limited

Deferred tax liabilities

Impact of amoisation of anciallary borrowing cosi 10,334,784
Ciross deferred tax liabibties 10,334,784
Deferred tax assels

Impact of expenditure charged 1o the statement of profit and loss in the cuent year but allowed for tax purposes 4,052,101
on payment basis

Impact of prowision for standand and non performing assets 16,705,232
Impact of difference between mx depreciation and depreciation’ amortization charged for the fimancial reporting 360,085
Imipact of provision for contingencies T28.000
Others B7H, 120
Gross deferrad tax assets 119213547
Met deferred tax asset 12,568,763

IKF Home Finance Limited
Deferred tax linbility
Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reporting. 54.84

Pursuant to The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (Ordinance) issued subsequent 10 the balance sheet date. the tax
mtes have changed with effect from | Apr 2009, and the company plans (o pay mx at revised rate from next vear. If those changes
were announced on or before reporting date, deferred tax asset would have been reduced by Bs, 15,04 028, The tax credit for the
year would have been decreased by R 1504028,

7. Oiher non-current liabilities 3-Mar-19
Deposit from franchisees 40,458,001
40458001
8 Provisions Long-term Short-term
31-Mar-19 3 -Mar-19
Frovision for employes benefits
Provision for gratity {refer note 30) 7171143 440,535
Prowision for leave benefits 5626955 2,100,967
12,798,098 2,541,502
(iber provisions
Prowision for mxation - 8843544
Contingent provision against standard assets 21,747 417 146,776,941
Prowision for non-performung asseis 74961 856 -
Provision for contingencies 2,500,000

2,709,272 28,1 2L485

115307370 3,661,987

9. Shori-term borrowings 3-Mar-19
Loan repayable on demand (secured)
Cash credit frun banks 1,713, 785,758

JJ13.TRE, 758

Cash credit limigs from banks are secured by way of hypothecation of dentified loan receivables, book debts wgether with underdying assets
created with bank fund and other current assets {excluding assets which are specifically charged to others) and mortgage of the Company’s
office premises and personal propertics of directors, their relatives, associsies besides their personal gunrantee.

1. Oiher current labilites M-Mar-19
Emploves benefits payable 140,748,876
Pavable towards securitisation / assignment ransactions 217,654,073
Expenses pavable 261,972
Other payable 157,501,501
Statutory dues payable 19.207.640
Deposit fromm franchisees 26,252 263
Oriher liabilities
Currenl maturities of long term borrowings (refer noie 5) 2837 440,809
Interest accroed but not due on borrowings 61,077 802
3.330,124,935
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11. Properiy, plant and Building Leasehold  Furniture and Computers Offiee Vehicles Tovkal
equipment Improvements fixtures equipments
Gross Block
Al April 1, 2007 LOT1. 722 - 49,745 483 10,996,191 1,363,040 9171,073 72,350,509
Additions - 2.567.597 1,304,025 3,330 668 1,447 863 2 168,808 10,908,961
Al March 31, 2018 LB7T1.722 2567597 51,142,508 14,326,859 2R10.903 11,339 881 53,259 470
Additions - 345117 G443 456 4,051,168 463377 - 5783118
Deductions . - {16,120,435) (6,962, 84()) (807 69 (1.296,688) {25,196,612)
At March 31, 2019 1071722 2912714 35,956,528 11,395 187 2 466,631 1,043,193 63,845,975
Depreciation
At April 1, 207 156,580 - 25,7495 906 7,2600,777 963,055 2,763,678 37,139,995
Charge for the year 16,960 191,851 31564177 2123212 224,058 959,753 TOB0,020
Al March M, 2018 T3 548 191,851 29 360,083 9,383,989 1,187,113 3,723,431 44,220,015
Charge for the year 16,965 G, 104 3,177,523 2385536 169,016 1.186.197 6,999 344
Adjustments - 214,443 97,185 490, 465 | 36,062 - Q48,035
Deductions - - {15319.851) (6,581,955) (767 .268) (1.231.854) {23.900,928)
At March 31, 2019 317 470,395 17,314,939 5,687,035 T25823 1677.773 2R.266,456
Net Block
Al March M, 2018 698,174 2375, 740 21,T82.425 4,942 870 1,623,790 T.ol6,450 30,039,455
Al March 3, 2019 681,205 2442316 18,641 5849 5,708,152 1,740,808 63605420 35,579,490
12, Imtangible assets Computer Total

soliware
(3ross h!!l_;&
At April 1, 2017 5,768,331 5,769,331
Addition 11,713,670 11,713,670
Al March 3, 2018 17 483,001 17,483,041
Addition 0562, 708 0 562 708
Deductions {1,389.220) (1,389,220
Al March M, 2019 25,656,488 15,656,488
Deprechtion
At April 1, 2007 3232954 3232954
Charge for the year 2,108,138 2 108,138
Al March M, 2018 5341092 5341002
Charge for the year 2,737 692 2737652
Adjustiment Q71,980 971,980
Deduciions (1,319,.759) (1,319.75%)
Al March M, 2019 7,731,005 7,731,005
Det block
Al March 3, 2018 12,141,908 12,141,908

At March 31, 2019 17925 483 17,925 451




IKF Finance Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

{Amount in Rupees wiless othe rwise stated)

13, Loans and advances Non-current Current
3l-Mar-19 31-Mar-19
A. Loan portfolio
Secured, considered good® 6,805,647 004 3.832.872.294
Un-secured, considered good* - 35,921,345
Secured. considered doubtful®® 413,132,729 =
Total (A) 7,218,779,733 3,868, 793,641
* Represents standard assets in accordance with Company's asset classification policy (refer note 2.1)
** Bepresents non-perforiming assets in accordance with Company's asset classification policy (refer note 2.1)
B. Security depasits
Unsecured. considered good 16,744,879 -
Total (B) 16,744,879 -
C. Other loans and advances (unsecured, considered good)
Advance income tax (MNet provison for tax) 36.415.626 =
GST input credit 26,142,495 -
Employee loans - 2.716.089
Others receivables - 124,571
Total (C) 62,558,121 2,840,660
Total (A+B+C) 7,298,082, 7™ J.871.63,301
14, Other assets Non-current Current
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-19
Margin money deposit (refere note 16) 109,859 066 -
Interest acerued but not due on loan portfolio - 169,583,530
Interest acorued but not dee on deposits placed with banks 442 685 13,638,438
Unamortised ancillary cost of bomrowings 20,403,138 18,206,243
Other-unsecured, considered good 15,152 11,375,966
130,740,041 212,804,186
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{Amount in Rupees wnless othenvise stated )

15. Trade receivahles Current
M-Mar-19
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considerad good 5.459.754
Outstanding for a perind less than six months from the date they are due for pavment
Unsecuned, considered good B.164.324
13,624,078
16, Cash and bank balances Non-current Current
31-Mar-19 J1-Mar-19
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
in cument accounts = 155,561,592
Cash on hand - 19,552,711
= 175,114,303
Other bank balances
Deposits with remaining maturity of less than 12 months - 5,289,263
Margin money deposit (refer note below) 109,859,166 234 HE0.286
109,859,066 240,169,549
Amount disclosed under non-current assets (refer note 14) (109 859,066 )
- 415,283 852

Mote: Represent margin money deposiis placed io avail ierm loans from banks, financial instituiions and as cash collateral in comneciion with

secuntization ransactions,
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{Amount m Rigpees wunless olherwise siated )

17. Revenue from operations

J1-Mar-19

Interest income on portfolio loans

Excess interest spread on securitization / income from assigniment

Other operating revenue

Fee and other charges

Income from alliance partner arrangement
Interest on margin money deposits*
Servicer fee on securitizationfassignment

1501557000
253,377,756

15,695,716
1.614.439
26,654,721
532,921

1.799.432,554

* Represents interest on margin money deposits placed to avail term loans from banks, financial institutions and on deposits placed as cash

collaieral in connection with securiiization,

18. Oiher income 31-Mar-19
Rental income 762,720
Miscellaneous income 1,396,987
2,159,707

19, Employee benefit expenses 31-Mar-19
Saluries and bonus / incentives 215,778,624
Contribution to provident fund 8,138,828
Contribution to emploves state insurance corporation 3.305.665
Leave bencfits 5,793,018
Giratuity expenses 2,191,278
Staff welfare expenses (refer note 25) 4,078,856
239.286,270

20. Finance costs M-Mar-19

Interest

O e loans from banks 3459248 655
On term loans from financial institutions 17.580,817
O term loans from non banking financial companies 39,721,482
On bank overdraft facility 139,337,282
On debentures 174,040,689
On commercial paper 55,502,172
On shortfall in payment 17,885
Other finance costs 50,504 366
Bank charges 4,130,415
826,763,764
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21. Other expenses J1-Mar-19
Rent (refer note 25) 23,340,666
Rares and taxes {refer note 25) 14,430,522
Insurance 122,505
Repairs and maintenance 5415306
Eleciricity charges (refer note 25} 3480402
Travelling and conveyance (refer note 25) 18,417,636
Communication expenses (refer note 25) 6.564.202
Printing and stationery (refer note 25) 1,360,959
Legal and professional fees (refer note 25) 18,036,651
Auditors' remuneration (refer details below) 2.671.515
CSR expenditure (refer note 36) 325,000
Sourcing commission (refer note 25) 37.908. 567
Loss on sale of property. plant & equipment / Write off of property, plant & equipment 1,323,745
Miscelluneous expenses (refer note 25) 12,207,989
146,221,754
Payment to auditors 31-Mar-19
As auditor:
Audit fees 2,394 9496
Certification fees 1540, (HH)
Reimbursement expenses 132.518
2677515
21, Depreciation and amortization expense Ji-Mar-19
Depreciation of tangible assets 6,999 345
Amortization of intangible assets 2,737,692
9,737,037
23. Provisions and write-offs 31-Mar-19
Contingent provision against standard assets 11,643,227
Provision for non-performing asscts 18,952 9864
Provision for contingencies 2,500,000
Portfolio loans and other balances written off 28,960,970
62,057,183
24. Earnings per share (EI'S) Ji-Mar-19
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Met profit for calculation of basic EPS 359,144,547
Net profit for calculation of diluted EPS 359,144,547
Weighted average number of equity shares in caleulating basic EPS 47386634
Effect of dilution : -
Weighted average number of equity shares in calewlating diluted EPS 47,380,634
Eamings per share :
Basic (Rs.) 3
i

Diluted (Rs.)
| Nominal value of shares Rs. 10 each)
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Naotes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Amount in Rupees unlesy otherwise stated)

1.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements relates o M/fs. IKF Finance Limited (the ™ Company™) and its subsidiary
company (together hereinafter referred to as “Group”).The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention on an accreal basis in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles o
comply in all material respects with the notified Accounting Standards (*AS”) under section 133 of the Companics
Act, 20013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2004, and the Companies
{Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, The financial statements of the Company comply with the
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI7) and National Housing Bank ( ‘“NHB" ) as applicable w a Mon-
Banking Finance Company ("NBFC"). The assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current
based on a twelve month operating cyele. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and
are consistent with those used in the previous year, These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees and
rounded off to nearest lacs unless otherwise stated,

Basis of Consolidated

i. The financial statemenis of the subsidiary company used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date
as of the Company i.e. year ended March 31, 2019 and are prepared based on the accounting policies consistent with
those wsed by the Company.

ii. The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the AS 21- ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements’ notified under the provision of the Companies Act, 2003 (the “Act’) read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounisd Rules, 2014 and the Companies ( Accounting Standards ) Amendment Rules. 2016 and other
generally accepled accounting principles in India.

iii. Motes to these consolidated fimancial statements are intended 1o serve as a means of informative disclosure and a guide
to better understanding of the consolidated position of the companies. Recognising this purpose, the Companyhos
disclosed only such notes from the individual financial statements, which fairly present the needed disclosures, The
accounting policies, notes and disclosures made by the parent are best viewed in ils standalone financial statements.

iv, The consolidated financial statemenis have been prepared on the following basis:

a. The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary company has been combined on a line-by-line basis by
adding together like ilems of assets, habilities, income and expenses. The intra-group balsnces and intra- group
transactions have been fully eliminated except where losses are realized,

b. The excess of cost to the Company of its investments in the subsidiary company over its share of equity of the
subsidiary company, at the dates on which the investmenis in the subsidiary company is made, is recognized as
*Goodwill’ being an asset in the consolidaied financial statements. Allernatively, where the share of equity in the
subsidiary company as on the date of investunent is in excess of cost of investment of the Company. it is
recognioed as ‘Capital Reserve” and shown under the head ‘Reserves and Surplus’, in the consolidated financial
slatements,

¢. Minority interest in the net asseis of the consolidated subsidiaries consist of the amount of eguity attributable 1o
the minority shareholders at the date on which investmenis in the subsidiary companies were made and Further
movements in their share in the equaty. subsequent to the dates of investments. Net profit { loss for the vear of the
subsidiaries attributable o munonty interest 15 identified and adjusted agamst the profit after tax of the Group 1o
arrive ol the income attributable o shareholders of the Company.

d. Goodwill arising on consolidation is not amortized but tested for impairment.

e. The subsidiary company considered in the consolidated financial siaiements are as below.

Name of the subsidiary Country of Share of ownership
incorporation interest as at March31, 2019

India 05.55%

IKF Howne Finance Limited
(Subsidiary w.e.f. January 7, 20194)
#The results of operations of a subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements as from the date
on which parent-subsidiary relationship came in existence.
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21

Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Use of estimaies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management 10 make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reponed amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of comtingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty aboul these assumplions and estmates could result in the outcomes
requirmg a material adjustment (o the carrying mnounts of assets or habilities i future periods.

b, Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be relinhly measured.

1. Interest mcome on loans given 15 récogmiesd under the internal rate of return method. Income or any other charges on
non-performing asset is recognized only when realized and any such income recognized before the asset became non-
performing and remaining unrealized is reversed,

ii. Interest income on deposits with banks is recognized on a time proportion accrual basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable.

m. Profit § premiom arsimng at the bme of secuntization / assignment of loan portfoho 15 amortieed over the ife of the
underlying loan portfolio £ secuntics and any loss arising there from is accounted for immediately, Interest spread
under par structure of securitization of loan receivables 15 recognized on realization over the tenure of the “securitics
1ssped by SPY fagreements. Interest retained under assignment of loan receivables is recognized on accrual basis over
the life of the underlving loan portfolio.

iv. Additional finance charges/ additional interest are recognized on realization basis,
v. All other income 15 recogmizad on an sccrual basis,

. Property, plant and equipment

All angible assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation. The cost comprises purchase price and directly
attributable cost of bringig the asset o its working condition for the intended use.

d. Depreciation
Depreciation on tangible lixed assets 15 provided on the siraight nemethodusing the rates arrived at based on useful life

of the assets prescribed under Schedule IT of the Companies Act. 2013 which is also as per the useful life of the aszets
estimated by the management

Assel Type Useful life estimated by the management (years)
Building 1]

Computers 3

Servers 6

Fumiture 1

Office equipment 5

Vehicles (Car, Lorry. Bus) 4

Vehicles (Bike, Moped, Cycle) 10

. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on mitial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition intangible
assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, i any. Cost comprises the purchase price
and any attributable cost of bringing the asset 1w its working condition for its intended use.

Computer Software is amortized on a siraight line method over 6 years which is as per the useful life of the assets
estimated by the management
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Amortization on assets acquiredfsold during the vear s recognized on o pro-rata basis te the Statement of Profit and Loss
till the date of acquisition/sale.

L. Impairment of assels

The Company assesses at each reporling date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. Il any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is reguired. the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use, The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the assel % considered impained and i written down (o its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated luiure cash flows are discounied to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate thai reflects current market
assessments of the time valoe of money and the nsks specific (o the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if avalable. 1IN no sech transactions can be identified. an appropriate valoation model
15 used.

After impairment. depreciation 15 provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful Jife,

g. Invesiments

Invesiments, which are readily realizable and intended 1o be held for not more than one year froam the date on which such
investments are made, are classified as current investments in accordance with the RBI goidelines and Accounting
Standard 13 on “Accounting for investments”. All other investments are classified as long-term invesiments,

On initial recognition, all invesimenis are megsured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly auributable
acquisition charges such as brokerage. fees and duties. Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower
of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term imvestments are carmed at cosl. However,

provision for diminution in value is made o recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carryving amount and net disposal proceeds 15 charged or credited
tor the statement of profit and loss,

h. Loans

Loans are stated at the amount advanced including fnance charges accrued and expenses recoverable, up to the Balance
Sheet date as reduced by the amounts received and loans securitized.

i. Secoritization / direct assignment

The Company enters into arrangement for sale of loan receivables through direct assignment / securitization. The said
assels are derecogmzed upon transfer of significant risk and rewards to the purchaser and on meeting the true sale criteria.

j- Leases (where the Company is the lessee)
Leases where the lesser effectively retains, substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are

clussified as operating leases, Operating lease pavments are recogmized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

k. Borrowing costs

Ancillary borrowing costs incurred in connection with the amrangement of borrowings and amortized over the tenure of
there spective borrowings.

I Retirement and other emplovee benefits

i, Retrement benefit in the form of provident fundis a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recopnizes contribution pavable to the
provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service,

i, Gratuity liability is o defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valustion on projected

unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit plans are
recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss.
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iii. The Company treats sccumulated leave expected to be camied forward bevond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuanal
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gainsflosses are immedistely taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its setilement for 12 months after the reporiing date.

iv. Accumulated leave, which is expected 1o be wilized within the next 12 months, is weated as shom-term emplovee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additnonal amount that it expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has scoumulated at the reporting date.

m. Income taxes

1. Tax expense compnses current and deferred tax. Current income tax 15 measured at the amount expecied o be pad o
the ax auwthorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used 1o
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, o the reporting date. Curmrent income tax
relating to items recognized directly in eguity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between laxable income and accounting income
originating dunng the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax 15 measured
using the tax rates amd the tax laws enacted or substantively enacied at the reporting date. Deferred income tax
relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in eguity and not in the statement of profit and loss.

iii. Deferred tax labilities are recognized for all taxable tming differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the Company has
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is viriual
certainty supporied by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future tanable profits.

iv. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down the
carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it s no longer reasonably certain or virtwally cenain, as the
case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax assel can be realized.
Any such write-down is reversed (o the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virually certain, as the case may
be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

n. Earnings per share

Busic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the vear attributable w equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear, Partly paid equity shares are treated as fruction
of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled 1o participate in dividends related to a fully paid equity share during
the reporting vear.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable o equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares cutstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

0. Provisions

A provision i recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event. it 1s probable thal an
outfllow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o seule the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are nol discounted to their present value and are determined based on the
best estimate required (o settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estmates are reviewed at esch reporting date and
adjusted 1o reflect the current best estimates,

p. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible oblipation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyvond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liahility that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does nol recognize a contingent lability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.
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. Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash low statement comprise cash in hand and cash at bank and short-tenm

investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

r. Current / non-current classification of assels [ liabilities

The Company has classified all its asseiz/liabilities into current/mon-current portion based on the time frame of | 2months
froim the date of the linancial statements. Accordingly, assetsfliabilities expected to be reahzed fsettled within12 months
froam the date of financial statements are classified as corrent and other assets/ labilities are classified as noncurrent.

% Classification of lean portfolio

Portfolio loans are classified as follows:

Assel classification Arrear period

Standard assets Cherdue upto 3 months

Non-performing assets

Sub-standard assets Cwerdue for more than 3 months and uptol 4 months

Daoubaful assets Cwerdue for more than 14 months and above

Loss assels #)  An asset which has been identified as loss ssset by the Company or it's intemal or

external auditor,

b} An asset which is adversely affected by a potential threat of non-recoverability due
to either erosion in the value of security or non-availability of security or due to
any fraudulent set or omission on the part of the bormower.

“Overdue” refers to interest and / or installment remaining unpaid from the day it became receivable.

t. Provisioning policy for Loan portfolio

IKF Finance Limited:

Assel Arrear period Provisioning
Classification percentage
Standard assels Upto 3 months 0.40%
Sub-standard assets | Overdue for more than 3 months and upte 14 months 1%
Doubiful asseis® Owverdue for more than 14 months and upto26 months %
{Secured)
Crverdue for more than 26 months and upto3Smonths %
Owverdue for more than 38months and uptoSOmonths T5%
Owerdue for more than 50 months and above 100 %
fiids As identi ﬁnd by the Company and loans with potential threat of non- Written off
recoverability

*Unsecured portion of doubtful assets are provided ar 100%

IKF Home Finance Limited:
Doubtful asset means a term loan or any other asset, which remains a subsiandard asset for a period exceeding 1welve
months,
Period for which the assets have been considered as doubtful Category
Upto One ¥ ear Category |
One 1o three vears Category 1
_Mare than three years Category Ill
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25, Prior period items

The prior period items are a5 follows:

Particulars March 31, 2019 Refer note
Salaries and bonus [ incentives

Staff Wellare Expenses (5,793) Mote 19
(her expenses

- Rent (&,800) | Mote 21
- Communication Expenses (1,53578) | Mo 21
- Printing & Stationery (13200 | Note2]
- Rates and taxes { 2.000) Mode 21
- Electricity charges (90,987) Nide 21
o Traw:lli'nE expenses (12,948) Mo 21
- Postage & Courier (44).305) Note 21
- (ffice Maintenance (23,695) | Mote 21
- Office Expenses - Mote 21
- Computer Maintenance = Niwee 21
- Commission Expenses (58.31.515) | Node 2|
- Yard Charges (15.650) | Note 21
- Legal & Professional Fee (72,22,782) MNote 21
Tutal (1,34.09,373)

26, Segment information

The group operates in a single business segment e, financing, which has similar risks and retums for the purpose of AS
17 on *Segment Reportiing specified under section 133 of the Compames Act 201 3, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies ( Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, The Company operates in a
single geographical segment i.c. domestic.

27. Related parties
Related Party disclosures as required by Accounting Standard- 18 *Related Party Disclosures’ 1ssued by [CAT are
iven below for the year ended March 31, 2019,

Key management personnel Mr. V.G.K.Prasad - Managing Direcior

Mrs. V.iIndira Devi — Whole time Director
Mrs. K. Vasumathi Devi - Executive Director
Mr. K.F Venkatesh- Chief Executive Officer
Mr.Murthy ¥ 8 - Chiel Executive Officer
Mr. Ch Sreenivasa Rao- Company Secrelary

Relative of key management personnel Mrs, D,V asamthaLakshmi

Mr. V.Raghu Ram

Mr, Sinha SatyanandChunduri
Mrs. Durga Rani Chunduri

Emerprises having a significant influence | India Business Excellence Fund-11A

on the company. Vistra ITCL (India) Limited (formery known as IL and FS Trust
Company Limited) (Trusiee of Business Excellence Trust-11 - India
Business Excellence Fund I1)

Enterprises significanily influenced by | 1KF Home Finance Limited
the company - subsidiary (formerly known as IKF Housing Finance Private Limited)

Emerprises significantly influenced by | IKF Infratech Private Limited
key management personnel or their
relatives

Enterprises in which directors anc SVR Finance & Leasing Private Limited
interested
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Related party transactions during the vear:

Transaction value Outstanding
Mame of related party Mature of transaction for the vear ended amount as at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019
Rent paid 20,15,400 -
Director’s remuneration 45,00, (00 -
Rent deposit given - S0,00, 000
Share capital (R=, 104 Paid up) - 1.58,67,900
1" Call Money Received against Allotmen of
Partly Paid up Shares Q65717 1.89.31.434
M. V.GK Prasad i i ; i
Premium Received on Allotmemt of Partly Paid 5.92.45921 i
up Shares
Purchase of IKF Home Finance Limited Equity 18.85.69 384 )
Shares
Share capital - IKF Home Finance Limited . 10
Equity Shares
IKF Home Finance Limited Allotment of Pany
Paid up Shares (2.50 Paid up) i i AUREIR
Remt paid 41.58,000 -
Director’s remuneration 3000, 000 -
Rent deposit given - 38.49.800
Share capital (Rs. 104 Paid up) - 1,32,69,020
1" Call Money Received against Allotmen of
_ _ Partly Paid up Shares B67348 17.34.696
Mrs. V. Indira Devi Premium Received on Allotment of Partly Paid ST TN
up Shares e i
Purchase of IKF Home Finance Limited Equity 1L1171.165 i
Shares
Share capital - IKF Home Finance Limited % 10
Equity Shares
IKF Home Finance Limited Allotment of Pany
Paid up Shares (2.50 Paid up) L0 4000200
Drirector’ s remuneration 30,000,000 -
Share capital (Rs. 1{¥- Paid up) 2.13,12.860
1" Call Money Received against Allotment of
Partly Paid up Shares 13,93 146 27.86.202
Premium Received on Allotmemt of Partly Paid &7 19.701
Mrs K. Vasumathi Devi | up Shares il )
Purchase of IKF Home Finance Limited Equity 2.37.25.802 )
Shares
Share capital - IKF Home Finance Limited 10
Equity Shares )
IKF Home Finance Limited Alloiment of Pany
Paid up Shares (2,50 Paid up) 45,00 040 45,100,000
Mr.K.P Venkatesh Salary Paid I, 10000} -
Mr. Murthy V § Salary Paid 22,42 669
Salary Paid 15,595,001 .
Mr.Ch.Sreenivasa Rao
Stafl Loai 300,00 2,49 5095
Salury Paid 00,00, 000 -
Share capital (Rs. (V- Paid up) - 2.00.61,170
Mrs. D.Vasantha Lakshmi [ 1% Call Money Received against Allotment of
Partly Paid up Shares 13,11.328 26,22,656
Premium Received on Allotment of Partly Paid E2.07.601 -
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Transaction value Outstanding
Name of related party Mature of transaction for the vear ended amouni as ai
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019
up Shares
g:thfs.e of IKF Home Finance Limited Equity 59.98 342 i
Share capital - IKF Home Finance Limited z 10
Equity Shares
IKF Home Finance Limited Allotment of Pary
Paid up Shares (2.50 Paid up) #0000 i
Share capital - 144,97 000
1" Call Money Received against Allotment of
Patdy Pid up Shures 947619 18.95.238
Premiom Received on Allotment of Partly Paid 3114
Mr. V Raghu Ram up Shares 3.31.147 -
gn‘:hm of IKF Home Finance Limited Equity 83.31.035 i
ares
Share capital - IKF Home Finance Limited ! 10
Equity Shares
Mr. Sinha Satyanand o o e i
Chunduri Share capital (Rs. 1 (V- Paid up) [0, 77.000
Mrs. Durga Rani ; '
Chunduri Share capital (Rs. 104~ Paid up) - 1A% 41,000
gmh:me of IKF Home Finance Limited Equity 6.45.02.495 p
[KF Infratech Private s
fiabtad Share capital - IKF Home Finance Limited ) 10
Equity Shares
1CDs ken 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000
SVR Finance & Leasing | Trade advance 2,89, 30,040 T4, 30,000
Private Limited Interest paid 3,57.745 .
ks i diiis ::an: cap':n?j (R, 1 (H- ?Ej‘! up) - - 13,05, 15,460
Rund-TLA are Frer:mum on preference shares converted i 11.00,05,020
io equily shares
Vistra ITCL (India} . :
Lintited (Formerly kniown Share capital (Rs. 10 Paid up) - 780,40, 180
as IL and FS Trust
Company
Limited ) Trustes of Share premium on preference shares converted 6.57.76.230
Business Excellence 1o equity shares _ i
Trusi-11 - India Business
Excellence Fund 11)
Wote: The remuneration and salary paid does not include the provision made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are
determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole,
8.  Capital commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining o be executed on capital account (net of advances) :
Particulars March 31, 2019
Office Furniture, Fixtures & Interiors 25,33.445
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29, Contingent liabilities provided for

Particulars March 31, 201%
Credit enhancements provided by the Company towards securitization (including cash collaterals, 45.95.87 684
principal and interest subordinationy s
Performance security provided by the Company towards advance parner arrangement ‘husiness 66.27.482
correspondent agreement o
Tax on items disallowed by Income Tax depanment not acknowledged as debt by the Company. B

There are numerous interpretative issues relating o the Supreme Count (5C) judgement on PF dated 28th February,
2019, As a matter of caution, the company has made a provision on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The
company will update its provision, on receiving further clarity on the subject.

30, Retirement and other employee benefits

Finan mibed:
The Company has a defined benefit gramity plan, Every emplovee who has completed five years or more of service is
eligible for grawity on cessation of employment and it is computed at 15 days salary (last drawn salaryh for each
completed vear of service subject to limit of Rs.20,00,000 as per The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

The following tables summarizes the components of net benelil expense recognized in the statement of profit and less and
the funded status and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the gratuity plan.

Statement of profit and loss

Net employees benefit expense {recognized in employees benefit expense):

: For the vear ended
ity March 31, 2019
Current service cosl 18,049,757
Interest cost on benefit obligation 381672
Past service cost 0
Net actuarial igain) / loss recognized in the year i1,15,299)
MNet employee bene (it ex pense 20,760,130

Balance Sheet
Details of provision for gramuity :
Cratuily
ke March 31, 2019
Defined benefit obligation 67,04 688
Fair value of plan assets -
Plan liahility 67,044,688
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows;
Gratuity
T ens March 31, 2019
Opening defined benefit obligation 49,13.226
Currenl service cosl 18,009,757
Interest cost 381672
Past Service Cost -
Benefits Paid directly by the Company {2.84,668)
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation (1,15,299)
Closing defined benefit obligation G7.04,688
Current Liability 440538
Non-current Liability 62.64,150
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Changes in the [air value of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2019

Opening fair value of plan assetls

| Expected return

Contributions by employer

_Benel’m paiq_ L

Actuarial Eﬁnﬁ { (losses)

Closing fair value of plan asseis

The pancipal assumplions used in detenmining gratuity:

Particulars

March 31, 2019

Discount raie

1.65%

Expected rate of return on assets

Salary escalation rate per annum

L%

Employee turnover rate

9.00%

Amounts for the current and previous four vears are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2019
Defined benefit obligation 6704, 688
Plan assetls -
Surplus / (deficit) (67.04,688)

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities

IKF Home Finance Limited:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuny plan. Every emplovee who has completed hive years or more of service is
eligible for gratuity on cessation of employment and o 15 computed at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each
completed year of service subject to limit of Rs 20000000 as per The Payment of Gratwity Act, 1972 and the same is
provided for an estimate basis ot the end of each fnancial year. The Gratuity Bability as on March 31, 20049 s provided

forRs, 906,992,
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31. Leases (operating lease)

Office Premises:

Head office, registered office and branch office premises are obtained on operating lease. The office premises
are generally rented on non- cancellable ierm ranging from one year (o eleven vears with or without escalation
clause. There are no restnctions imposed by lease arrangements. There are no subleases. Lease payments during

the vear are charged 1o statement of profit and loss,

Description March 31, 2019 |
Operating lease expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss 2.28.68.989
Minimum lease obligations
Mot later than one year 1.36.82.032

| Later than one year but not later than five years _2.63.59.145
Muore than live vears 23.47.832

32, SR expenses

{Amount i Rupess)

31-Mar-19

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the vear

52,40,947

by Amount spent during the year ending 315t March, 2009 : in cash Yel to be paid in cash
1) Construction/acquisition of any asset = -
i) O purposes other tham (1) above 325000 49.15,5947

33 Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

There are no amounts that need o be disclosed in accordance with the Micro Small and Mediom Enterprise

Development Act, 2006 (the "MSMED" ) pertaining to micro or small enterprises.

For the year ended March 31, 2009, no vendor  supplier has intimated the Company about its status as micro or

small enterpnses or its registration with the appropriate authority under MSMED.

34. This being the 1” year of presentation of financial statements, prior vear/period details are not reported,

As per our report of even date
For 5. B BATLIBOIL & CO. LLP
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Partner
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Chief Financial Officer
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Additional information as required by paragraph 2 of the pemeral instructions for preparation of
Consolidated Financial statements to schedule TTT to the Companies Act, 2003,

Name of the entity in the Group Net Asset, i.e, total assets Shares in profit or loss
minus total liabilities

Parent
LSS Hince Ligied 99.83% | 2.69.89.01,400 | 98.96% | 35.47.87.231
Subsidiaries
e TR Hovis Fiigacs Linied 16.26% | 43.95.37.273 090% | 32,2526
Foreign NA NA NA | NA
Minority interests in all subsidiaries 0.69% (1.87.08.437) (0.00) (6.31.188)
Associates
(Investment as per the equity method) |
Indian NA NA NA | NA
Fareign NA NA NA | NA
Inter-company eliminations and consolidation

| Adjustments -15.39% | (41,61.44.264) 032% | 11,3205
Joint Ventures (as per proportionate |
consolidation / investment as per the
equitvmethod) |
Indian NA NA NA | NA
Foreign NA NA NA | MNA
Total 10000% | 2703585972 | 100.00% 358513359

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

IKF Finance Limited

V.G.K Prasad V.indira Devi

Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN - 01817992 DIN = 03161150

P.Chandra Sekhar Ch.Sreenivasa Rao

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M.Mo. ACS14723

Dae ; 18-10-2019

Place: Vijavawada
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PRIANCE: 48 CIN : U65992AP1991PLC012736
Regd. Office: # 40-1-144, Corporate Centre, M. G.Road, Vijayawada - 520 010.

D.P.Id NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE REGISTERED SHAREHOLDER

ClientId /
Folio No.

No. of Shares

I certify that I am aregistered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company. I hereby record my
presence at the 28* Annual General Meeting of the Company at the Registered Office of the Company, # 40-1-144,
Corporate Centre, M G Road, Vijayawada - 520010, on Wednesday day, 4th December, 2019 at 4:30 p.m.

01. Only Member/Proxy holder can attend the Meeting. SIGNATURE
02. Member/Proxy holder should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the Meeting,

Note : Please fill this Admission Slip and hand it over at the entrance. Shareholders who come to attend the meeting are

requested to bring the copies of the Notice of AGM also with them.

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies

IKF FINANCE LIMITED

o) 4 CIN : U65992AP1991PLC012736
Regd. Office: # 40-1-144, Corporate Centre, M. G.Road, Vijayawada - 520 010.

(Management and Administration) Rules 2014]

Name of the member(s)

Registered Address

Email ID

FolioNo. / Clinent ID DPID

I/'We, being the member(s) of shares of IKF Finance Limited, hereby appoint:

1) of having e-mail id or failing him
2) of having e-mail id or failing him
3) of having e-mail id or failing him

and whose signature(z) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
28" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held at Registered Office of the Company, Vijayawada-520010 on Wednesday,
4th December, 2019 at 4:30 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

** [ wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Item No. | Resolutions For Against | Abstain

1 Receive, consider, approve and adopt the audited Financial Statements for the fmancial
year ended 31st March, 2019 together with the Reports of the Drectors and Auditors

thereon for the year ended 31st March 2019,

[¥]

Appomt a Director in place of Mr. Gopala Kishan Prasad Vupputuri (DIN: 01817992),

who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

e




Item Mo, | Resolutions For Against | Abstain

3 Appaint a Director in place of Mrs. Indars Dhevi Vigpputwrs DTN 03161 174), wiho retires by
rotation &, bemng cligible offers harself Tor re-appointiment

4 Appoint a Darector i place of Mr. Salyanarayana Prasad Kanapact (DN 03598603 ), wiho
retires by rotation and, being eligible. offers herself for re-appoirtnent

5 Appoudt & Director i place of Mr. Veerabhadra Rao Sunkara (DIN: 011 80581 ), who relies
by retation miwl, being eligble, offers herself for re-appontment

6 Enhance the Borowmg Powers of e Conpany from Rz, 3000 crores to Rs 4000 crores.
7 Enhance fhe power of Beard of Dwectors of the Company 1o lease and mortgage of the
propenty (ies) of the Conpamy
8 Authorzation to sesue of Mon Comvertible Debentires (MODTier 11 Debtis) Connsercial
PapasBands an Private Placement Basis.
Al a
1 Rupes
Signed this .......... duy of .............. 2019 Signature sharcholder :...........o.coocoi Racwonse
Sltamp
Signature of first prowy holder Signature of second proxy holder Signabure of third proxy holder
ke :

(1y This form of prozxy m order to be effectve should e duly conpleted and deposited & e Regstaed Office of the Company not less than 43
howrs hefore e conmencement af the meeting

(2 A Prosy need not be a manber of the Company:

] A perean can act a8 a proxy on behalfof menbers not exceedmg fifty and lolding m the aggregate ot more than 1040 of the total share capatal
of e Company carying voling raghis. A member lolding move than 100 ofthe total share capital of te Compasty camymig votineg rights nay
appomt 8 single person as proogy and such person shall not act a8 8 prooy for mry ofer person of shreholder:

"4} This is ondy optional. Please put a X in the appropriate cobonn against the resolutions indic ated m the Box. [y ouleave the "'For' or *Against’
cohum blank agamst sy o all the resohitions, vour Prosgy will be entitled to vobe ay the mamser as he'she thanks sppropnste

(5 Appoitaig a procy does nol prevent @ member from attending the neetag in peson i he'she so wishes,

(] I tee came of pombalders, the smature of ary e holda wall be sulficoad. bul nawes of all tee joistholders shiould be stmed.




IKF, 1KF FINANCE LIMITED

FINANCE 40 CIN : U65992AP1991PLC012736
Regd. Office: # 40-1-144, Corporate Centre, M.G.Road, Vijayawada - 520 010.
28" Annual General Meeting — Wednesday, 4-December, 2019

Form No. MGT-12
Polling Paper
[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 ]

S.No| Particulars Details

1. Name of the first named shareholder (in block letters)

2 Postal address

3 Registered folio No. / *Client ID No.
(*Applicable holding shares in demat form)

4, Class of share Equity

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of ordinary/ special resolution enumerated below by recording my assent or dissent to the said
resolution in the following manner:

Item Ordinary Business No. of I'We assent | L'We dissent
No shares to the to the
held by resolution resolution
me
1 Receive, consider, approve and adopt the audited Financial Statements

for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 together with the Re-
ports of the Directors and Auditors thereon for the year ended 31st
March 2019.

(=]

Appoint a Director in place of Mr. Gopala Kishan Prasad Vupputuri
(DIN: 01817992), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

3 Appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Indira Devi Vupputuri (DIN:
03161174), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers herself
for re-appointment.

4 Appoint a Director in place of Mr. Satyanarayana Prasad Kanaparthi
(DIN: 03598603), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers
herself for re-appointment.

5 Appoint a Director in place of Mr. Veerabhadra Rao Sunkara (DIN:
01180981), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers herself
for re-appointment.

6 Enhance the Borrowing Powers of the Company from Rs.3000 crores
to Rs. 4000 crores.

7 Enhance the power of Board of Directors of the Company to lease and
mortgage of the property (ies) of the Company.

8 Authorization to issue of Non Convertible Debentures (NCD)/Tier II
Debt(s)/Commercial Papers/Bonds on Private Placement Basis.

Place : Vijayawada
Date : 04-12-2019

(Signature of the Shareholder*/Proxy)
(*As per Company Records)
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